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High-Value Products K

Titanium and Titanium AIIO)}S | ' 22%

Nickel-Based Alloys, Superéalloyst and Speualty Alloys 20%

Precision and Englneered Strlp , : 12%
Tungsten Maiterlals ' ; ] ! . { . \; 6%,
Exotic Alloys : ; l ' P 4%
Grain-Oriented Silicon Ellect:'lcathteel and Tool Steel 4%
_ Total High Vajlug 1§ E . I ' 11,’ ) 68%
. L : :‘
Commodity Products :t ' .
Stainless Sheet, | 1 l | C 7%
Specialty Stainléss Sheet ! :‘ 9%
Stainless Plate | ! J 4%
Cast and For'ged Materi.af]s i \ l j, 2%
Total Commodity Products ' i i 32%
Total ) : | i E - 100% ATl 425 o mamumalroy shown hereat 50x magmcatron has the srength of
f I -: § I 6-4 titanium and can be cold-worked into strip, foil, and thin-walled tubing for
! [ r a variety of applications. ,
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This image at 500x magnification shows two aerospace alloys, 6-4 titanium {(multiple colors) and C-103 alloy (intense red in center of photo}, joined for rocket

nozzle exhaust applications. C-103 is an alloy of niobiurm, hafnium, and titanium.
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2006 Investments -

* $534 million — managed working capital

¢ $235 million - capital investments

* $100 million ~ voluntary pension contribution”

¢ $43 million - dividend payments**

* AT) made $250 million of voluntary pension contributions during 2004-2006.

*+AT| increased dividends in each of the last 2 years.
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MESSAGE FROMITHE CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT

AND CHIEF EXEl(i]UTIVE OFFICER

Three years ago | wrote my first letter to you. At that time,

| presented a vision and strateglc dlrection for ATl and
described what we intended to do to achieve our goals

| am pleased to report that we]have accomplished that phase
of our strategic plan and are bdiiding the foundation for
further profitable growth. We continue to make progress

toward Building the World's Be]:st Specialty Metals Company.’

There is more to come.

Highlighting our financial performance in 2006, sales reached
an all-time high of over $4.9 billion, an improvement of 40%
compared 10 2005; segment operating profit exceeded

$1 billion for the first time in ATI s hlstory, and earnmgs per
share was a record $5.59.

You, our stockholder, benefited! In 2006, a shzre of ATl stock
rose $54.60, or 151%, which mrLde ATI the best percentage
gainer in the S&P 500. In addmon our Board of Directors
increased your dividend by 30% in 2006. ATI's dividend was
increased in each of the past two years for a total increase of
over 100%. . B

2006 was a great year full of sutl:cesses and milestones. We
are not complacent and are Iooklng ahead, believing we are
still in the early stages of growth We remain focused on our
strategic investments, while simultanecusly improving

ATI STRATEGIC GOALS
2004 |2006

i
L

Transition ant::l Transform
2004 Accomp.’r’ghed

i
Accelerating Profitability |
2005 Accomplished

Profitable Growth
2006 Accomphshed

Ii
BUILDING THE WORLDS BEST
SPECIALTY METAILS COMPANY“"

-Ii

productivity and opera-
tional execution across the
Company, and establishing
solid positions in key
global markets.

ATl's growth is being
driven by strong demand
from the aerospace and
defense market, which is
being accentuated for us
by the quantum leap in
titanium alloys used in the
next-generation commer-
cial aircraft. In addition,
our specialty metals are
vital to the building and
rebuilding of the global
infrastructure for

markets such as chemical

process, oil and gas, and PAT HASSEY

electrical energy. Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
The beginning of what we believe to be an unprecedented
aerospace growth cycle is “taking off” for ATI. In 2005, we
recognized that to stay in front of this aerospace growth cycle
and to expand our industry-leading position, we needed to
become a fully integrated titanium mill products producer.
We began important strategic capital investments to produce
titanium sponge, the critical raw material needed to produce
our'titanium mill products, and to increase our premium
titanium melting capacity that is necessary to meet our
customers’ increasing demands.

So far, we have announced investments in our future totaling
approximately $925 million. These investments increase our
capability and capacity to produce the premium titanium
alloys and nickel-based superalloys required for aerospace jet
engine and airframe applications. In addition, these inve;t-
ments provide capabilities to ATl to further grow in the global
chemical process, oil and gas, electrical energy and medical
markets. {See Investing for Our Future chart on page 6-7.)
These strategic investments further strengthen ATI's leader-
ship position in the production of technically demanding
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specialty metals. The investments enhance our ability to meet

our customers’ current and future technical requirements.

Due in part to these strategic capital investments, in late
2006 and early 2007 we announced the two largest long-
term agreements (LTAs} in the history of ATL. In October
2006, we signed a titanium mill products supply agreement
with The Boeing Company, valued at approximately

$2.5 billion over nine years. Under this LTA, we provide
titanium mill products for the new Boeing 787 Dreamliner
and other Boeing aircraft. In January 2007, we announced an
LTA with GE Aviation valued at approximately $2 billion over
5 years, This sourcing agreement calls for the supply of our
premium titanium alloys, nickel-based superalloys, and
specialty alloys used for commercial and military jet engines,

While AT| has been a preferred supplier to GE Aviation for
many years, The Boeing Company agreement is our first LTA

with that company. We value our

The specialty metals we make are necessary for infrastructure
projects that must be built in developing countries as well as
for the rebuilding of the infrastructure in developed countries
like the U.S. and throughout Europe. For example, ATl is a
leading supplier to the electrical energy market. Cur products
are essential for constructing and upgrading electrical distri-
bution grids. ATl is also a leading supplier of specialty metals
vital to electrical generation power plants. Whether electricity
is generated from coal, natural gas, nuclear, or wind, ATI's
products are likely being used. ATl is also positioned to
benefit from sustained growth in the oil and gas market,
including the production of alternative sources of energy,
such as ethanol and other biofuels.

Growing our business internationally is critical to our future.
! am pleased to report that ATl has made significant progress
in this area. Sales outside the U.S. reached over $1 billion, or
24% of sales, in 2006. To provide greater focus and to grow

partnering relationships with GE
Aviation and The Boeing Company
and expect to continue to grow with
these leading companies in the future.
LTAs account for a significant part of
our sales, They are structured to
address changes in material, manu-
facturing, and energy costs based on
market conditions, and provide a
baseline volume. This baseline is
critical to establishing standardized
processes, securing necessary

capital, negotiating purchasing
agreements with our vendors, and
planning manufacturing resources.
Most importantly, LTAs offer an
excellent foundation.for sustained
growth, while developing deeper relationships with

our customers.

This is an extraordinary time to be in the specialty metals
business. To me, this is a renaissance period for specialty
metals unlike any period that | have been through in my
3B-year career in the metals business. | expect demand to be
strong for a long time. Life styles in many countries are
improving as people in the developing countries want to
move into a middle-class status. They are driving the global
economic growth that is demanding more and more of the
types of specialty metals made by ATI.

Executive Committee (Seated | ta r) Rich Harshman, Tom Williams, Lynn Davis, Doug Kittenbrink. (Standing I to r)

Jack Shilling, Terry Dunlap, Jon Walton, Pat Hassey, Dave Hogan. (see page 99 for titles)

sales, we reorganized our European efforts and created ATI

Europe and AT! Europe Distribution in 2006. These units are

unique in their marketplace since they can sell any of ATl's
broad range of specialty metals. Our employees speak the
local language and know the local markets and cultures.

We are also focused on growing sales in Asia. Our sales and
distribution organization in that area of the world provides
ATl access to rapidly growing infrastructure markets. In
addition, we announced the expansion of our STAL Precision
Rolled Strip® products joint venture in Shanghai, China.

ATl is a leading producer of these thin and highly engineered
specialty metals used in the electronics, communications, and

consumer durable markets in Asia.

ALLEGHENY TECHNOLOGIES
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LOOKING AT OUR SEGMENTS:

The High Performance Metals gegrqent is our fastest growing
segment with the most potentiél foi‘ further profitable
growth. ATI Allvac is recogmzed as 2 premiere supplier to
aerospace customers across mdustry cycles. We have consis-
tently invested in this business,jeven during downturns. We
are investing now and creating a broader platform for
sustained profitable growth.‘ATli Wah Chang is a pioneer in
the specialty metals necessary for the nuclear electrical power
generation industry, and we are investing in preparation for
the expected revival of this market.'ATI Wah Chang also
provides exotic alloys and titanium alloys to the chemical
process, aerospace, and medical markets.

These businesses-produce products Iat the high end of the
specialty metals range. Shared t!echhology within ATl is essen-
tial to our success. For example; AT Wah Chang has been
producing zirconium sponge frojp‘x sand for over 50 years. So,
when we decided to restart and. expand our titanium sponge
capabilities, ATI Wah Chang scientists and engineers were
called upon to bring those facilities on line. h

Our Flat-Rolled Products segme'ht is‘benefiting from the
transformation of that business Wthh began in 2004. Since
then, productivity has mprovediby over 40%. This is not the
stainless business that ATl Alleghieny Ludlum used to-be.
Rather, it is a leading supplier of specialty metals to gldbal
markets. We aim to demonstrate .ithat this segment can
generate excellent returns during!good times and gooa returns

during market downturns in its short-cycle product lines.

In the Flat-Rolled Products segment, we are picking and
choosing markets and products that have acceptable returns
and spreading our cyclical risk to a broader base of

i
customers around the world. We have organized to create a
competitive cost structure in our commodity stainless sheet
business, and in our high-value specialty and titanium sheet,

specialty plate, grain-oriented silicon electrical steel, and
Precision Rolled Strip businesses.

Frankly, our smallest segment, Engineered Products, can do
even better than its 2006 results demonstrate. In particular,
we are taking steps to improve our tungsten cutting tools
business, the segment’s largest business unit. Qur tungsten
business is now fully integrated back to the raw material
ammonium paratungstate (APT), This provides a reliable and
staple lower-cost starting material. In addition, through
shared technology with other AT} companies, the cutting
tools business is beginning to be recognized as a leading
supplier by those who machine titanium and other difficult-to-
machine specialty metals. For example, one of our new
cutfing too! systems improved the titanium machining time
for an aerospace customer by over 20%.

Last year, | introduced 1o you how we define the guiding
principles of Building the World’s Best Specialty Metals
Cor!npany. These principles drive our strategy. It starts with
Value-Based Leadership. Value-Based Leaders are the true
difference in companies that move people to new levels of
achievement and success. I look for the leaders within ATl to
move this company forward by demenstrating these key
attributes as individuals: k

* integrity as the Cornerstone of Leadership...being honest
and forthright in everything. Empowering people to trust,
tommunicate, and take action within established
boundaries.

—
INVESTING FOR OUR FUTURE: $925 MILLION OF STRATEGIC

2006 !

2007

T

Albany, OR
8 m|II|on Ibs capacity
tltanlum sponge

Nickel-based Alloy

20% melt capacity expansion

VAR/ESR F |

Albany, OR

8 million lbs additional
titantum sponge capacity
(16 million Ibs total)

PAM 1II
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* Accountability for outcomes that ensure the long-term
success of ATI.

* Safety and Health and Environmental Compliance is the
prerequisite to all of our operations.

* Product Quality and Excellence is demonstrated in
everything we do.

¢ Technology, Creativity, Learning, and Freedom of people
to reach their individual potential is the culture of

the Company.

In Building the World's Best Specialty Metals Company, we
focus on markets whose prospects are largely tied to long-
cycle industries that are currently in what we see as the early
stages of long-term growth.

In Building the World's Best Specialty Metals Company, we
aim to do more, make our products better, and implement
and execute faster through the ATl Business System (ATIBS).
ATIBS drives our lean manufacturing initiatives, improves
quality and yieids, further reduces overhead structures and

cost, and delivers excellent customer reliability and service.

We are positioned to capitalize on what we do well. Qur
future is being invented by the people of AT!, and our
technology is the differentiator. ATl has long been a leader
in specialty metals technology and our capital investments
are aimed at maintaining and enhancing that leadership role.

We have a defined view of the future, and we have the financial
means and people with the expertise to continue to move
ATI forward.

Jack Shilling, our Executive Vice President, Corporate
Development and Chief Technical Officer, announced his
retirement effective March 31, 2007, concluding a distin-
guished 34-year career with our Company. Dr. Shilling has
been a valuable member of our executive management team
providing insight into specialty metals technology. He also led
the expansion of our international operations in Asia and
Europe. Jack is an industry advocate, serving as Chairman of
the Specialty Steel Industry of North America (SSINA}. We
wish Jack and his wife Suzanne a wonderful, long and healthy
retirement. They plan to spend more time together on the
golf course and with their children and growing grandchildren.
Jack will continue in a consultative role as the needs of ATI
call upon his expertise.

| want to personally thank our stockholders, our Board of
Directors, our employees, and the communities in which we
operate our businesses for their continued support of ATI.

| lock forward to 2007 being a year of rewarding progress as the
extraordinary people of ATl achieve the next level of success.

PAT HASSEY
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
March 2007

CAPITAL PROJECTS (BY PLANNED COMPLETION YEAR)

2008

2009

Specialty Plate
P ty Rowley, UT

24 million Ibs capacity titanium
sponge start up 2008

Albany, OR

4 million Ibs additional
titanium sponge capacity
(20 million Ibs total)

Plate finishing expansion

Forging Capacity

s dy

- r
Press forge Rotary forge PAM IV
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BUILDING THE V\l;/O;RLD'S BEST SPECIALTY METALS COMPANY ™ '

Long-Term Agreement with:Boeing >

and ATl hosted a community awareness event in

Officer, Boeing Commercial Airp;fanes.

| |
!

n. . s} ME“' ; s

i
In October 2006, ATI announcecizl a titanium mill preducts
supply agreement with The Bo:—:-1§ng Company valued at
$2.5 billion over nine years. In November 2006, Boeing

Pittsburgh, PA. Pictured at that évent are Pat Hassey (left)
and Scott E. Carson, President a:nd Chief Executive

N &
" L - :
ALLEGHHE_NY TECHNOLOG[ESV}\NNUAL REPORT 2006 ‘

< Long-Term Agreement with GE Aviation

WE FOCUS ON MARKETS WHOSE PROSPECTS ARE LARGELY TIED TO
! <

LONG-CYCLE INDUSTRIES THAT ARE CURRENTLY IN WHAT WE SEE

AS THE EARLY STAGES OF LONG-TERM GROWTH.

In January 2007, ATl announced a sourcing agreement with .
GE Aviation for the supply of premium titanium, nickel-based

superalloy, and vacuum-melted specialty alloy preducts for

commercial and military jet engine applications. The total
revenue of this agreement may exceed $2 bhillion over 5 five
year period.

< GE Aviation Award

In November 2006, ATl Allvac was recognized by GE Aviation
as a GE preferred supplier. GE Aviation recognized AT} Allvac
for excellence in delivery and product quality through all
aviation business cycles. A team of employees that works
closely in support of GE requirements displays the award:
{kneeling | to r) Bob Foreman gand Ernest Sellars; {standing

[ to r) Jerry Sturdivant, Beth SHort, Andrew McDow, Jeff Russell,
David Nance, Stephen Dawkins, and Martha Helms.

.



<Titanium Sponge Expansion

in 2006, a significant part of our titanium production exparsion
has been the upgrading and restarting of ATI's titanium sponge
facility in Albany, OR. The purpose of the capital project is to

meet growing demand from the aerospace and defense, chem-

ical process, oil and gas, and medical markets. By the end of
2006 the facility was producing at an annual rate of 8 million
pounds of titanium sponge and by the first half 2008, titanium
sponge capacity at the Albany, OR facility is expected to be at
a 20 million pound annual rate. Pictured: Paul Hill {Operator).

Premium Titanium Melt Expansion >

ATl is expanding its premium titanium melt capabilities at
our Bakers, NC facility. The purpose of the capital project is
to meet growing demand from the aerospace and defense,
both jet engine and airframe, medical, and oil and gas
markets. The project includes additional Plasma Arc Melt
(PAM) and vacuum arc remelt (VAR capacity. Pictured:
Corey Hines (left) and Eugene Chambers.

< Nickel-Based Alloy and Superalloy Expansion

ATl installed two new electroslag remelt (ESR) furnaces for the
expansion of our premium-melt nickel-based alloy, superalloy,
and specialty alloy production capabilities at our Latrobe, PA
facility. The furnaces were commissioned during July 2006
and both achieved full capacity in less than three months.
Pictured: (1 to r) Mark Fannie, Dann Appolonia and Jim Kelly.

Titanium Precision Processing Expansion >

ATl is expanding our titanium precision processing capabilities
at our Monaca, PA facility. Pictured: (| to r} Don Duchene, John
Blazier and R.A. Prosper.

ALLEGHENY TECHNOLOGIES ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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Allvac® 718Plus® Alloy >

|

A new nickel-based superalloy for gas turbines used in
aerospace and power generation applicaticns offers'turbine

manufacturers better fuel efficieléncy from higher operating
temperatures than the standardli718* alloy. Three aerospace
industry standards (AMS 5441, :5442:, and 5964) have been
created and approved to speedhaccéptance of the newly
paténted Allvac 718Plus alloy. Expect to hear more about
Allvac 718Plus alloy as development programs move .rapid'ly
toward placing this alloy into pr?ducltion.

< Hardcore™ Technology

Our HardCore technology patented dual carbide structure
with a tough resilient core and a hard durable shell offers
four times the tool life at twice the production speed.
HardCore technology has been tested extensively - both in
the laboratory and in field trials around the world. Testing
proves that with HardCore technology many of the limita-
tions of tool performance no longer apply.

Internal Synergy for Machining Titanium

1
Our tungsten products business ils beginning to be recog-
nized as a technology leader in finding machining solutions
e . . | . .
for difficult-to-machine specialty metals, such as titanium and

superalloys.

ATl Stellram’s 7792VXD High Feed Cutter >

Qur new high feed cutters with X:Grade™ technclogy are a
proven and reliable solution for m:achining difficult-te-machine
materials. X-Grade™ technology w‘és dgveloped through R&D
to discover a carbide grade that thrives in unstable conditions
while providing very high metal-removal rates. ’

‘fi



Castings for Wind Energy >

Qur ductile iron castings are used for wind turbines for power
generation and range in size from just a few thousand
pounds to over 40,000 pounds each. Pictured standing next

to three wind turbine hub castings are {l to r) Cliff Sheeler,

! In 2006, AT! continued its growth in the wind energy market.
f David Neil and Larry Bergstrom.
|

3 W ses

<Stainless Steel for Ethanol

We are positioned to benefit from sustained growth in alter-
native sources of energy, such as ethanol. Our stainless steel
is used to make ethanol fermenting and process tanks.

OmegaBond™ Advanced Tubing Technology >

3) OMEGABOND'

Advanced Tubing Technolegy
OmegaBond™ tubing is a new, innovative composite titanium
and Zircadyne®702 zirconium tubing product that allows
fertilizer processors and other chemical manufacturers to save
; time and money by minimizing the effects of corrosion and
erosion and by increasing process throughput. Unlike
bimetallic tubing, which only provides a "tight fit” between
dissimilar alloys, OmegaBond™ tubing uses solid state joining
technologies that create a metallurgical bond between
dissimilar metals,

ALLEGHENY TECHNOLOGIES ANNUAL REPORT 2006 i




WHAT WE MAKE

AND WHERE IT GOES

AEROSPACE

Products

Nickel- and cobalt-based
superalloys, titanium alloys,
and vacuum-melted speciahy
alloys for commercial and
military jet engines

Titanium alloys, vacuum-
melted specialty alloys, and
high-strength stainless alloys
for commercial and military
airframe components

Titanium alloy tubing

and nickel-titanium shape
memory alloy for aerospace
hydraulic systems

Titanium-niobium atloy
for high-temperature
rivets and fasteners

High strength stainless alloys
for composite helicopter
blades

High temperature niobium
and tantalum alloys for
rocket nozzles and jet engine
components .

Tungsten materials for
cutting tools and counter-
balance weights for aircraft

|

i -

- ‘-

i Growth Opportunities
| Titanium alloys for

" commercial and military
airframe applications

AT 425¥™ titanium cold
roilabte alloy for aiframe
; applications

i Thermal spray powders for
'turbine engines

Emerging Technologies
’Allvz'ac‘ 718 Plus® alloy for jet
engine applications

i

{ Allvac® 1014 alloy for
 jet engine shafts in the
!latest engines

Patented tungsten

carbide composite rod

for machining airframe and
engine componants

H
i

Products

Corrosion Resistant Alloys

{CRAs) such as duplex stain-

less, super stainless, nickel-
. based, and titanium alloys

for seawater environments,

such as offshore oil and gas
. applications

Vacuum-melted specialty
alloys and engineered prod-
ucts for oil and gas drilling
applications

Nickel-based alloys, titanium
alloys, and vacuum-melted
specialty alloys for well
completion systems

Stainless alloys for ethanol
and LNG (Liquefied Natural
Gas) applications

Tungsten carbide powders
and crystalline tungsten
powders for exploration

* Tungsten carbide components
used in drill bits, downhale
pumps and flow regulators

Nickel-based superalloys,
titanium alloys, and vacuum-
melted specialty alloy
products for chemical plant
applications, including
refinerias

. Titanium castings for pumps
and valves

CHEMICAL PROCESS INDUSTRY/OIL & GAS

Zirconium products for sulfu-
ric, nitric, acetic and formic
acids and urea processing

Titanium alloy tubing for
sour gas oil wells

Growth Opportunities

AL 2003™ lean duplex
alloy and super-duplex alloy
as alloy substitution

Nickel-based alloys for
exploration of alternative
fuel sources, such as oil
sands and shale oil

Ductile iron castings for
compression and pumping
equipment

Carbon and alloy steel |
forgings for flow control |
products and downhole tools

AL 201LN™ alloy, a lean
austenitic stainless alloy for
process applications.

Emerging Technologies
Titanium to lighten drill
strings for deeper oil and
gas exploration projects

Patented tungsten compos-
ite tooling for machining
valve and pump components

OmegaBond™ tubing for
fertilizer and chemical
processing

2]

Aerospace: ATl titanium mill prodiicts are used in the new Boeing 787
Dreamliner

ALLE

offshore oil and gas applications.

CPI/Oil and Gas: ATVs Corrosion Resistant Afloys {CRAs) are used for

e =
o
_— -
aoha -3 a
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ELECTRICAL ENERGY

Products

Titanium, superferritic and
duplex stainless steels, and
nickel-based alloys for
seawater environments

Corrosion and oxidation
resistant alloys for fuel cells

Grain-oriented silicon
electrical steels for power
distribution and power
generation transformers

Nickel-based superalloys,
titanium alloys, and vacuum-
melted specialty alloys for
gas and steam turbine
components

Reactor-grade zirconium and
hafnium products for nuclear
fuel cladding and structural
applications

Hydrogen membrane
purification modules

Tungsten carbide for
centrifuge tiles, coal
crushers, and fan blades

Tungsten carbide for
machining turbine blades
and shafts

Ductile iron castings for wind
turbines and gas turbines,
engine blocks for stationary
power generation

Growth Opportunities
Onxidation resistant alloys
for land-based turbines

Corrosion and oxidation
resistant alloys and
bi-metallics for fuel cells

Corrosion Resistant Alloys
(CRAs) for flue gas desulfur-
ization pollution control
equipment

Titanium alloy tubing for
geothermal wells

Castings for offshore wind
turbines

Emerging Technologies
Allvac® 718Plus®* alloy for
industrial gas turbines

Patented large diameter
superalloy ingots for gas
turbine components

Niobium-titanium, nicbium
alloys and vanadium alloys
for magnetic confinernent
of high temperature plasma
in fusion reactors

Ruthenium-based tungsten
carbide for machining
turbine blades

MEDICAL

Products

Titanium alloys, cobalt-
based alloys, and zirconium-
nicbium alloys for implants,
medical equipment, and
surgical tools

Nickel-titanium for arterial
stents and catheter
guide wire

Titanium foils for maxofacial
implant plates

Nicbium-titanium alloy for
superconducting magnets
to power MRI imaging

_equipment

Tungsten products for MR
shielding applications

Tungsten for diagnostic
isotope vial and dose
shielding

Tungsten carbide for
machining medicat
implants

Emerging Technologies
Titanium alloy seamless
tubing for bone nails

and screws

Boutique alloys (Ti-15Mo,
Allvac® 35NLoTi™ alloys)
designed to meet unique
demands for biomedical
applications, such as spinal
implants and pacemaker
lead wires

Bismuth tin for lead
replacement

Allvac® TJIA-1537* alloys for
improved medical implants

Electrical Energy: Large castings for wind turbines for power generation.

Medical: Titanium for hip implants.




ATI PRODUCTS AND MARKETS

+

| .
DIVERSIFIED GLOBAL MARKETS DIVERSIFIED PRODUCTS

{Percent of Allegheny Technologles 2006 Sales) (Percent of Allegheny Technologies' 2004 Sales)

s
High-Value Products

Aerospace and Defense | 30% I"I’itanium and Titanium Alloys 22%
Chemical Process Industry/Gil Elmd iGas 9% Nickel-Based Alloys, Superalloys and Specialty Alloys = 20%
Electrical Energy ) i . M% Precision and Engineered Strip 12%
Automotive ‘ | 9% [Tungsten Materials 6%
Food Equipment and Appliancés I | 8% ;Exotic Alloys ‘ 4%
Machine and Cutting Tools 3 8% 'Grain-Oriented Silicon Electrical Steel and Tool Steel 4%
Construction and Mining ' : . 1% T?tal High Value 68%
Medical : - 3% Commodity Products
Transportation ‘ . 2% . Stainless Sheet 17%
EIectronics/Communication/Cohputers 2% Specialty Stainless Sheet 9%
Conversion Services ' 1% Stainless Plate - 4%
Total o 100% Cast and Forged Materials . 2%
Total Commodity Products 32%
Total 100%

PRICE RANGES OF

MAJOR PRODUCTS - : SALES BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA
{Approximate Price Ranges in § Per Pound) ‘ . {Percent of Allegheny Technologies’ 2006 Sales)
Exotic Alloys : . $2425 - $35843 United States 76%
Titanium and Titanium Alloyls | o 81432 - .581 73 Europe 13%
Nickel-Based Alloys : . $596 - $57.12 Far East 6%
Precision and Engineered Strip| ©  $0.83 -  $13.52 Canada 3%
Stainless Sheet and Plate | $0.61 - + $34.62 South America 1%
Grain-Oriented Silicon Electrical Steel  $102 - §1.59 Middle East | 1%
I Total . 100%

=== T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

{Percent of Each Segment's 2006 Sales}

..i (§ [N MILLIONS)
v, FINANCIAL RESULTS MAJOR PRODUCTS MAJOR MARKETS
‘E 39%
” 54% Aerospace =
L High Performance Metals Titanium and Titanium Allays N 1%t‘ . Jet Engines
; nstruction
: 2006 2005 Mining }
i Sales $1,806.6 51,246.0 1% |
! Operating Profit $ 6575 5 3353 Teansportation Aerggp?:‘&e |
., Percent of Sales 36.4% 26.9% 1% Air Frames
;o . . Machine and i
3 Identifiable Assets $1,227.6 & 8885 Cutting Toois
5. International Sales  § 568.9 § 406.5 -~ o %
r : Specialty [Wersm:ll 10%
i} ATI Alvac Alloys e cruai '
"+ ATI Altvac Ltd Detonse i Gas '
|
Vi ATl Wah Chang 10% 29% 4% b
J Exotic Alloys Nickel-Based Electrical 6% Medical
il Alloys/Superalloys Energy  Government ;
@ Aerospace
I
Flat-Rolled Products 31% o eg;?gn . wﬁ?m Mﬁrm
2006 2005 Engingered Strip
15%
Sales $2,697.3 $1.,900.5 % Elooring
Operating Profit $ 3443 % 1499 Medical Energy
Percent of Sales 12.8% 7.9% -
 Identifiable Assets  $1,139.4 S 9540 | Sk Transportation
International Sales % 48546 $ 350.9 Titanium Alloys
3%
inlnce Etectronics/ 14%
AT! Allegheny Ludlum Stainless Plate Communicatian/ Food Equipment
~ STAL (Chinese Joint Venture) 10% 15% Gomputers and Appliances
. {60% Ownership) ™ Specialty 6%
: Siticon Stainless Sheet Aerospace and 13%
v Uniti LLC (International Joint Venture) EI%ctrlicSatl a!nd NickL?—nged diniess shee Degense Con;'rjt?(gionf Maching and
(50% OW”EFSh"p) 00! Stee A"UVSI'SUDefa"OVS Mlnlng Cutting Togls
and Specialty Alloys
i Engineered Products Tungstan Materias Cpugizl?sas -
2006 2005 Transportation
3% 1%
Sales $ 4327 5 3934 Comvarsion Electronics/
i . Operating Profit $ 567 % 4758 Services C°E"5'F#§fﬁ§};°”’
i Percent of Sales 13.1% 121% . 13%
Lon .
" ldentifiable Assets $ 2339 % 20%9.4 Onnee?gion Maching and
i International Sales  § 1161 § 1127 Services Guttng Tools
3%
ATl Metalworking Products Medical %
POATH Pom"and For?e ™ Construction/
i ATl Casting Service 12% Other Mining
| Rome Metals Cast Materials 5%
.“ 18% Aerpspace and Automotive
| Forged Materials Defense Electiical Energy l
i |
i 1| - |
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

ATl Business System (ATIBS) ! ! ;

A systemic and integrated business system adepted throughout AT
modeled after the Toyota Production System and builz on three
fundamental principles: Make to Use, Ellmlnatlon of Waste and

People Connect the System.

Ammonium Paratungstate (APT)
A purified intermediate tungsten compound made from ore or tungsten
scrap that is used as a starting materia! for making most tungsten powders.

Annealing
The process of heating and cooling material in such a way as to soften it,
and to produce desired changes in other properties or microstructure.

Bar !
A long product that is 1/4 inch (6.35mm) or more in diameter, having
round, sguare, octagonal or hexagonal cross-sections.

Billet '

A long product with a diameter range of 8 to 14 inches (203 to 356 mm).
Can either be sold in billet form or processed further to make other
long products. !

Carbide Cutting Tools
Cemented carbides made into forms for removing materials in machining
operations such as turning, milling or drilling. Normally, these tools have
hard surface coatings consisting of carbides, nitrides and omdes of
titaniurm and aluminum.

Commodity Flat-Rolled Products
A classification that includes the Flat Rolled Products segments stainless
hot and ¢old rolled sheet and plate products

Electric Arc Furnace (EAF) ‘ ' £

An open air melting furnace in which scrap and farroalloys are . melted by
high electrical power carbon arcs. Reﬁnmg is accomplished by slags and

various gases. The process is often used in conjunctior, with subsequent

refining processes.

Electron Beam Furnace (EB)

A melting furnace that uses high: -energy electron beams in a vacuum
environment to melt metals into a water-cooled crucible and is especially
useful for titanium and exotic alloys. |

Electroslag Remelt (ESR} |

A consumable electrode remelting process in which an AC current is
passed from an electrode through a/molten slag pool. Molten metal
droplets fall through the slag and solldufy in a water-cooled copper
crucible. This process is utilized to |mprove both the cleanllness and
structure of alfoys. .

’

Exotic Alloys )
The Campany’s classification for its zirconium, niobium and hafnium products.

Flat-Rolled Products
A product form classification that mcludes plate, sheet, strip and Premsmn
Rolled Strip® products. j

Forging Press
A press, usually vertical, used to operate dies to deform metal plastically.
May be mechanically or hydraulncally operated and either closed die for
shaped, part forgings or open die for cogying.

GFM Precision Rotary Forge |
A forging process where rapid simultanecus action of forging hammers
subjects the workpiece to a high rate of deformatlon under uniform
compressive straining. The control and reproducibility of the GFM process
is designed to provide optimum meta!!urglcal consistency.

Grain-QOriented Silicon Electrical Steel

fron-based alloys containing siticon (typically 3.5%) as the major alloying
addition. These steels are used general!y in applications such as power trans-
formers where electrical conductivity and magnetic properties are important.

Hafnium

An exotic alloy obtained as a by-product of zirconium production with out-
standing corrosion resistance and good mechanical properties.

It is added to specialty alloys for use in jet engine parts and as control

rod material in nuclear reactors.

High Performance Metals

A classification that includes the Company's nickel-based and cobalt-based
alloys and superalloys, titanium and titanium alloys, specialty alloys, and
exotic alloy products, primarily in the form of long and tubular products.
These products typically exhibit any of the properties of high temperature
resistance, high strength and high temperature oxidation resistance.

High Value Flat-Rolled Products

A classification that includes the Flat-Rolled Products segment’s Precision
Rolled Strip®, engineered strip, super stainless steel, nickel-based alloy and
superalloy, titanium and titanium-based products, grain-oriented silicon
electrical steel and tool steel. These praducts typically are at the higher
end of the segment’s product price range and are characterized

by direct technical and service relationships with customers.

Ingot

A product form resulting when molten metal is cast into molds, which can
be round, square, or rectangular. Can either be sold in ingot form or
processed further to make other products. ‘

Long Products
A product form classification that includes ingot, billet, bar, rod, wire and
seamnless tubing.

Nickel-Based Superalloys

Nickel alloys, having nickel as the primary constituent, developed for

very high temperature service where relatively high mechanical stresses are
encountered and where high surface stability is frequently required. Typical
applications are aircraft turbine and land-based turbine components.

Niobium

An exotic alloy valued for its strength at extremely high temperatures and
its ability to superconduct, or pass electricity with minimal resistance, at
very low temperatures. It is used in aerospace applications, in supercon-
ducting magrets in MRI {magnetic resonance imaging) equipment, when
alloyed with titanium, and in particle accelerators.

Pickling

The process uses various acids and acid mixtures to remove scale that can
form on specialty metals during processing at elevated temperatures (such
as hot rolling or annealing).

Plasma Arc Melt (PAM)

A melting furnace that is a superior cald-hearth melting process for making
alloyed premium titanium products for jet engine rotating parts, medical
applications, and other critical applications,

Plate
A flat-rolled product that is 3/16 inch (4.76 mm) thick, or greater, and over
10 inches (254 mm} wide.

Precision Rolled Strip® Products

Flat-rofled products including stainless, nickel alloys, titanium and

titanium alloys, and carbon steel under 0.015 inch {0.38 mm) thick and up
to 48 inches (1,219 mm) wide, as well as certain strip products with special
tempers and thicknesses.

Raw Materials !

Used in the production of the Company's specialty metals are scrap
[centaining iron, nickel, chromium, titanium and molybdenurmn), nickel,
titanium sponge, zirconium sand and sponge, ferrachromium, ferrosilicon,
molybdenum and its alloys, ammonium paratungstate and its atloys,
manganese and its alloys, cobalt, niobium, and other alloying materials.

Rod
A long product that is from 0.118 inch (3 mm) to 3/4 inch {19 mm) in diameter.
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x magnification, is used in aircraft structural and jet engine components, medical and dental devices, chemical processing equipment,
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4.4 titanium alloy, pictured here at 5

and many other applications.

Sheet

. A flat-rolled product that is 24 inches (610 mm) and over in width and less

than 3/16 inch {(4.76 mm) thick.

Stainless Steel
A broad classification of iron-based alloys containing at least 10% chromi-

. um, known for excellent corrosion and heat resistance. Austenitic (Chrome-

Nickel) grades contain 18% to 30% chromium and 4% to 20% nickel for
enhanced surface quality and formability and increased corrosion and wear
resistance. These grades are used in appliances, kitchen utensils, processing

" equipment and a variety of industrial applications. Ferritic (Chrome) grades

are non-nickel-bearing and cantain 11% to 17% chromium content for

- greater inherent strength and corrosion resistance than carbon steel. These

grades are often used in automotive exhaust systems.
Strip

CA flat-rolled product 3/8 inch (9.5 mm) to under 24 inches (610 mm) wide and
+ less than 3/16 inch (4.76 mm) thick, See also Precision Rolled Strip®* Products.

' Super Stainless Steel

Stainless steel alloys with significant additions of chremium, nickel, molybde-

" num ar copper. Super stainless steel is used in chemical processing, oil and

gas, marine, heat treating, pollution and waste control industries where there

 are requirements for extra corrosion protection, strength or heat resistance.

Superalloy

; An alloy, usually based on nickel, cobalt or iron, developed for high
- temperature service where relatively severe mechanical stress is

encountered and where high surface stability is frequently required.
Titanium

+ Titanium and its alloys have very high strength-to-weight ratios. At normal

temperatures, they have high resistance to corresion. Used primarily in

. raerospace and chemical processing applications.

‘Titanium Sponge

.Titaniurm sponge is a critical raw material used to produce titanium mill
‘products. ATl produces titanium sponge using the Kroll Process, which

reduces titanium tetrachloride with magnesium. The titanium sponge with
or without the addition of titanium scrap is melted into ingots or slabs.

Tungsten Carbide Graded Powders

Tungsten carbide powder, made by blending with other powder
constituents like cobalt, tantalum carbide, and niobium carbide te obtain
a desired compaosition and carbide grain size. These powders are pressed
to a desired shape and then sintered in the range 1350 degrees to 1500
degrees Centigrade 10 yield a cemented carbide part. w

Tungsten Materials

Include tungsten and tungsten carbide powders, sintered tungsten carbide
preducts and cutting tools for the metalworking, mining, oil and gas, and
other industries requiring tools with extra hardness. ‘

Vacuum Arc Remelt (VAR) !

A consumable remelting process in which a high current DC arc is main-
tained under vacuum hetween an alloy electrode and a molten metal paol
contained in a water-cooled copper crucible. Sequential melting produces
an ingot with good internal structure, good surface finish, and excellent
chemical homogeneity.

Vacuum Induction Melt (VIM)

A melting process that uses an induction furnace inside a vacuum chamber
to melt and cast nickel-based alloys, superalloys, and specialty afloys.

The process is normally used for grades which require a high alloy content,
precise chemistry control and low impurity levels. '

Wire
A long product that is from 0.030 inch (0.76 mm) to 1/4 inch (6.35 mm} in
diameter, in round, square, octagonal or hexagonal cross-sections.

Zirconium
An exotic alloy valued for its strength, high ¢orresion resistance, and low
thermal neutron abserption. Applications include nuclear reactors, marine
vessels, commercial power generation, and those requiring contact with
strong acids and basic environments.

!
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CORPORATE SELEF-GOVERNANCE

1l

Our Commitment to Integrity

We at ATl are commﬂ:ted to a strong self—governance program. We have long believed that honesty and integrity
are vitally important to the success of our Company. The Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines along with
the charters of the Board committees provide the framework for the governance of Allegheny Technologies.
These Guidelines refle'ct the Board's commitment to monitor the effectiveness of decision making at the Board
and management ievels, W|th a view toward achieving ATl's strategic objectives. The Guidelines are available on
our website, www. alleghenytechnolognes com.

Our Corporate Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics apply 1o all directors, officers, employees, agents and
consultants and set forth clear standzrds to guide the conduct of our daily affairs. Our commitment is to reflect, in
each of our actions, th!e highest standards of ethical performance in our dealings with our Board of Directors, stock-
holders, fellow employees, customers, suppliers, creditors, government agencies and authorities, and the public.

Qur self-governance efforts incorporate long-standing training programs that address a myriad of subjects
including antitrust, ethlcs, environmental compliance, export comphance and trading in securities, as well as

training in various human resources issues, including safety.

In order to monitor the effectiveness of our compliance efforts, we perform audits throughout the organization
to confirm adherences‘to Company policies and procedures and financial controls.
P '

L . ) .. ! T
We understand that cFEonfldence in our Company is in large measure dependent upon the reliability and
transparency of our financial statements, including maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, our commitment to integrity in financial reporting recognizes our responsibility for providing timely
information that fairly reflects our financial position and results of operations.

i .
We encourage employees to communicate concerns before they become problems. Our corporate ombudsman
and the ethics officers at our operating companies provide confidential resources for employees to surface their
concerns without fear of reprisal. Building and maintaining trust, respect and communication among our

employees are essential to the effectiveness of our self-governance program.

ol | T

Rich Harshman

Doug Kittenbrink

Pat Hasse} ! Jack Shifling

L wite

Jon Walton

R} i
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
’ Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

{Mark One) '
%] Annual report pursuant te Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
O Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
for the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-12001
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware - 25-1792394
{State or other jurisdiction of incorporation : (L.R.S. Employer
' or organization) Identification Number)
1000 Six PPG Place, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222-5479
(Address of principal executive offices) . (ZipCode)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (412) 394-2800
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class - . Name of each exchange on which registered-
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value New York Stock Exchange
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange -

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is well known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes @B No 0O .

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.
Yes 0 No ©

Indicate by.check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding |2 months, and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. .
Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to liem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. &

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer, See definition of “accelerated filer” and

" “large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fiter [7] - . Accelerated filer O] - Non-accelerated filer U

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes [0 No & ’

On February 14, 2007, the Registrant had ou_tsumding 101,953.940 shares of its Common Stock.

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s voting stock held by non-affiliates at June 30, 2006 was approximately $6.82 billion, based on the closing price per
share of Common Stock on that date of $69.24 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange, and at February 14, 2007 was approximately $10.0 billion, based on the
closing price per share of Common Stock on that date of $100.69 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. Shares of Common Stock known by the Registrant to
be beneficially owned by directors and officers of the Registrant subject to the reporting and other requirements of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act™), are not included in the computation. The Registrant, however, has made no determination that such persons are “affiliates” within the

meaning of Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
Documents Incorporated By Reference

Selected portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 2, 2007 are incorporated by reference into Part 11§ of this Report.
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PART I
Item 1. Business
The Company

Allegheny Technologies Incorporated (ATI) is a Delaware corporation with its principal executive offices located at 1000 Six PPG
Place, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222-5479, telephone number (412) 394-2800." Allegheny Technologies was formed on August 15,
1996 as a result of the combination of Alleghcny Ludlum Corporation-and Teledyne, Inc. References to “Allegheny Technologies,”
“ATIL” the “Company,” the “Registrant,” “we,” “our” and “us” and similar terms mean Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and its
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requlres :

Our Business

Allegheny Technologies is one of the largest and most diversified specialty metals producers in the world. We use innovative
technologies to offer growing global markets a wide range of specialty metals solutions. Our products include titanium and titanium
alloys, nickel-based alloys and superalloys, zirconium, hafnium and niobium, stainless and specialty steel alloys, grain-oriented silicon
electrical steel-and too! steels, tungsten-based materials, and forgings and castings. Our specialty metals are produced in a wide range
of alloys and product forms and are selected for use in environments that demand metals having exceptional hardness, toughness,
strength, resistance to heat, corrosion or abrasion, or a combmauon of these characteristics.

We are Bmldmg the World's Best Specialty Merals Company™ by focusmg our technologlcal and manufacmnng capabilities to

serve global end use markets with highly diversified and specialized product offerings. Key end use markets for our products include:

Aerospace and Defense. We are a world leader in the production of premium titanium alloys, nickel-based and cobalt-based alloys
and superalloys, and vacuum-melted specialty alloys used in the manufacture of both commercial and military jet engines, as well'as
replacement parts for those engines. We also produce titanium alloys, vacuum-melted specialty alloys, and high-strength stamless
alloys for use in commercial and mlhtary airframe components,

Titanium and titanium alloys are critical metals in aerospace and defense applications. Titanium and titanium alloys possess an
extraordinary -combination of properties, mcludmg superior strength-to-weight ratio, good elevated 'temperature resistance, low
coefficient of thermal expansion, and extreme corrosion resistance. These metals are used to produce jet engine components such as

blades, vanes, discs, and casings, and airframe components such as structural members, landing gear, hydraulic systems, and fasteners.”

The latest and next-generation airframes and jet engines use even more titanium and titanium alloys in component parts in order to
minimize weight and maximize fuel efficiency.

Our nickel-based alloys and superalloys and specialty alloys are also widely used in aerospace and defense applications. Nickel-
based alloys and superalloys remaif extremely strong at high temperatures and resist degradation under extreme conditions. Typical
aerospace applications for nickel-based alloys and superalloys include jet engine shaﬂs discs, blades, vanes, rings and casings.

QOur specialty alloys include vacuum-metted maraging steels used in the manufacture of alrcraft landing gear and structural
components as well as jet engine components, :

We continuously seek to develop new alloys to better serve the needs of this end use market. For example, we have developed ATI
425™ titanium, a new cold-rollable alloy, as a lower cost alternative to the most popular high-strength titanium alloys, for use in
airframe components. We have also developed Allvac® 718 Plus® ailoy, a new nickel-based superalloy that can withstand higher
temperatures than the standard 718 superalioy, for use in the next generation of fuel efficient jet engines. Demand for our products by
the aerospace and defense market has increased significantly over the last several years, and we expect it to remain strong and
continue to grow into the next decade,

Chemical Process Industry and Oil and Gas. Oil and gas prices have reached record levels over the past two years, resulting in
increased global oil and gas exploration and development. The environments in which.oil and gas can be found in commercial
quantities have become more challenging, involving deep-offshore wells, high pressure and temperature conditions, sour wells and
unconventional sources, such-as oil sands. Sustained high oil and gas prices have also led to increased interest in biofuels, such as
ethanol, as an alternative to, or to supplement, gasoline and other fossil fuels, and in liquefied natural gas (LNG). '
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All of our busmess segments produce metals that are critical to thé chemical process industry and oil and gas mdustry Our
specialty metals; 1ncludrng tttamum and titanium alloys nickel-based alloys stainless steel alloys and other specialty alloys, have the
strength and corrosron resrstant properttes necessary in the chemrcal process industry, and. .global demand for these materials has been
‘increasing, partrcularly in raptdly growmg industrial markets i Asia. We also provide advanced specialty metals used in offshore oil
and gas production, 1nc1ud1ng dffshore piping systems and subsea oil and gas fields: . l

\ I I l : ;

We continuously seek to develop new alloys to better serve the needs of this end use market. For example, we have developed AL
20037 |ean duplex a]loy as a illow tcost substitute for type 316L starnlessisteel AL 2003™ lean duplex stainless, AL 2205™!duplex
stainless, and AL- 6XN superaustemtrc stainless steel in strip and plate product forms are NORSOK qualified. ATI’s titanium
castings are alsolqualrf' 1ed under NpRSOK 'standards, The NORSOK standards are developed by the Norweg1an petroleum tndustry
and are intended to 1dent1fy metals used in oil and gas applications that are’ safe and cost effective. |

l

Our specralty metals are used m the manufacturing and storage ¢f brofuels parttcularly ethanol. Demand for our stamless and
specialty alloys products fcr‘ethanol applications has recently increased srgmﬁcantly and we expect demand to stay strong for the next
several years. . ': ,

. v v T !
[ -

! ) . 1 !
1, Tungsten-is the most dense and heat resistant metal commercially available. One appltcauon for our tungsten products is orl and
gas drill bit inserts! As drrllmg me‘t‘hods including -directional drilling, become more complex our advanced tungsten carblde and
dramond matrrx materrals artlz often utilized in order to enable faster drilling and longer drill'bit life. |
t . . | . L

Electrical Energy Ourlspecmlty metals are widely used in the global electric power generatton and distribution mdustry We

" - believe that U.S. and European bnvrronmental policies and the electrification of rapidly developing Asian-countries will likely result in

F4

contrnutng strong demand for our spemalty metals products that we sell for,use in this mdustry
l | ' E v b

Coal-fired power plants account for more than one-half of the electricity produced i in the United. States. Under the Clean Air
Interstate Rule adopted by the U S. Envrronmental Protection Agency (EPA), power plants in several ¢astern states will be required, in
stages through 2015, to dramatrcally1 reduce emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrous oxide generated from the burning of coal. Most.of
these plants will be required to install additional filtration systems, or scrubbers which are made of specialty metals we produce on
their smokestacks to complyI iwrth th¢ rute. Demand for our specialty metals for pollutron control systems is also significant in growing
industrial economres mcludmg lChrna We supply a broad range of alloysl including many, proprietary alloys, for these appltcatrons
AL-6XN% alloy, a 6 molybdenum super -austenitic alloy, is used in absorber towers, piping, damper doors, ducting and vessels The
nickel-based AL 227 and AL 2'.t‘6TM alloys are used in the absorber inlet, absorber outlet ductmg, damper door seals, and expansron
“joints. - . : . ] - : . - . t

b l : ] X + ) |-

~ For electrical power generanon our specialty metals and corrosion resistant alloys (CRAs} are used;m coal, nuclear, natural g gas
and wind power appltcatrons Y lnlcoa] fired plants, our CRAs are used for pipe, tube, and heat exchanger applications in water systems
in addition to the pollutron Control $crubbers mentioned in. the preceding! paragraph. For nuclear power plants, we are .an mdustry
pioneer in reactor-grade zrrcdmllm and. hafniurm alloys nuclear fuel claddthg and structural components. Qur CRAs are also used in
walter systems for~ nuclear power plthts We are a technology leader for large diameter nickel-based superalloys used in natural gas
turbines. We are onelof a few;producers of very large ductile iron castings used for wind turbines. ! l

A l x‘u.i . l : l

For electrical power drstrrbutton our grain- orlented s:ltcon electrical steel is used in large and small power transformers where
electrical conductivity and magnettc properties are important. We believe that demand for these advanced specialty metals is in the
early. stage of an expected long I?growth cycle as. developing countries, such as China and Indra electrify and build electrical power
distribution grlds i l I} L n : | _ . l

¥
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Medrcal'. ATl s advanced specialty metals are used in medical device products that save and enhance the quality of lives. -

. | ! . .

Our zirconium! nrobtum tnamum land cobalt-based alloys are used for knees hips and other prosthettc devices. These replacement
devices offer the potennal of lastmg much longer than previous implant opttons 1
| Co

Our blocompattble nickel- tttamum shape memory alloy is used for stents to support collapsed or clogged blood vessels. Reduced

in diameter for msertron these stpnts expand to the ortgmal tube-like shaperdue to the metal’s superelasticity. Our ultra fine drameter

(0.002 inch/0.051 mm) trtanrum wire s’ ‘used for screens to prevent blood clots from entering critical areas of the body. In addition, our
titanium bar and wire are used to makf surgical screws for bone repairs. . - . .‘
l * - I

v !
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Manufacturers. of magnetic- resonance imaging (MRI) devices rely on. our niobium superconducting wire to help produce
electromagnetic fields that allow physicians to safely scan the body 3 sof't tissue.. In addition, our tungsten heavy alloy materials are
used for shielding applications in MRI devices. -

Enhancing and Expanding Our Manufacturing Capabilities and Capacity. Demand for our products from the aerospace and
defense, chemical process industry and oil and gas, electrical energy, and medical markets has increased significantly over the last
several years, and we expect demand to remain strong and continue to grow into the next decade. We are currently undertaking a
multi-phase program to enhance and expand our capabilities and capacities to produce premium specialty metals aimed at these key
growth markets. Through 2009, we intend to spend at least $925 million of internally generated funds to renew and expand our annual
titanium sponge production capabilities to approximately 44 million pounds; expand our premium titanium alloy melt and remelt
capacity; expand our nickel-based alloy and superalloy melt and remelt capacity; expand our titanium and specialty alloy plate
capacity; and expand our premium titanium and nickel-based superalloy forging capacity. These invesiments strengthen ATI's
leadership position in the production of technically demanding specialty metals.

Business Segments

We operate in the, following three business segments, which accounted for the following percentages of total revenues of $4.9

billion, $3.5 billion, and $2.7 billion for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively: L.

: ' 2006 2005 2004
High Performance MEtalS ...........oiiieiereeriiet e erermas oo s oot esm e s e ea e en e eb e e b et nr e e s 37% 35% 29%
Flat-ROled ProdUCLS ........covveieeeeeveveceeetie e stecctsssessaersreseeerne s ressnensssenessessoes e etaat et b ae e ae s et e e e sneaneens 54% 54% 60%
Engineered Products ..., OO OO U UOO SRRSO 9% L1% 11%

High Performance Metals Se_gme_r_rt

Qur High Performance Metals segment produces, converts and distributes a wide range of high performance alloys, including nickel-
and cobalt-based alloys and superalloys, titanium and titanium-based alloys, exotic metals such as zirconium, hafnium, niobium,
nickel-titanium, and their related alloys, and other specialty’ metals, prrmarrly in long product’ forms such as ingot, billet, bar, rod, wire,
and seamless tube. We are mtegrated from raw materials (sponge) to melt, remelt, and finish processing in our titanium and titanium
alloy, and zirconium ‘and hafnium alloy products. The major cnd markets served by our High Performance Metals Segment are
aerospace and defense, chemical process industry, oil and gas medical and electrical energy. Most of the products in our High
Performance Metals segment are sold directly to end-use customers. A significant portion of our High Performance Metals segment
products are sold under multi-year agreements. The operating units in this segment are ATI Allvac, ATI Allvac Lid (U.K.) and ATI
Wah Chang,

- Fl far—Rr)Ifed Products Segment ‘
Our Flat-Rolled Products segment produces converts and distributes stainless steel, nickel- based alloys, and titanium and titanium-
based a]loys in a variety of product forms, including plate, sheet, engineered strip, and Precision Rolled Strip® products as well as
grain-oriented silicon electrical steel, and tool steels. The major end markets for our flat-rolled products are chemical process mdustry,
oil and gas, electrical energy, aulomotwe food equipment and appliances, machine and cutting tools, construction and mining,
aerospace and defense, and electromcs communication equipment and computers. The operations in this segment are ATI Allegheny
Ludlum, our 60% interest in the Chinese joint venture company known as Shanghai STAL Precision Stainless Steel Company Limited
(STAL), and our 50% interest in the industrial titanium joint venture known as Uniti LLC. The remaining 40% interest in STAL is
owned by the Baosteel Group, a state authorized investment company whose equity securities are publicly traded in the People’s
Republic of China. The remaining 50% interest in Uniti LLC is held by Verkhnaya Salda Metallurgical Produétion Association
(VSMPO), a Russian producer of titanium, aluminum, and specialty steel products.

Stainless steel, nickel-based alloys and titanium sheet products are used in a wide variety of industrial and consumer applications.
In 2006, approximately 70% by volume of our sheet products were sold to independent service centers, which have slitting, cutting or
other processing facilities, with the remainder sold directly to end-use customers.
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"Products, ATI Portland Forge ATI Castmg Service and Rome Metals. |

! L " -

i
i.

Engineered stnp and very tlhm Precision Rolled Strip® products are used by customers to fabricate a variety of products prltmanly

in the automotive, construction andI electronics markets. In 2006, approxrmately 90% by volume of our engineered strip and Precision

Rolled Strip products wereisold d1rect]y 10 end-use customers or through our own dlstnbutlon network, with the remainder! ‘sold'to

independent servllce centers| l \ ‘ ;

RS v : t . R . ‘ oo " R

Stainless steel, nickel- based alloy and titanium plate products are prlmanly used in mdustnal markets. In 20006, approx1mate|ly 60%

by volume of our plate products were sold to 1ndependent servrce centers, with the remamder sold directly to end -use customers
| , . - - | . B 4 '
Grain-oriented silicon electncal steel is used in power transformersiwhere eleetneal conductrvrty and magnetlc propertres are

1,
important. Near]y all of our gram -otiented 51lu.on electncal steel products are sold dlrect!y to end-use customers. l
- l

h

Tool steels are used for hand tools and for cutting, shaping, forming, blanking, and drilling of materials. Included in this czlategory

li
are our armor materials, whlich are desrgned to resist penetration by ballistic projectiles and to resist blasts. |

Engineered Producls Segment ' '
| !

The principal busmess of lour Engmeered Products segment includes the production of . tungsten powder, tungsten heavy alloys
tungsten carbide mater1als and Lﬂl‘blde cutting tools, We are now mtegrated from the raw materials (ammonium paratungstate (APT))
to the manufacture of' ﬁmsl'lted cutt1ng tools. The segment also produces carbon alloy steel impression die forgings, and targe grey and -
ductile iron eastmgs and provrdes precision metals. processing services. The operating units in this segment are ATI Metalworkmg
i
|

We produce a ‘line oft s1ntlered tungsten carbide products that approach diamond hardness for industrial markets inc¢luding
automotive, chemical process mdustry, oil and gas, machine and cutting tools aerospace, construction and mining, and other markets
requiring tools with extra hardnessl Technical developments related to ceram:cs coatmgs and other disciplines are mcorporated in
these products. We also produee tungsten and tungsten carblde powders. 5 ) . .

{ 1.
] ! i

1 i ;

l
We forge earbon alloy steel‘ into ﬁnlshed forms that are used prlmartly in the transportatlon and construction equipment markets

1
- We also ‘cast grey-and duetlle iron ‘metals used in the transportatlon wind power generation and automotive markets. We have

precision metals ] processmg t.aplabllltles that enable us to provide process lservwes for most high- value metals from ingots to ﬁmshed
product forms Such servrces mclude grinding, pollshmg, blastmg, cuttmg, ﬂattemng, and ultrasomc testing,

Competltlon l '- X .
t I ! i

—_ e m——t

Markets for our products and{services in each of our three business segments are highly competitive. We compete w1th many
producers and distributors whol dependmg on the product involved, range from large diversified enterprises to smaller eompames
specializing in partlcular products Factors that affect our competitive position are the quality of our products services and dellvery
eapabllmes our capabrlltresito |lproduce a wide range of specialty matertals in various alloys and product forms, our technological
capabilities mcludlng our resea“rch and development efforts our marketmg strategies, the prlces for our products and serv1ces our
manufacturmg costs, and 1nclustry manufacturmg capac1ty . l . _ { B

We faee eompetmon froln both domestic and foreign companles some of whlch are govemment sub51d|zed In 1999 the Unlted'
States imposed anttdumpmg and countervatlmg duties on dumnped and subsidized imports of stainless steel sheet and strip in corls and
stainless steel plate in coils; 'from eompames in ten foreign countries. Thes‘e duties were rev1ewed by the U.S. Commerce Department
and the U.S. Intel'natlonal Trade Commtssron in 2005 and generally remam in effect. We continue to monitor unfairly traded 1mport5

1
from foreign produeers for approprlate action. : :
4 . ! J
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High Performance Metals segment — Major Competitors

Nrckel—based alloys and superallays and specialty steel ah‘oys

PR

. Carpenter Technology Corporatlon

. Special Metals Corporation, a_ PCC company .

ThyssenKrupp VDM GmbH a company of ThyssenKrupp Stamlcss (Gerrnany)

, Trtamum and rrtamum-based aﬂoys

L. Trtamum Metals Corporatron .

1

. RMl Titanium, an RTI lntemanonal Metals Company

. VSMPO AVISMA (Russra)

.f "1

Exonc alioys

. Cezus, a group member of AREVA (France)

e HC Stark !

. -t +

ot Westem ercomum Plant of Westmghouse Electnc Company, owned by Toshiba Corporatlon >

AT R
Tt

Flat—RoHed Producrs segment — Major Compemars

S tar'nless steel

. AK Steel Corporatlon .
.. North Amerlcan Stainiless (NAS), owned by Acerinox S. A. {Spain) ~

Ootokumpu Stainless Plate Products owned by Qutokumpu Qyj (Finland)

wl Wt - T

. 'Imports from™’
- Arcelor Mltta] (France, Belglum and Germany)
L ‘Mexmox S. A de C.V., group member of ThyssenKrupp AG
. — ThyssenKrupp AG (Germany)-
"~ TaChen Ihtemetioﬁal Corrao‘rgrion (Taiwan)
T \'/:arioué Chinese produéers 7
E nginéér:'ed Products segment — Major C ompetitors
TI'ung:rren'and tungsten carbide products
+ . Kennametal Inc. - |
-" Isearfflsrael)
. Sandv1k AB (Sweden)
. Seco Too]s AB (Sweden) owned by Sandvik A.B.-
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Raw Materials and Suppli'es

Substantially all raw mater}als and supplles required in the manufacture of our products are available from more than one suppher and
the sources and’ ava1lab|I|ty of raw materials essential to our busingsses are adequate. The principal raw materials we use in the
production of our specialty rn'etals1 are scrap (including iron-, nickel-, chromium-, titanium-, molybdenum-, and tungsten- bearmg
scrap), nickel, titanium spong'e zirconium sand and sponge, ferrochromium, ferrosrhcon molybdenum and molybdenumlalloys

f 14 4
ammoniurn pararungstate manganese and manganese alloys, cobalt, n1ob1um vanadium and other alloymg rnatenals ©

)
Purchase prtces of certam principal raw materials have been volatile. As a result our operating results may be subject to sngmﬁcant

. fluctuation. We use raw matenals surcharge and index mechanisms to olffset the impact of increased raw material costs; however

competmve factors in the marlltetplace may limit our ability to institute such mechanisms, and there can be a delay between the
increase in the pnce of raw. maltenals and the realization of the beénefit of such mechanisms. For example since we- generallyF use in
excess of 85 million pounds of. mckel each year, a hypothetical increase of $1.00 per pound in nickel prices would result in increased
costs of approximately $85 m1lllon IrWe also use in excess of 800 mll]an pounds of ferrcus scrap annually in the production|of our
flat-rolled products! so that a hypothetlca] increase of $0.01 per-pound 1n ferrous scrap prices would result in increased costs of
approximately $8 millign, ll . ’ o i

While we are 1ncreasmg ourlmanufactunng capacity to produce tltamml'n sponge, the major raw material for our titanium products,
a portion of our needs, together wuh ‘certain other raw materials, such as mckel cobalt, and'ferrochromium, are available to us and our
specialty metals mdustry colmpemors primarily from foreign sources. Some of these forergn sources are located in countries that may
be subject to unstable pohtlcal and economlc conditions, which mlght dtsrupt supplies or affect the price ‘of these materials, P

5 - !

We purchase :our n1ckellrequ1rements principally from producers m:Australla Canada, Norway; Russia, and the Dordmlcan

Republic. Zirconium sponge is purchased from a source in France, while znrcomum sand is purchased from both U. S. and Australian

. sources. Cobalt i3 purchased pr1man1y from producers .in Canada, More' than 80% of the world’s reserves of ferrochromlum are

F8

located in South Afnca Zlmbabwe lAlbanra and Kazakhstan.' We also purchase titanium sponge from sources in Kazakhstan Japan
and Russia. - ‘ |1 : ; . . v : . S
I : . b b
Export Sales and Forelgn ?peratlons ' . ) SRR R
| ‘ ' | : . :
Direct mtemanonal sales represlentetd approxnnately 24% of our total annual sales in 2006, 25% of our total sales in 2005, and
approximately 20% of our total sales in 2004. These figures include drrectlexport sales by our U.S.-based operations to customers’ in
foreign countries, Wthh acclounBed fpr approximately 16% of our tota] salés in each of 2006 and 2005, and 12% of our total sales in
2004. Our overseas sales, markeltmg!and distribution efforts are” aided bylour international marketmg and distribution offices, ATI
Europe, ATI Europe D1str1bunon and ATI Asia, or by independent representatwes located at various locanons throughout the world
- (- '
In 2006, our sales in the UnrtLd States and Canada represented 76% and 3%, respectwely, of total 2006 sales. Within Europe our

- sales to the Umted I(mgdoml Ggrma]ny, and France represented 4%, 3% and 3%, respectively, of total 2006 sales. Within Asra our

2006 sales to China and Japan reilyreseinted 4% and 1%, respectively,.of total sales. |
l 4

Qur Allvac Ltd business has manufactunng capabrlmes in the United Kingdom. Our Metalworkmg Products business, which has

manufacturing capabllmes m th“e U|mted Kingdom and Switzerland, sells high precision threading, milling, boring and. dnlhng

components, tungsten carblde burrs, totary tooling and specialty abrasive wheels and discs for the European market from locations in

the United Kingdom, Swnzerland Germany, France, Italy and Spain. Our STAL joint venture in the Peop]e s, Republic of Chma

" produces Precision Rolied Stnp products which enables us to offer these 1products more effectively. to markets in China and other

Asian countries. Our Uniti LLC joint ‘venture allows us to offer titanium products o mdustnal markets more effectlvely worldwrde
| l { ; - ‘
Backlog, Seasonallty and Cycllcallty : . l .
|
Our backlog of conf' rmed orders was, approximately $1.2 billion at December 31, 2006 and $1.0 billion at December 31, 2005 We
expect that approx1malely 92% of conﬁrmed orders on hand at December 31 2006 will be filled during the year ending December 31,
2007. Backlog of confirmed orders of our High Performance Metals segment was approxnmately $730 million at December 31, 2006
and $615 million at December 31l 2005 We expect that approximately 86% of the confirmed orders on hand at December 31, 2006
for this segment will be filled' durtnglthe year ending December 31, 2007. Backlog of confirmed orders of our Flat-Rolled Products
segment was approxtmately $35:’:IE mlll]0ﬂ at December 31, 2006 and $245 ITll]]lDl’l at December 31, 2005. We expect that all of the
confirmed orders on hand at December 31, 2006 for this’ segment will be filled during the year ending December 31, 2007. l

';l‘ : 1




Generally, our sales and operatlons are not seasonal However, demand for cur products is cyclical over longer periods because
specialty metals customers operate in cyclical industries and are subject to changes in general economic conditions and other factors
both external and internal to those industries.

Research, Development and Technical Services. .
We believe that our research and development capabilities give ATI an advantage in developing new products and manufacturing
| processes that contribute to the profitable growth potential- of our businesses on a long-term basis. We conduct research and
development at our various operating locations both for our own account and, on a limited basis, for customers on a contract basis.
Research and development expenditures for each of our three segments for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
i included the following: o .

(In millions} ) 2006 2005 2004

Company-Funded:
High Performance Metals $ 593 4935 47
Flat-Rolled Products 1.5 14 1.6
Engineered Products 2.2 2.1 1.9

$ 963 843 82

Customer-F'unded: ' )
" High Performance Metals o ‘ . $ 023% 15% 13
Flat—RolledrPro'durcts ' ' : o ’ - 0.3 02 04

0.5% 178 1.7

Total'Research and Development ' ’ $ 10.1 $ 10.1 'S 9.9

_ Our research, development and technical service activities are closely interrelated and are directed toward cost reduction and
process improvement, process control, quality assurance and control, system development, the development of new manufacturing
methods, the improvement of existing manufacturing methods, the improvement of existing products, and the development of new
products.

We own hundreds of United States patents, many of which are also filed under the patent laws of other nations. Although these
patents, as well as our numerous trademarks, technical information, license agreements, and other intellectual property, have been and
are expected to be of value, we believe that the loss of any smgle such item or techmcally related group of such items would not
materially affect the conduct of our business.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

We are subject to various domestic and international environmental laws and regulations that govern the discharge of pollutants, and
disposal of wastes, and which may require that we investigate and remediate the effects'of the release or disposal of materials at sites
associated with past and present operations. We could incur substantial cleanup costs, fines, civil or criminal sanctions, third party
property damage or personal injury claims as a result of violations. or liabilities under these laws or non- compliance with
environmental permits required at our facilities. We are currently involved in the investigation and remediation of a number of our
current and former sites as well as third party sites.

We consider environmental compliance to be an integral part of our operations. Environmental compliance and protectlon is addressed
in our Corporate Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics and separate Environmental Guidelines that require compliance with all
federal, state, regional and local environmental laws and regulations. Each operating company has an environmental management
system that includes mechanisms for regularly evaluating environmental compliance and managing changes in business operations
while assessing environmental impact.

Our Corporate Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics also address compliance with employment and workplace safety laws, and
describe our commitment to equal opportunity and fair treatment of employees.
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Employees Do .‘} i : T o ) o L i .
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We have approxrmately 9500 full time employees A portion of our workforce is. covered by various collective balrgammg
agreements, prmcrpally with the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber Manufactunng, Encrgy, Allied Industrial and!Service
Workers lntemanonal Umon”(“USW") mcludmg approximately 2, 800 Allegheny Ludium production, office and mamtenance
employees covered by collecttve bargaining agreements that are effective through June 2007, approximately 340 Allvac Albany,
Oregon (Oremet) employees covei'ed by a collective bargaining agreen‘lent that is effective through June 2007, approxrmately 600
Wah Chang employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement that ‘continues through March' 2008, approxrmately 270
‘employees at our Castmg Servrce facrhty in LaPorte, Indiana, ‘covered by a collective bargatnmg agreement that is effective through
December 2007, and approxrmate]y 200 employees:at our Portland Forge facility in ‘Portland, Indiana, covered by’ cdllectlve
bargaining agreemems wrth three umons that are effective through April 2008. In February 2007, we announced that the USW and
“Allegheny . Ludlum and Allvac S‘Albany, Oregon titanium opcrattons had reached tentative four -year collective bargammg
agreements, subject to ratrﬁcanon by the union membership. If ratified, thle new agreements will expire on June 30, 201 I | _
[

i
1

l i t 1 k )

‘Our Internet webSIte address i is http /fwww alleghenytechnologies.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current repons on Form 8- K and amendments to those reports ﬁled or furnished pursuant:to*Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as well as proxy and information statements and other information that we file, are avallable free of
charge through our Internet websrte as soon as reasonably practicable af’ter we electromcally file such material with, or furnish such
matetial to, the’ United SlatestSecunnes and Exchange Commission. Our Internet website”and the content contained therem or
connected thereto dre not tntended tlo be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10- K You may read and copy materials we.file
with the SEC at the SEC’ s1 Publle Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washmgton DC|20549. You may obtain 1nforrnat1od on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an [nternet websrte at
http://www.sec.gov which c[ontams reports, proxy and information statements and other mformatron that we file electronrcally w1th
the SEC. ‘ s ' ok
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Available lnformatlon :l
|
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Principal Executive Offi cers of the Registrant* "

Pr1nc1pal executtve ofﬁcers ’of t}he Company as of February 14 2007 are a% follows:

e ] . R

I

!

, [
4 e - i
L

Name Age” Tltle
. — 5 . — = .
L. Patrick Hassey '? |‘ ’ 61  Chairman, Pre51dent and Ch1ef Executlve Officer and Director |
Richard ). Harshi‘nan N 50  Executive Vice: Pres1dent Finance and Chief Fmancral Officer I
Douglas A. Kittenbrink ~ *; l 51  Executive Vice President, ATI Business System and Group Presrdent
' : Engineered Products Segment
Jack W.Shilling, || ‘ b 63 . Executive.Vice Presrdent Corporate Development and Chief Technical Ofﬁcer

JonD. Walton + ' :- | 64 . Executive Vice President, Human Resources, Chief Legal and Compltance

- . -, ;; . _ : Officer, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, | .

Dale G. Reid . , 51 _ Vice Presrdcnt Controller Chief Accountmg, Ofﬁcer and Treasurer ]

§ S 1’ i : : Lo : o

H = . . ‘

Such officers are subyect 0 Ihé reporting and other requirements of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, - ‘ : . i

L

*

. . ; : ' :
I i i
Set forth below are descnptrons of the business background for the past ﬁve years of the prmc1pa1 ot”f'tcers of the Company ' 1

.| . e

L. Patrick Hassey has been Presrdent and Chief Execunve Ofﬁcer s1nce October 1, 2003. He was elected to the Company’s'Board
of Directors in July 2003 and has served as Chairman since May 2004, Prtor to this position, he worked as an outside’ manag‘ement
consultant to Allegheny Technologles executive management team. Mr. Hassey was Executive Vice President and a member|of the
corporate executive: commrttee of Alcoa Inc. at the time of his early reurement in February 2003. He had served as Executive Vice -
President of Alcoa and Group President of Alcoa [ndustrial Components from May 2000 to, October 2002. Prior to May 2000 he
served as ExecutlveiVme Prlesldent of Alcoa and President of Alcoa Europe Inc. .

Richard J. Harshman has served as Executive Vice President, Fmance since October 2003 and Chief Financial Ofﬁcerl since
December 2000. :Mr. Harshman was Senior Vice President, Finance from December 2001 'to October 2003 and Vice Presrdent
Finance from December 2000 to December 20411, Previously, he had served in 2 number of financial management roles for Allegheny
Technologles Incorporated and Teledyne Inc. '

ol | |
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‘Douglas A. Kittenbrink has served as Executive Vice President, ATI Business System and Group President, Engineered Products
Segment since October 2003. Mr. Kittenbrink was Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from July 2001 to October
12003 and served as President of Allegheny Ludlum from April 2000 to November 2002. Effective March 1, 2007, he. will serve as
1 Executwe Vice President, Corporate Planning and Intematlonal Business Development. -

l JacR W. Shilling has served as Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and Chief Technical Officer since October 2003.
1 Dr. Shilling was Executive Vice President, Strategic Initiatives and Technology and Chief Technology Officer from July 2001 to
October 2003. He served as Prestdent of the High Performance Metals Segment from April 2000 to July 2001. Dr. Sh:llmg has
announced his retirement, effective March 31, 2007.

Jon D. Walton has been Executive Vice President, Human Resources, Ch:ef Legal and Compllanee Officer, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary since October 2003. Mr. Walton was Senior Vice President, Chief Legal and Administrative Officer from July
2001 to October 2003. Previously, he was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary.

Dale G. Reid has served as Vice President, Controller, Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer since December 2003. Mr. Reid
was Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer from December 2000 through November 2003. g

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are mherent risks and uncertainties associated with our business that could adversely affect our operating performance and
financial condition. Set forth below are descriptions of those risks and uncertainties that we currently believe to be material, but the
risks and uncertainties described. are not the only risks and uncertainties that could affect-our business.-See the discussion under
“Forward Looking Statements” in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Anatysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
in this Annuat Report on Form 10-K. : :

Cyclical Demand for Products. The cyclical nature of the industries in which our customers operate causes demand for our
products to be cyclical, creating uncertainty regarding future profitability. Various changes in general economic conditions affect the
industries in which.our customers operate. These changes include decreases in the rate of consumption or use of our customers’
products due to economic downturns. Other factors causing fluctuation in our customers’ positions are changes in market demand,
lower overall pncmg due to domestic and international overcapacity, currency fluctuations, lower priced 1mp0rts and increases in use
or decreases in prices of substitute materials, As a result of these factors, our profi tabihty has been and may in the future be subject to
t 51gn1ﬁcant fluctuation.

Product ‘Pricing. From time-lo-time, intense competition-and excess manufacturing capacity have resulted in reduced prices,
excluding raw material -surcharges, for many of our products. These factors have had and may have an adverse impact on our
revenues, operatmg results and financial condition. -

Although inflationary trends in recent years have been moderate, during the same period certain critical raw material costs, such as
nickel and titanium sponge, and scrap containing iron; nickel, and titanium have been volatile and at historically high levels. While we
are able to mitigate some of the adverse impact of rising raw material costs through raw material surcharges or indices.to customers,
rap1d increases in raw material costs may adversely affect our results of operanons

.
.

~ We change pnces on certain of our products from time-to-time. The ability to implement price increases is dependent on market
conditions, economic factors, raw material costs and avaitability, competitive factors, operating costs and other factors, some of which
are beyond our control. The benef‘ ts of any price increases may be delayed due to long manufacturing lead times and the terms of
existing contracts. .

Risks Associated with Commercigl Aerospace. A significant portion of the sales of our High Performance Metals segment
represents products sold to customers in the commercial aerospace industry. The commercial acrospace industry has historically been
cyclical due to factors both external and internal to the airline industry. These factors include general economic conditions, airline
profitability, consumer demand for air travel, varying fuel and labor costs, price competition, and international and domestic political

conditions such as military conflict and the threat of terrorism. The length and degree of cyclical fluctuation are influenced by these
factors and therefore are difficult to predict with certainty. Demand for our products in this segment is subject to these cyclical trends.
For example, the average price per pound for our titanium mill products was $11.89 for the period 2002 through 2004, was $22.75 in
2005, and was $33.83 in 2006, and the average price per pound for our nickel-based and specialty alloys was $7.19 for the period
2002 through 2004, was $11.25 in 2005, and was $14.35 in 2006. A downturn in the commercial acrospace industry would adversely
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affect the prices at whtch|we are able to sell these and other products and our results of operatlons busmess and financial condition
could be matenally adversely affected -
' L]

Rrsks Assocrated wrlh Strategrc Capital Prryec(s. From time-to- ttme we undertake strateglc capital projects in order to expand
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. and upgrade our facilities and|operattonal capabilities. For instance, in 2005 and 2006 we'announced major expansions of our t:tamum

and premtum—melt nickel* basled allloy, superalloy and specialty alloy producnon capabilities. Our ability to achieve the ant1t:1pated
increased revenues or othenytse realize acceptable returns on. these mvestments or other strategic capital projects that e may
undertake is subject to a:number of risks, many of which are beyond our control, including a varety’of market, operational, =

" permitting, and, labor related factors In addition, the cost to implement any given strategic capital project ultimately may prove to be
- .greater than ongmally ant1c1pated 'If we are not able to achieve the anticipated results from the implementation of any of our strategic

- adversely effected

capital projects; or if we mcur unant1c1pated tmplementatron costs, our results of operatlons and ﬁnanc1al posmon may be matenally
¥ [
': . l: ‘ f . ;
' [t ‘ i I
Dependence on Crmcal Raw Materials Subject to Price and Availability Fluctuations. We rely 1o a substantial extent'on th1rd

+

.
b

i
_ parties to supply certain raw materlals that are critical to the manufacture of our products Purchase prices and availability ‘'of these

1]
critical raw materials are subject to volatility.. At any given time we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of these cnttcal raw
materials on a timely bamsl on! pr1ce and other terms acceptable, or at all

l

l

§-

If suppliers’i mereasc the price of critical raw materials, we may not have alternative 'sources of supply. In addition, to the extent

i
- that we have quoted pnces tol customers and accepted customer orders -for products prior to purchasing necessary raw matertals or

. economic condtuons Thest condmons may d:srupt supplles or affect the' pnces of these matenals -

t
have existing contracts, we may bé unable to raise the price of products to cover all or part of the increased cost of the raw materials.
o ‘ : i : | ! o
.The manufacture of some of our products is a complex process and requtres long lead times. As'a result we may expenenqe delays
or shortages in the supply of } iraw materials.-If unable to obtain adequate and timely deliveries of requrred raw materials, we may be
unable to timely manufacturqlsuff'tcnent quantities of products. This could cause usto lose sales, incur additional costs, delay new
product introductions, or suffer harm to our reputauon | l
‘ b f : o
- We acquire certain tmportant raw materials that we use to produce specralty ‘materials, \including mckel ‘chromium, cobalt and
titanium' sponge, from foretgn sources Some of these sources*operate in countries that.may be subject to unstable polmcal and
o

[‘

] ‘
-Volatility of Raw Material Costs. The prices for many of the raw materrals we use have been extremely volaule Since we value
most of our mventory ut1lxzmlig the last-i in, first-out (LIFQ) inventory costmg methodology, a raptd rise in raw material costs has a
negatlve effect! on our operatmg 'results. Under the LIFO inventory valuanon method, .changes inthe cost of raw matenals and
productlon actwlttes are recogmzéd in cost of sales in.the current perlod even though these material and other costs may have been

incurred at sngmﬁeantly dtffer”ent lvalues due to the length of tlme of our production cycle For example, in 2006, the 1ncreas:e in raw
material costs on the LIFO mvcntory valuation method resulted in cost of sales which-was $197.0 million htgher than wo

+ L

+ .
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uld ‘have
been recogmzed if we ut1l:zed the first-in, first-out (FIFO} methodology to value our mventory In a period of rising raw matenal
prices, cost of sales expense recog,mzed under LIFO is generally higher than the cash costs incurred-to.acquire the mventory sold.

_Conversely, in ia pertod of declmmg raw material- prices, cost of sales' recogn:zed under LIFQ is generally lower than cash COSIS

~incurred to acqqtre the mvlqntory sold.

*

! .
!

Avadabrlny'of Energ)l Revources. We rely upon third partles for our supply of energy resources consumed in the manufacture of

i

1

¥
- our-products, The'prices for and avatlab111ty of electricity, natural gas, o:l and other energy resources are subject to volatile market

conditions. These market ccnd.mons often are affected by political and economlc factors beyond our control. Disruptions in the supply
of energy resources couldltemporanly impair the ability to manufacture products for customers. Further, increases in energy costs, or

- changes in costs relative to energy,costs paid by competitors, has and may continue to adversely affect our profi tab111ty To the extent

FI2

that these uncertainties cause supphers and customers to be more cost sensmve increased energy pnces may have an adverse effect on
our results of operatlons and financial condition.
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l Risks Associated with Environmental Maners. We are subject to various domestic and international environmental laws and
regulations that govern the discharge of pollutants, and disposal of wastes, and which may require that we investigate and remediate
| the effects of the release or disposal of materials at sites associated with past and present operations. We could incur substantial

f cleanup costs, fines and civil or criminal sanctions, third party property damage or personal injury claims as a result of violations or
. liabilities under these laws or non-compliance with environmental permits required at our facilities. We are currently involved in the

| mvcstlgatlon and remediation of a number of our current and former sites as well as third party sites. .

i With respect to proceedings brought under the federal Superfund laws, or similar state statutes, we have been identified as a
' potentially responsible party (PRP) at approximate]y 28 of such sites, excluding those at which we believe we have no future liability.

Our involvement is limited or de minimis at approximately 21 of these sites, and the potential loss exposure w1th respect to any of the
i remaining seven individual sites is not considered to be material.

1
! We are a party to various cost-sharing arrangements with other PRPs at the sites. The terms of the cost-sharing arrangements are

subject to non-disclosure agreements as confidential information. Nevertheless, the cost-sharing arrangements generally require all
PRPs to post financial assurance.of the performance of the obligations or to pre-pay into an escrow or trust account their share of
anticipated site-related costs. In addition, the Federal government, through various agencies, is a party to several such arrangements.

We believe that we operate our businesses in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and
regulations. However, from time-to-time, we are a party to lawsuits and other proceedings involving alleged violations of, or liabilities
arising from environmental faws. When our liability is probable and we-can reasonably estimate our costs, we record environmental
liabilities in our financial statements. In many cases, we are not able to determine whether we are liable, or if liability is probable, to
reasonably -estimate the loss or range of loss. Estimates of our liability remain subject to additional uncertainties, including the nature
and extent of site contamination, available remediation alternatives, the extent of corrective actions that may be required, and the
participation number and financial condition of other PRPs, as well as the extent of their responsibility for the remediation. We intend
to adjust our accruals to reflect new information as appropriate. Future adjustments could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations in a given period, but we cannot reliably predict the amounts of such future adjustments. At December 31, 2006, our
reserves for environmental matters totaled approximately $25 million. Based on currently available information, we do not belicve
that there is a reasonable possibitity that a loss exceeding the amount already accrued for any of the sites with which we are currently
associated (either individually or in the aggregate) will be an amount that would be material to a decision to buy or sell our securities.
Future developments, administrative actions or liabilities relating to environmental matters, however, could have a matenal adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Risks Associated with Current or Future Litigation and Claims. A number of lawsuits, claims.and proceedings have been or may
be asserted against us relating to the conduct of our currently and formerly owned businesses, including those pertaining to product
liability, patent infringement, commercial, employment, employee benefits, taxes, environmental, health and safety and occupational
disease, and stockholder matters: Due to the uncertainties of litigation, we can give no assurance that we will prevail on all claims
made against us in the lawsuits that we currently face or that additional claims will not be made against us in the future. While the
outcome of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, and some of these lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be determined
adversely to us, we do not believe that the disposition of any such pending matters is likely to have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or liquidity, although the resolution in any reporting period of one or more of these matters could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations for that period. Also, we can give no assurance that any other matters brought in the future
will not have a material effect on our financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Labor Matters. We have approximately 9,500 full-time employees. A portion of our workforce is covered by various collective
' bargaining agreements, principally with the USW, including: approximately 2,800 Allegheny Ludlum production, office and
maintenance employees covered by collective bargaining agreements, which are effective through June 2007; approximately 340
! Allvac Albany, Oregon (Oremet) employees covered by a collective bargaining' agreement, which is effective through June 2007,
approximately 600. Wah Chang employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement, which continues through March 2008,
| approximately 270 employees at the Casting Service facility in LaPorte, Indiana, covered by a collective bargaining agreement, which
is effective through December 2007, and approximately 200 employees at our Portland Forge facility in Portland, Indiana, covered by
! collective bargaining agreements with three unions that are effective through April 2008. In February 2007, we announced that the
.1 USW and Allegheny Ludlum and Allvac’s Albany, Oregon titanium operations had reached tentative four-year collective bargaining
agreements, subject to ratification by the union membership. If ratified, the new agreements will expire on June 30, 2011.
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‘ Generally, collectwe bargammg agreements that expire may be termmated after notice by the union. After termination, the union
| : may authorize, 2 strike. ﬁlt: str;lke by the employees covered’ bylone or:more ofithe collectlve bargaining agreements could have- a
, materially adverse affect on our operatmg results. There can be no assurance that we will succeed i in concluding collectrve bargaining

. -

. ‘!‘i B T o - ‘ i
Risks Associated with 'Renremem Benefits. Our U.S. quallf ied defmed beneflt pension plan was funded .in accordance ,wrth the
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ER]SA) and the Internal Revenue Code, as of December 31,
© 2006. Based upon'cun'ent acttiarlal analyses and forecasts, we do/not expect to be requrred to make contributions to the defi ned benefit
pension plan for at least’ the next several years.»However, a SIgmﬁcant declinein the value of plan investments in-the ﬁlture or
unfavorable changes in laws for T regulatlons that .govern pension plan funding could materially change the timing and amount of
required pensron funding.. Dependlng on the timing and amount, a requ:rement that ‘we ﬁJnd our defined benefit pension plan could
have a material adverse effect on ()iur results of operations and financial cpndltlon i
: l i . i . l ; o : i
Rrsks As‘saaared wrth Llcqmsman and Disposition Strategies. We lntend to continue to strategically position our busmesses in
order to 1mprovle our ablllty tp compete We plan to do this by. seekmg specialty: niches, expanding our global presence, acqumng,
businesses complementary to e')ustmg strengths and continually evaluating the perfonnance and strategic fit of existing busmess units.
From time-to-time, management holds discussions with management of other compames to explore acquisition, joint ventures and
“other business combmanon opportunmes as well as.possible busmessL unit dispositions. As a result, .the relative makeup of the
‘ businesses compnsmg our, Company is subject to change. Acquisitions, joint ventures, and other business combinations involve
| various mherent nsks such as assessmg accurately the value, strength$, weaknesses, contingent and.other liabilities and potential
|
|

e ; .
agreements w1th the unions to' replace those that expire. . : s T . ) . i

profitability of acqulsmon or other transaction candidates; the potential loss of key personnel of an acquired -businiess; our ability. to
achieve identified financial and operatmg synergies anticipated to result from an acquisition or other transaction; and unantrcrpated
changes in - busrlness and ecohomlc conditions affecting an acqursmonI or other transaction. International acquisitions and other
transactions could be affected by export controls, exchange rate fluctuatrons domestic and foreign polmcal condmons and a

! ' ‘deterioration in’ domestic and-foreign economic conditions. .. - ‘ . . ' ‘
:

e o :

| Internal Conrmls Over Frpancml Repomng Because ofi 1ts inherent l1m1tat10ns mtemal control over financial reportmg may not

' ‘prevent or detect mlsstatements Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods-are subject to the risk that
‘controls may become madéqua'te l;ecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compllance wrth the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. ! ' . ‘ . i

D! l L
1
Insurance. We‘have maintained various forms of insurance, mcludmg insurance covermg clarms related to our properues and nsks

associated with our operatlons I Our; existing property and Ilablhty insurance coverages contain exclusions and limitations on coverage.
From time-to- trme lin connectlon with renewals of insurance, we have expenenced addmonal exclusions and limitations on coverage
larger self-insured retentlons ahd deducubles and significantly higher premlums Asa result in the future our insurance coverage may
| not cover claims to the extent that lt has in the past and the costs that we incur to procure insurance may increase 51gn1ﬁcant]y, -either
of which could have an adverse effelct on our results of operatrons : | : _ o v
| e L : | - : -
-« Pelitical and Social Turmml The war on terrorism and recent polmcal and soc1al turmo1l mcludmg terrorist and military" actions
| " and the 1mp11catrons of the mllltary actions in Iraq, could put pressure on economic conditions in'the United States and worldwnde
These political, .social and économic conditions could: make it difficult for us, our suppliers and our customers to forecast accurately
and plan future busmess actw'ttresI and could adversely affect the ﬁnanc1al condition of our suppliers and customers and affect
customer decisions as to the alnount and timing of purchases from us. As a result, our busmess financial condition and results of
. operations could ibe matenailly adverl'sely affecred . L b L i . l
o ! . I ' : i
Export Sales. We belreve that export salcs will continue to account' for a 51gn1ﬁcant percentage of our future revenuesl Risks
associated with expprt sales 1nclude political and economic instability, including weak conditions in the world’s economies; accounts
reccivable collection; export controls "changes in legal and-regulatory requirements; pohcy changes affecting the markets for our
products; changes in tax laws and tanffs and exchange rate fluctuations (which may.affeéct sales to international customers and the
- value of profits earned on e'xpor!t sales,when converted into dollars) Any of these factors could matenal]y adversely effect our: results
for the period in whlch they, occhr . - ’ L, : . L
bl . “p : !
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* Risks Associated with Government Contracts. Some of our operating companies directly perform contractual work for the U.S.
Government, Various claimé (whether based on U.S. Government or Company audits and investigations or otherwise) could be
asserted against us related to our U.S. Government contract work. Depending on the circumstances and the outcome, such proceedings
could result in fines, penalties, compensatory and treble damages or the cancellation or suspension of payments under one or more
U.S. Government contracts. Under government regulations, a company, or one or more of its operating divisions or units, can also be

"suspended or debarred from government contracts based on the results of investigations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None,

Item 2. Properties -
Our principaldomestic melting facilities for our high.performance metals are located in Monroe, NC, Bakers, NC, and Lockport, NY
{vacuurn induction melting, vacuum arc re- melt electro-slag re-melt, plasma melting); Richland, WA (electron beam melting); and

. Albany, OR {vacuum arc:re-melt). Producnon of high performance metals; most of which are in long product form, takes place at our
. domestic facilities in Monroe, NC, Lockpon NY, Richburg, SC, and Albany, OR. In 2006, we announced plans to design and

construct a new greenfield titanium sponge facility in Rowley, UT. Construction of this facility is expected to begin in the first half of
2007 and is expected to be' completed in early 2009. Our production of exotic alloys takes place at facilities located in Albany, OR,
I—luntsv1]le AL and Frackville, PA. . :

Our principal domestic locations for melting stainless steel and other ﬂat—rol]ed specialty metals are located in Brackenridge,
Midland, Natrona and Latrobe, PA. Hot rolling of material is performed at our domestic facilities in Brackenridge, Washington and
Houston, PA. Finishing of our flat-rolled products takes place at our domestic facilities located in Brackenridge, Bagdad, Vandergrift,
Midland and Washington, PA, and in Wallingford and Waterbury, CT, New Castle, IN, New Bedford, MA, and Louisville, OH.

Our principal domestic facilities for the production of our engineered products are located in Nashville, TN, Huntsville, Grant and
Gurley, AL, Houston, TX, and Waynesboro, PA (tungsten powder, tungsten carbide materials and carbide cutting tools and threading
systems). Other domestic facilities in this segment are located in Portland, IN and Lebanon KY (carbon alloy steel forgings); LaPorte,
IN (grey and ductile iron castings); and southwestern Pennsylvania (precision metals conversion services), .

Substantially all of our properties.are owned and four of our properties are subject to mortgages or s1m|lar encumbrances securing
borrowings-under certain mdusmal developmem authority ﬁnancmgs .

We also own or lease famlmes ina nu’mber of foreign countnes, inctuding France, Germany, Switzerland, United Kingdom, and
the People’s Republic of China.- We own and/or lease and operate facilities for melting.and .re-melting, machining and bar mill
operations, laboratories and offices located in Sheffield, England. Through our STAL joint venture, we operate a facility for finishing

Precision Rolled Strip products in the Xin-Zhuang lndustnal Zone, Shanghai, China.
Our executive offices, located in PPG Place in Pittsburgh, PA are leased.

Although our facilitie$ vary in terms of.age and condition, we belicve that they have been well maintained and are in sufficient
condition for us to carry on-our activities.

Item 3. Legal Prpeeedings

In a letter dated May. 20, 2004, the EPA informed a subsidiary of the Company that it alleges tl1at the company and forty other :

potentially responsible’ parties (PRPs) are not in compliance with the Unilateral Administrative Order (UAO) issued to the company
and the PRPs for the South El Monte Operable Unit of the San Gabriel Valiey (California) Superfund Site, a multi-part area-wide
groundwater cleanup. The EPA indicated that it may take action to enforce the UAO and collect penalties, as well as reimbursement of

~ the EPA’s costs associated with the site. The PRPs are in mediation with the EPA to resolve their obligations under the UAO on both

technical and legal grounds, and enforcement of the UAQ has been stayed.

By letter dated November 29, 2005, the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) alleged that Allegheny
Ludlum Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company, was in violation of the Pennsylvania Solid Waste Management Act (SWMA) and
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. DEP sought a civil penalty of $149,950. This matter was resolved for $75,000.
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In 20085, the Allegheny County, Pennsylvania Health - Departmen[l(ACHD) lssued 5ix Statements of Violation to Allegheny
Ludlam, alieging}that Alleghleny\Ludlum violated various locdl air emtssron regulat1ons Allegheny Ludlum -denied the ACHD’s
allegations that it violated the,various air emission regulations and filed a timely appeal of the first Statement of Violation. Allegheny

Ludlum and the ACHD entered m:to a consent order and agreement wherein Allegheny Ludlum paid a civil penalty and performed a
supplemental envrronmental pro_|ect : :

LI . * N |
1 ' .
t I } + | . ‘ !
By letter dated November r13 ‘2006 the DEP nottﬁed Allegheny Ludlum that it mtended to assess a cml penalty of $l25 000 for
alleged violations of the Clcan Streams Law of Pennsylvania. DEP alleges that Allegheny Ludlum discharged oil-bearing wastewaters

causing a sheen upon waters of the Commonwealth. Allegheny Ludlum denies the allegations and has béen negotiating a resolutlon of
this matter wtth the DEP. | [

i*

. We become involved from t1me to-time in various lawsuits, claims, .and proceedings relatmg to the conduct of our current and
formerly owned busmessejs lncluqtng those pertaining to product habtllty, patent mfrmgement commercial, employment, employee
- benefits, taxes, lenvtronmentall helalth and safety and occupattonal dlsease and;stockholder matters: While we cannot predict the

I
_outcome of any lawsuit, claim or proceedmg,, our management believes that the dlsposmon of any pending matters is not likely.to

have a material adverse effect}on our financial condition or liquidity. The resolution in any reporting.period of one or more of these

! f
_-matiers, however; could have a maerial adverse effect on our results of of)eratlons for that pcnod - I

l

. ‘. N . b t‘ ”- h
lnformatton relatmg to legzltl prloceedmgs is included in Note 14. Comm1tments and Contmgencres of the Notes 1o Consjolrdated
Financial Statements and 1n’eorporated herein by reference. l
v ! i ' l . : |
Item 4. Submission of Matters to'a Vote ofSecurltv Holders ' . e ] :
1 . .
‘ [ ‘ ' :
-Not appltcable. AR !i ' i :
i . \
y . 4 i
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ltem 5. Market for the Réglstrant?s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters - ' .t

Ty o . :
Common Smck Prices !V Lo ~ ’

;I i I . ' P ' l‘

Qur common stock 1s traded on the: New York Stock Exchange (symbol AT]) At February 14, 2007 there were approximately 5, 972
record holders of Allegheny Teehno]ogles Incorporated common stock: We increased our: quarterly cash dividends per share by over
100% since 2004 We pa1d a quarterly cash dividend of $0.06 per share for each of the first three quarters of 2005. In the fourth
quarter of 2005 'we increaed the quarterly cash dividend paid on-our common stock-t0!$0.10-per share. We-paid a quarterly cash

- dividend of $0.10 per share-fol1 each of the first thrée quarters of 2006, and in the fourth quarter of 2006, we increased the quarterly

cash dividend pard on our common stock to $0.13 per share. Our secured eredrt fac1llty contains a restriction on our ability to pay cash
dividends on our common|stoc}< At December 31, 2006, the aggregate amount of dividends we could pay was $633 million. The
ranges of high and low sales prices for shares of our common stock for the'periods 1nd1cated were as follows l
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I . - Quarter Ended |-
i i ! March31 . Junel3) - - September 30  December 31
2006 'l L - e
High ... SUTE SO, l ' ...... |  enens SRR ST S $ 6139 § 84.53 $ 69.33 $ 9820
LOW ..o OSSO L UOTS. O, O TN $ 3605 $ 5700 . $ 5582  $ 6030
A ! ' L , !
! I I - March 31 ¢ June 30 September 30 December _?;l
2005 . i H " : It St - - . \ AR
High ':‘ ............ IPOUUUTRTOTUPRPRt PRURURURUPOUOR eeeeiereeaeanrnes eeee $ 2605+ $.2556 . % 3098 $°36.53
LOW s sbisbonnesso b e Lo $.18.03  $1952° §2200 S 26.60
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Cumulative Total Stockholder Return

The graph set forth below shows the cumulative total stockholder return (i.e., price change plus reinvestment of dividends) on our
Coimmon Stock from December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006 as compared to the S&P 500 Index, a Peer Group of companies,
and the S&P-Steel [ndex (formerly known as the S&P Iron & Steel Index). We believe the Peer Group of companies, which is defined
below, is more representative of companies in our industry that serve similar markets; rather than the S&P Steel Index, which
primarily includes carbon steel manufacturers. Since the S&P Steel Index was first used, the number of companies in this index has
declined, and there are'now only three companies in_this index (including ATI). Therefore, we do not believe this index is
representative, and we will cease using this index in future reports. The total stockholder return for the Peer Group is weighted
according to the respective issuer’s stock market capitalization at the beginning of each period. The graph assumes that $100 was
invested on December 31, 2001.

Comparison of Cumulative ‘ $700 -
Five Year Total Return
$600 {
$500 |
$400 |-
$300 |-
$200 +
e Allegheny Technologies $100
— S& T 500 Index
====es S&TP 500 Steel [ndex 50 C :
— Peer Group Dec 01 Dec02  Dec03  Dec04  Dec05  Dec06
Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
- e Base Period . .
Company / Index - Dec 01 Dec 02 Dec 03 " Dec 04 Dec05 Dec 06 .
Allegheny Technologies 100 39.30 87.18 14496 243.75 616.46
S&P 500 Index : ' 100 77.90 - 100.25  ° T 11115 116.61 135.03
S&P 500 Steel Index ) o . 100 76.36 129.49 207.39 253.86 457.66

Peer Group ) 100 72.39 12001 - 13199 143.66 186.36

Peer Group compz;nies for the cumulative five-year total return i)en'od ended December 31, 2006 were as follows: -

AK Steel Holding Corp Quanex Corp.

ALCAN Inc. - ; Reliance Steel & Aluminum Co.

ALCOA Inc. . RTI International Metals Inc.

Carpenter Technology Corp.- Steel Dynamics Inc.

IPSCO Inc. Titanium Metals Corp.

Kennametal Inc. United States Steel Corp. .
Nucor Corp. : : o

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected volume, price and financial information for ATL The financial information has been derived

from"our audited financial statements included elsewhere in this report for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The -

historical selected financial information may not be indicative of our future performance and should be read in conjunction with the
information contained in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analy51s of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and m
~ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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For the Years Ended December 31, [ | 2006 2005 2004 Tl 2003 A 2002
Volume (000°s 1bs:): n I [ ' !
High Performance Metals — mckel based and speclalty .

alloys ..o ! h ....................................................... i 42,873 39,939- 34,353 . 35,168- 35,832
High Performance Metals 4 tlt'amum mill produets ................ 27,361 24,882 22,012 18,436 . 19,044
High Performance Metals —— exotic alloys.....cccocovneninincennnn. " 4,304 4,018 4,318 4245 4 3,712

Flat-Rolled Products: s ! ; P
High value...........oocin . D et rsssesserese st sstsgsssens 502,524 495868 508,946 470,500 360,349
Commodlty..............'.".....'.E ...... '.. ................................................ 889,105 652,870 666,560 486,206 614,321

Flat-Rolled Products tota] UL 1,391,620 1,148,738 1,175,506 956,706 974,670

Average Prices (per Ib.): : ' ’

High Perforthance Meta]s - nickel-based and specialty »

AllOYS .ot bissssssssssssssantsesstsnssntssacsssscsssesees 1435 § 11.25 § 8.60 § 657 % + 639
High Performance Metals L t1tamum mill products ................ 33.83 22,75 12.34 11.50  + 11.83
High Performance Metals A exouc alloys....oooeeneiccnn " 40.39 40.38 40.95 37.64 ' 36.29
Flat-Rolled Products: | l ,

High value.......cobetho s 2.50 215 1.67 1.36 1.57
Commodity.............. b 1.61 1.26 118 083 « 0.78
Flat-Rolled Products combulled AVETAZE ovvverere e 1.93 1.64 1.39 1.09 v 1.07
(In mitlions) ! , !
For the Years Ended December 3| [ | 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Saies: : K ll ; . S

High Performance Metals ........... SO RUTROUTRR $ 1,806.6 $12460 $§ 7941 $ 641.7 $ '630.0

Flat-Rolled Products ...t .0l b 2,697.3 1,900.5 1,643.9 1,043.5 1,040.3

Engineered Products ...l e 4327 393.4 295.0 252.2 237.5

Total sales .....ooeveerrinnenn. T SOV TUORO $ 49366 §$3,539.9 § 2,733.0 $ 1,9374 § 19078
Operating profit (loss): " ( : ' ' ' :

High Performance Metals ........... e etee st bbbt ba b sras $ 6575 § 3353 %3 848 § 262 § | 31.2

Flat-Rolled Prodicts ..... ... O RSSO . © 3443 149.9 61.5 (14.1) ' (8.6)

Engineered Products ............ B e s e secssssetsse et sasemseesesecene 56.7 47.5 20.8 7.8 . 4.7

Total operating profit.....oo..boe oo e, $ 1,0585 § 5327 § 1671 § 199 § 273
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulanvc effect of change in ' ' .

accounting principle...............! SO N $ 8692 § 3071 % 198 § (2802) $ (103.8)
income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting ' ' . B

PENCIPIE v b 571.9 361.8 19.8 (313.3) (65.8)
Cumulative effect of change in accountmg principle, net of tax........... ; — (2.00 — (1.3) C—
Net income (1088) ..co..orennnn Bl B $ 5719 $ 3598 5 198 § (3146) % .(65.8)
Basic net income (loss) per corr}moq share: ! '

Income (loss) before cumulatlve effect of change in accounting 9

PENCIPIE covvvv s b SO T $ 574 % 3768 023 % (38N (082
Cumulative effect of changé in accountmg principle.....coooeeinnnn.n, : — (0.02) —_— (0.02) i —
Basic net income (10ss) per common.share...........ooveiveinieiisisiesneennns 3 574 § 374 § 023 § (389 % (0.82)
Diluted net incomie (loss) per coinmon share: ‘ : ‘ ' T
Income (loss) before cumulatwe'effect of change in accounting ', -

PANCIPIE .ovvove e il ...... e $ 559 %5 359 8% 022 % (387 % (082
Cumulative effect of change in accoummg Principle....coocvvvcvveeeenee, — (0.02) — (0.02) . —
Diluted net income (losslper COMMON SHATE........cocvivreeriicicieceecenas $ 559 § 357 % 022 3§ (3898 (08)
(in millions except per share amrmm‘f um! rano ) LT ! 1 ' ' . e
As of and for the Ycars Ended December 31, | ! 2006 2005 2004 2003 . . 2002
Dividends declared per commonishare .............coccoeeveeveeeveverennnnn... $ 043 § 0.28. % 024 § 024 § | 0.66
Ratio of earnings to f xed charges ..... et eeeem et eeeeureeeneemee e enneneneenees ; 18.1x 6.4x 1.4x — =
Working capital.........co..coeeniln) OO OO $ 1,3424 § 9231 3 6674 § 3486 § 4537
Total assets.............. T O PO POV OO VOO PPTPPPTP 13,2822 27316, 23157 1,903.2 | 2,106.1
Long-termdebt ................. 529.9 547.0 553.3 504.3 509.4
Total debt ................ 553.6 560.4 5827 5321 1519.1
Cash and cash equivalents ..} . 5023 362.7 250.8 79.6 ' 59.4
Stockholders’ equity ............ el SO OO TP pTOTOT . 1,492.6 799.9 4259 174.7 . 44838

i . . i . i o : l -
|
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Net income for 2005 included a $20.9 million net special gain, which included the tax benefit associated with the reversal of the
Company’s remaining valuation allowance for U.S. Federal net deferred tax assets of $44.9 million, partially offset by asset

| impairments and charges related to legal matters of $22.0 million, and a $2.0 million charge, reported as a cumulative effect

accounting change, net of tax, for conditional asset retirement obligations. Net income in 2004 was favorably impacted by a

! curtailment gain, net of restructuring costs, of $40.4 million. We did not recognize an income tax provision or benefit in 2004
:primarily as a result of the uncertainty regarding full utilization of the net deferred tax asset and available operating loss

carryforwards. Net income (loss) in 2003 was adversely affected by restructuring and litigation charges of $84.9 million and a $138.5
million charge to record a valuation allowance for the majority of the Company’s net deferred tax assets, and restructuring charges of

+ $42.8 miliion in 2002.

1

Stockholders’ equity for 2006 includes a $47 million net increase to adjust pension and other postretirement liabilities in
accordance with adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension

. and Other Postretirement Plans”, and an $81 million increase for the tax benefit on stock-based compensation, Stockholders’ equity.

for 2005 includes a $36 million reduction to adjust the minimum pension liability, and a $25 million increase for the tax benefit on

| stock-based compensation. Stockholders’ equity for 2004 includes $229.7 million in net proceeds from a common stock offering, and

a $2 million increase to adjust the minimum pension liability. Stockholders’ equity for 2003 includes the effect of recognizing a
$138.5 million valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets and a $47 million increase to adjust the minimum pension liability, net
of related tax effects. Stockholders’ equity for 2002 includes the effect of recognizing a minimum pension liability of $406 million,

net of related tax effects.

For purposes of determining the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings include pre-tax income plus fixed charges (excluding
capitalized interest). Fixed charges consist of interest on all indebtedness (including capitalized interest) plus that portion of operating
lease rentals representative of the interest factor (deemed to be one-third of operating lease rentals). For the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, fixed charges exceeded earnings by $280.7 million and $100.7 million, respectively.

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations™ (“FIN 47), an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Asset Retirement
Obligations” (“SFAS 1437} in the 2005 fourth quarter. The cumulative effect of adoption of FIN 47 was $2.0 million net of related tax
effects, or $0.02 per share. The Company adopted SFAS 143 on January 1, 2003. The cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS 143 was
$1.3 million net of related tax effects, or $0.02 per share. The effects on prior years’ financial information were riot material.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Certain statements contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are
forward-locking statements. Actual results or performance could differ materially from those encompassed within such forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors; including those described below. : ‘

Overview of 2006 Financial Performance

ATI's 2006 performance was a record year for sales, segment operating-profit, and earnings per share. Net income for the full year
2006 increased 59% to $571.9 million, or $5.59 per share, compared to $359.8 million, or $3.57 per share, for 2005. For 2006, return
on capital employed was 34.5%, and return on stockholders’ equity was 49.9%:; Sales increased 39% to $4.94 billion for 2006 as
higher base-selling prices, the effect of raw material surcharges, and higher shipments for most of our major products resulted from
improved business conditions in most of the major markets we serve. Our continued growth is being driven by strong and increasing
demand from the aerospace and defense market and increasing demand from those markets that are vital to the building and rebuilding
of the global infrastructure. For 2006, 30% of our sales were to the acrospace and defense market, 19% to the chemical process
industry and oil and gas markets, 11% to the electrical energy market, and 3% to the medical market. These major high-value markets

represented 63% of ATI’s 2006 sales.

In our High Performance Metals segment, year-over-year sales increased 45% to $1.81 billion due primarily to continuing strong
demand from the aerospace and defense, medical, and oil and gas markets for our titanium alloys, nickel-based alloys and superalioys,
and vacuum melted specialty alloys, and continued strong demand for our exotic materials, especially from the aerospace and defense,
chemical process industry, and electrical energy markets, Operating profit for the High Performance Metals segment improved to
$657.5 million, a 96% increase compared to 2005, due primarily to the improved pricing and increased shipments resulting from
increased demand and benefits from our gross cost reduction efforts, partially offset by the impact on the LIFO inventory.accounting

methodology from nsmg raw material costs.
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In our Flat-Rolled Products segment, sales increased 42% to $2.70 biilion due primarily to strong demand for our products from
the global chemical process lpdustw, electrical energy, and oil and gas markets, and good demand from construction, apphance and
automotive markéts. This - |mprovement in demand, combined with higher base prices for most of the Flat-Rolled Products segment
products and the benefits from our gross cost reduction efforts, more than offset the significant negative impact of the LIFO inventory
accounting methodology f frorn I‘]S]llg raw material costs, and resulted in an operating profit for this segment of $344.3 million; a 130%
|mprovcment compared to 2005. | -

Results for our Engmeered Products segment also improved, as sales mcreased to $432.7 million, or 10%, compared to 2005, and
operating profit increased to $56 7 million, a 19% increase, due to improved demand from the oil and gas, construction and mining,
aerospace and defense power generatron and transportatton markets, plus beneﬁts from our gross cost reduction actions. ;

Total segment operatlng proﬁt increased to- $1 06 billion, an increase of $525.8 million compared to 2005. This siéniﬁcant

_improvement in segment proﬁtabthty was achieved after LIFO inventory: valuation reserve charges of $197.0 million, due primarily to

F20

higher overall raw material costs which was partially offset by the benefits of $141 million in gross cost reductions across the
Company. ‘ i . :
i ‘| ] : 1 o ,
During 2006, we continued to enhance our leading market positions, reduce costs, and'improve our balance sheet. We also realized
continued success. in implementing the ATl Business System, which is: driving lean manufacturing throughout our operattons Our
accomplishments during 2006 from these important efforts included: 3 i
4
I
s We contmued to grow our global market presence as direct international sales reached-a record $1.17 billion; or 24% of total sales,
an increase of $300.7 mlllilon compared to 2005. During 2006, we realigned our European sales and distribution organization to
better support our custorme needs and the distribution of ATI’s products R ; , S

L .
!

+  We continued to build a foundatlon for further profitable growth. Durmg 2006, we entered into long-term agreements with

aerospace and defense customers to supply them with titanium and mckel based superalloys. o _ S

- The commercial aerospace market s use of titanium is expected to increase significantly as new aircraft airframe production is
utilizing a larger percentage of titanium. material. For.example, the ‘new Boeing 787 Dreamliner airframe (excluding engines),
which is expected to be put mto service beginning in 2008, will utilize approximately 250,000 pounds (buy weight) of titanium
alloys per aircraft, a 51gmﬁcanl increase over any. previous commercral aircraft airframe. The new aircraft designs from Airbus, the
A380 and A350-XWB,' and from defense contractors are also expected to utilize: a greater percentage of titanium. Given the
significant backlog and development plans by the alrcraft manufacturers, this increasing demand for titanium alloys is expected to

last into.the next decade - : ; = '

: 6 . . ' ’ ' !

+ We signiﬁcantly increased self-funded strategic capital investments in our businesses to support the growth in our markets,
especially for titanium‘ andl!tltar'uum alloys, nickel-based alloys and superalloys, and vacuum melted specialty alloys. The major
strategic capttal prOJects mclude

1

— A significant upgrade to and restarting of our titanium sponge facrhty in Albany, OR at a total capttal 1nvestment of

approximately 3100 mllllon including the announced expansion in February 2007. Titanium sponge is an important raw
material used to produce our titanium mill products. The annual productton of titanium sponge from our Albany, OR facility
will ramp up through thc ﬁrst half of 2007 when it will réach an annualized production rate of approximately 16 million
pounds, and wili reach approxrmately 20 million pounds of annuahzed product:on by the second half of 2008 when all phases
are completed X .

' \

— The design and construcuon of a greenfield premium-grade titanjium sponge facility in Rowley, UT,-which will be the first
greenfield tttamum sponge |fa0111ty built in the U.S. in over thirty years. The updated estimate of the cost of this facility is
“expected to be $425.t0 $450 million, including engineering and design for future expansion, Titanium sponge production from
the Rowley UT facrhtylhs expected to begin in late 2008 and reach an initial annualized production rate of approximately 24
miilion pounds in 2009 When the Oregon and Utah facilities are operational in 2009, our total annual titanium sponge
- production capacity is expected to be approximately 44 million pounds and is mtended to supplement our purchased tttamum

sponge and’ purchased t1tan1um scrap requirements.
.— The design and constructlon of a $215 million titanium alloys and nickel-based alloys and superalloy forging fac1l1ty‘ in the
Carolinas. This new fac1l|ty, which is expected to be constructed i m phases through 2009, will include a new 10,000 ton press
forge and a new 700mm rotary forge, both of which will be the largest of their kind in the world for producing these types of

-' ' l

|
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alloys. It will also include billet conditioning and’ finishing equipment. We will also add our fourth Plasma Arc Melt (PAM)
furnace for cold hearth melting premium titanium alloys, primarily for aeroengine rotating-quality applications, and we will
build additional vacuum arc remelt (VAR) capacity to support premium nickel-based superalloy and titanium growth. These
investments are expected to commence production in phases through 2009.

— A 360 million upgrade and expansion of our titanium and titanium alloys, nicke!l-based alloys, stainless steel, and specialty
alloys plate finishing.facility in Washington, PA. This upgrade and expansion is expected to be completed in 2008.

— A significant expansion of our capability to produce ammonium paratungstate (“APT"}, a raw material used in the production
of tungsten powder and tungsten materials in our Engineered Products segment. This investment is expected to position ATI
to be self-sufficient for APT, by producmg this important raw material from scrap at a much lower cost than purchased APT.

' ' The full benefit of this expansion is expected to be realized beginning in the first half of 2007.

— Our Chinese joint venture company known as Shanghai STAL Precision Stainless Steel Company Limited (“STAL"), in
" which ATI has a 60% interest, commenced an expansion of its Precision Rolled Strip operations in Shanghai, China. This
expansion is expected to more'than triple STAL’s precision rolling and slitting capacity when fully operational in 2009.

= We realized strong cash generation in 2006. Cash on hand at the ‘end of 2006 was $502.3 million, an increase of $140 million

compated to the end of 2005. This increase in cash is after investing $534 million in managed working capital due primarily to
higher business actmty, $235 million in capital expenditures, $100 mllhon in a voluntary cash’contribution to our U.S. qualified
defined beneﬁt pension plan, and $43 mllllon in dmdend payments.

*  We continued to strengthen our balance sheet. Our net debt to total capitalization imp}'oved to 3.3% at December 31, 2006,

compared to 19.8%, 43.8% and 72.1% at year-end 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At the end of 2006, our U.S. qualified
defined benefit pension plan was essentially fully funded. This is significant as the previous funded status of the plan had a
s;gmﬁcam negative impact on our balance sheet. As a result of the 1mprovement in funding status, total retirement benefit expense
is expected to decline by $50 million in 2007, compared to 2006.

* We contmued to realize SIgmﬁcant improvement in safety across ATI’s operations. As a result of our continuing focus on and
commitment to safety, in 2006 our OSHA Total Recordable Incident Rate improved by 19% and our Lost Time Case Rate
improved by 42%, both compared to 2005.

< We realized continued success from the ATI Business System, which is driving lean manufacturing throughout our operations. In
addition to $141 million in gross cost reductions achieved in 2006, which was $41 million higher than our 2006 goal of $100
million, and the improved safety performance discussed above, another result of our ATI Business System efforts was the

continuing improvement in managed working capital. We define managed working capital as accounts receivable. and gross

inventories less accounts:payable. At December 31, 2006, managed working capital 1mproved to 29.0% of annuahzed qales
compared to 30.3% at 2005 year—end N

. Wlth the contmumg strength in our major end markets and conﬁdence in ATl s ability to.continue to generate strong cash flow
over the next several years, the Board of Directors increased the quarterly dividend by 30% to $0.13 per share in December 2006.
_ This is the second consecutlve year the Board has significantly mcreased the dividend.

As'a result of these accompllshments we believe that the foundation has been set for further profitable growth in 2007 and
beyond Our businesses are posmoned to continue to deliver outstanding operatlonal performance. We have several major long-term
customer supply agreements in place, and ATI’s presence and sales are growing around the world. Qur strategic capital projects are
expected to contribute significant growth with very good returns beginning in 2007. To achieve additional growth and to meet the
demands for our products from the global markets we serve, we plan $450 to $500 million of self-funded capital investments in 2007,
approximately 70% of which is related to the previously announced strategic growth projects discussed above. We expect strong cash
flow in 2007 to support this level of investment. We remain dedlcated to our disciplined plan and vision of Bm[dmg the World’s Best
Specialty Metals Company.™ .

Results of Operations

Sales were $4.94 billion in 2006, $3.54 billion in 2005 and $2.73 billion in 2004. Direct international sales represented approximately
24% of 2006 sales, 25% of 2005 sales and 20% of 2004 sales.
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Segment operating profit was | $1.06 billion in 2006, $532.7 million in 2005, and $167.1 million in 2004. Our'measure of segment
operating profit, which we use to _analyze the performance and results: of our business segments, excludes income taxes, corporate
expenses, net interest expense rettrement benefit expense, other costs net of gains on asset sales, curtailment gains and restructuring
costs, if any. We believe segmcnt operatmg profit, as defined, provides an appropriate measure of controllable operating results at the
busmess segment level. ! ‘ ] .

A .

Income before tax and the ‘cumulatwe effect of change in accounting principle was $869.2 million in 2006, $307.1 million'in 2005,
and $19.8 million in 2004 For 2005 income before tax included a restructuring charge of $23.9 million for asset impairments and a
charge of $12.6 r_mllton for legallmatters Income before tax for 2004 1ncluded a curtailment gain, net of restructuring charges of
$40.4 million. - - " % :

N .

Income before the cumulattve effect of change in accounting prmc1ple was $571.9 million for 2006, $361.8 million for 2005, and
$19.8 million for 2004. Net income for 2005 included a $20.9 million net special gain, which included a tax benefit associated with
the reversal of the Compdn)'(I ] rématmng valuation allowance for U.S. Federal net deferred tax assets, partially offset by asset
impairments charges in the Flat-Rolled Products segment, charges for'legal matters, and the cumulative effect of adopttng a new
accounting principle for conditional asset rétirement obligations. Results for 2004 did not include an income tax provision or benefit
for current or deferred taxes”prtr'nartly as a result of the uncertainty regarding full utilization of our net deferred tax assets and
available operating loss catTyforwards Net income for 2004 included a'curtailment gain, net of restructuring costs of $40.4 million,
related.to the elimination of rettree medical benefits for certain non- collectrvely bargained employees beginning in 2010, and costs
associated with the acqutsrtton of the J&L assets and the 2004 labor agre¢ment.

|
We operate in three busmess segments High Performance Metals, Flat-Rolled Products and Engineered Products. These segments

represented the following percentages of our total revenues and segment operaung profit for the years indicated: i

; ! 2006! 2005, 2004
A . ' Operating’ Operating - Operating
! Iy | ‘ Revenue ; Profit Revenue Profit Revenue Profit
High Performance Metals’....L.....0cooooovvvonriorioierenn, 37% . 62% 35% - 63% 29% “51%
Flat-Rolled Products ...t oo 54% 33% 54% 28%  60% 37%
Engineered Products .......50..l b S % 5% 11% 9% 1% 12%

Information with respect to our business segments is presented below and in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolrdated Financial
Statements. ’ : I '

: i . .
High Performance Metals o '
i . \ .

v : . . 1
- (In mitlions) - i i ! 2006 % Change 2005 % Change 2004

Sales to external customers........ Lottt e ee e renenenran $ 1,806.6 45% $ 1,246.0 57% $.794.1
Operating profit........ccccoe.. '.....f.' ...... e, SOV S 6575 0 9%% 335.3 205% ' 84.8
Operating profit as a percentage of sales ........ccocviiinniiniccisiiieennns ' 36.4% ' 26.9% 10.7%
Direct international sales as a percentage of sales ..........cccoevvccevvinnnnnne, \ 31.5% . 32.6% ' 32.5%
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Qur High Performance Metals segment produces, converts and distributes a wide range of htgh performance alioys, 1nclud1ng
titanium and titanium-based Ialloys nickel- and cobalt-based alloys and 5uperalloys exotic alloys such as zirconium, hafnium,
niobium, nickel-titanium, and Ithmr related alloys, and other specialty metals primarily in long product forms such as ingot, billet, bar,
rod, wire, shapes and rectangles and seamless tube. These products are desngned for the high performance requirements of such major
end markets as aerospacetand'defense chemical process industry, oil and gas, medical and electrical energy. The operating units in
this segment are ATI Allvac ATI Allvac Lid (U K.) and ATI Wah Chang,. . .

2006 Compared 10 2005 |

1 [}
Sales for the Htgh Performan(l:e Metals segrnent for 2006 were $1.81 b|1110n or 45% higher than 2005, due primarily to mcreased
volume and htg,her average scllmg prices for most of our products driven by strong demand from the aerospace and defense, medical,
oil and pgas, chemical promss‘lmclustry, and electrical energy markets, Comparative information on the segment’s products for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was: !
. | I ‘ |

I
l
1 1
|
;




For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 % Change

Volume (000°s lbs.):

Nickel-based and specialty steel alloys........ccovvierr e 42873 39,939 1%

Titanium mill products..............ccccoimiii ettt en s e et e s s st bbb s nn e 27361 24,882 10%

Exotic alloys oo, e eereeteeeeeen, eeeee e rereseneenrerenes e et e v erneans 4,304 4,018 7%
Average Prices (per tb.): ' :

Nickel-based and specialty steel BHOYS e $ 14358% 11.25 28%

Ttanium ML PrOGUCTS. ... ..o ettt cac e e e s enem s e s s st s s nsnannne $ 3383 §% 22795 49%

EXOUC AllOYS ...t ceare e enesneraene et e et et eaeesereeteatabetearetetetatanrsrsersasarars $ 4039 §5 4038 %

Aerospace represents a significant market for our High Performance Metals segment, especially for premium quality specialty -

metals used in the manufacture of jet engines for.the original equipment and spare parts markets. In addition, we are becoming a larger
supplier of specialty metals used in airframe construction. In January 2007, we announced a long-term sourcing agreement with GE
Aviation for the supply of premium titanium, nickel-based superalloy, and vacuum-melted spec1alty alloy products for commercial
and military jet engine applications. Total revenues under this agreement plus Allvac’s direct sales to GE Aviation for the period 2007
through 2011 may exceed $2 billion. In addition, in October 2006 we announced a long-term agreement with The Boeing Company to
supply titanium products for the Boeing 787 Dreamliner and other Boeing aircraft airframes. Total revenues under this contract are
valued at approximately $2.5 billion for the years 2007 through 2015. This long-term agreement includes both long-product forms
which are manufactured within the High Performance Metals segiment, and a significarit amount of plate products which are
manufactured utilizing assets of both the High Performance Metals and Flat-Rolled Products segments. Revenues and profits
associated with these mill products covered by the fong-term agreement are included primarily in the results for the High Performance
Metals segment. The demand from the aerospace market has recovered from the decline after the effect of the tragedy of September
11, 2001. Annually, revenue passenger miles and freight miles have increased 9.7% and 7.3%, respectively, since 2003, according to
the International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAQ). The ICAQ expects this growth trend to continue at over 6% annually well into
the next decade based on the demand for passenger and freight travel from developing economies, especially in Asia and the Middle
East, and continuing economic growth in the rest of the world. Commercial and military jet aircraft deliveries of new aircraft have
increased-8.4% annually since 2003. ]ndependenl forecasts -from both Airline Monitor and Forecast International project continuing
growth of commercial and military jet aircraft deliveries into the next decade. Due to manufacturing cycle times, demand for our
specialty metals leads the deliveries of new aircraft by 12 to 18 months. In addition, as our specialty metals are used in jet engines,
demand for our products for spare parts is impacted by aircraft flight activity and engine refurblshment requirements of U.S. and
foreign avnauon regulatory authormes '

- o -
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High Performance Metals segment operating profit for 2006 increased due to higher volume and pricing, and also tmproved dueto

- product mix. Segment results in 2006 and 2005 were adversely affected by higher raw material costs, which increased signifi ca’mtly in
the past.several years. The'ée htgher costs, while largely recovered in product selling prices through raw material lndlcesl had: a
‘negative- effect on cost of sales as a result of our LIFO inventory accounting methodology, resulting in LIFO mventory valuatton
reserve charges of $49.4 mtllton in 2006 and $46.0 million in 2005, . }t , . ;

; . ' .

We continued to aggresswely riduce costs in 2006. Gross cost reducltlons before the effects of inflation, totaled approximately
$39 million; Ma]or areas oﬁgross cost reductions included $20 million from procurement, $15 million from operating efﬁc1enc1es and
$3 million from salarted and hour]y labor cost savings. l

To support our strateglmgrowth mmatlves in the High Performance Metals segment, in 2006 we committed to SIgmﬁcantly expand
our manufacturm'g capabtltttes llncludmg projects announced in 2605, 2006 and to'date in 2007, we will spend approxtmately $625°
million in a multi- phase t1tan1um products expansion that is expected to yteid 44 million pounds of annual titanium sponge production
capacity and i mcrease ATl’s dnnual tttanlum melt capacity by at least 25 mtl]ton pounds. These strategic titanium’ capital 1nvestments
are designed to expand and enhance 'ATI’s capacity and capabilities to meet current and expected demand growth from the aerospace

(both engine and alrframe), defens'e chemical process mdustry, oil and gas, and medical markets. The expansion includes the
_following phases |t . |, '
. A
The Phase | expansnon of ATI ls titanium production capabtlmes was ‘announced on July 15, 2005, and tncludes upgradmg and
restarting ATI s utamum sponge facility in-Albany, OR, constructmg a third Plasma Arc Melt (PAM) ‘cold-hearth furnace in
Bakers, NC,.addmg three \lvacuum arc remelt (VAR) furnaces, expandmg high:valie plate products capacity by 25%, and
continued upgradmg of. AT]’S cold-rollmg assets used in producmg titanium sheet and'strip products. Phase I of our Albany, OR
titanium sponge fac1htyt15 Inow fully operational with six new fuma‘ces producing at an annualized rate of approximately 8.0
million pounds and the Faddtttonal VAR melt capacity began operatlons in late 2006 and early 2007. The new PAM furn[ace is
expected to begm operattons m'the first quarter'2007. Plasma arc meltmg is a superior cold-hearth melting process for maktng
. alloyed mamum products for jet engine rotatmg parts, medical apphcatlons and other critical applications. VAR meltmg lS a
consumable’ electrode re-melt1né process that improves the cleanliness and chemical homogenetty of the alloys. |

. . ,'
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» The Phase II expansion of ATI's titanium production capabilities was announced on March 17, 2006, and includes additional
titanium sponge capacity at ATI's facility in Albany, OR, and an additional VAR furnace at ATI’s facility in Bakers, NC. We
expect the additional titanium sponge production capacity of approximately 4.0 million pounds annually from this phase to begin
operation in the first half of 2007. The additional VAR melt capacity is expected to begin operation early in the third quarter
2007. - ‘

= The Phase III expansion of ATI’s titanium production capabilities was announced on June 22, 2006, and includes additional
titanium sponge capacity and an additional VAR furnace at ATI’s facility in Albany, OR. The additional titanium sponge
production capacity of approximately 4.0 million pounds annually from this phase is expected to be fully operational in the
second half of 2007. As a result of Phases 1, 1I and 111, we expect our annual titanium sponge production capacity from the Albany
facility to be approximately 12 million pounds in 2007, expanding to approximately 16 million pounds in 2008. The additionai
VAR melt capac1ty is expected to begin operations in two stages, with the first start-up in the second quarter of 2007 and the
second stage in the first quarter of 2008.

* In June 2006, we announced the Phase IV expansion to our titanium capabilities. Phase 1V is a greenfield premium-grade titanium
" sponge facility to be built in Rowley, UT with an annual capacity of 24 million pounds. This investment, which is estimated at
$425 to $450 million including engineering and design for future expansion, is aimed at increasing our capacity to produce
titanium alloys for aerospace and defense applications. Premium-grade sponge is essential for many aerospace applications,
including rotating quality titanium alloys used for new jet engines and sparc parts. We expect initial production of titanium
sponge to begin in the third quarter 2008 and grow to an initial annualized rate of 24 million pounds in 2009.

= In February 2007, we announced a further expansion of our Albany, OR titanium sponge production capabilities. The additional
expansion of the Albany, OR facility will include four sponge furnaces and related processing operations, and is expected to be in
service in the first half of 2008. This expansion is expected to add another 4 million pounds of titanium sponge capacity annually.

Upon the completton of these phases, ATI’s internal titanium sponge annual capacity of approximately 44 million pounds will be
in addition to the amount of titanium sponge and titanium scrap ATI purchases from external sources.

Additionally, in January 2007, we announced the expansion of our titanium and nickel-based superalloy capabilities at facilities
located in Bakers, NC. The purpose of the capital project is to meet growing demand from the aerospace and defense (both jet engine
and airframe), electrical energy, medical, chemical process industry, and oil and gas markets. The total investment is approximately
$215 million, which is expected to be nearly evenly spread over the next three years. ATl expects this self-funded project to be
substantially completed by the end of 2009, The project will include:

= . Additional forging eapacity. ATI plans to add an integrated 10,000 ton press forge, 700mm rotary forge, conditioning, finishing,
and inspection facility to support increased forged product requirements. The new forging capacity is expected to be operational
by the third quarter 2009. Forging is a hot-forming process that produces wrought forging billet and forged machmmg bar from an
ingot. :

* A fourth PAM furnace to support premium titanium alloy growth requirements. ATI expects this fourth PAM furnace to begin
production by the fourth quarter 2008.

= Additional VAR capacity to support premium nickel-based superalloy and titanium growth. ATI expects one new VAR to be in
production in the first quarter 2008. The remaining four VAR furnaces would be installed as needed.

2005 Compared to 2004

Sales for the High Performance Metals segment iricreased 57% to $1.25 billion, 1n 2005 primarily due to continuing strong demand
from the aerospace, defense, oil and gas, medical, and power generation markets. "Our exotic alloys business continued to benefit from
demand from the aerospace, defense, chemical processing, and medical markets, Operating profit for the High Performance Metals
segment improved significantly to $335.3 million as a result of increased shipments for most of our products, higher selling prices,
and the benefits of gross cost reductions. Comparative information on the segment’s products for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 was:
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For the Years Ended December 31, l 2005 2004 . % Change

Volume (000’s 1bs.): K
Nickel-based and specialty steel alloys "
Titanium mill products... .

39039 34353 | 16%
24882 . 22012 ' 13%

EXOtiC Bll0YS .vvivreiieiehive e seeerianns eerieiteenist et ss st atenssasensenns hase et er e b erernr et it et tne s . 4,018 4318 . (%)
Average Prices (per 1b.): ! '
Nickel-based and specnalt}, steel alloys............; .................................................................................. $ 11258 860 - 31%
Titanium mill products l ' $§ 2275% 1234 . 84%
Exotic alloys........................li.......: .......................... bbbttt beeereeneer e ennas $§ 4038835 4095 @ (%

Segment operatmg proﬁt fo‘r 20|05 and 2004 was adversely affected by higher raw material costs, which increased sxgnlﬁcantly in
the past several’ years. These |Ihlghler costs, while largely recovered in product selling prices through raw material indices, had a
negative effect on cost of |sales as] a result of our LIFO inventory accountmg methodology, resulting in LIFO. inventory valuatton
reserve charges of $46.0 million in 2005 and $16.2 million in 2004, f

l .

We contlnued to aggressw;ely reduce costs in 2005. Gross cost reduct1ons before the efft.cts of inflation, for 2005 'totaled
approximately $34 million. ‘Major areas of gross cost reductions included $20 million from operatmg efficiencies, $11 l'l'lllll()l’l from
procurement, and $2 million fr(?m salaned and hourly labor cost savings. !

l .

In 2005, we announced strategtc capital investments to expand our tltamum and nickel-based alloy and specialty alloy production

eapabilmes whlch mc]uded .approximately $110 million for:

i
i '

. Upgradmg and restartmg appro:limately one-half of the capacity of our! idled titanium sponge fauhty in Albany, Oregon.
» Constructing a third plasma arc melt cold-hearth furnace at ATI Allvac’s North Carollna operations. S

* Upgrading and expanding vaculum induction melt {VIM) capacnty VIM is a melting process designed for premium grades of

nickel-based alloys and: superalloys that require more precise chemlstry control and lower impurity levels.
!

|
* Installation. of new electro slag re-melt (ESR) and new VAR furnaces. ESR and. VAR furnaces are consumable electrode
re-melting processes used 0 improve both the cléanliness and meta!lurglcal structure of alloys

b
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Flat-Rolled Products

{In mitlions) ) . 2006 % Change 2005 % Change 2004

Sales to external customers.!.. M. $ 2,697.3 42% $ 1,900.5 16% §$ 1,643.9
Operating income...........o... Ll 3443 130% 149.9 144% 61.5
Operating income as a percentage of sales ..o, 12.8% 7.9% - - 3.7%
Direct international sales as' a p'ércehtage of sales ..., \ 18.0% 18.5% 12.9%
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" QOur Flat- Rolled Products segment produces, converts and dlstrtbutes stainless steel, nickel-based alloys, and titanium and
titanium-based alloys, in a varlety of product forms including plate, sheet, engineered strip, and Precision Rolled Strip® products, as
well as gram -oriented silicon el‘ectncal steel sheet, and tool steels. The major end markets for our flat-rolled products are construcnon
and mining, automotive, electncal energy, food processing equipment and appliances, machine and cutting tools, chemical process
industry, oil and gas, electromcs communication equipment and computers. The operations in this segment are ATI Allegheny
Ludlum, our 60% interest in- the Chmese joint venture company known as Shanghai STAL Precision Stainless Steel Company Limited
(STAL), and our 50% interest in the industrial titanium joint venture known as Uniti LLC. The remaining 40% interest'in STAL is
owned by the Baosteel Group,| a state authorized investment company whose equlty securities are publicly traded in the People’s
Republlc of China. The ﬁnancnal results of STAL are “consolidated into the segment’s operating results with the 40% interest: of our
mmorlty partner recogmzed n the clonsohdated statement of income as ‘'other income or expense. The remaining 50% interest in Uniti
LLC is held by VSMPO a Russmn producer of titanium, aluminum, and specialty steel products. We account for the results of the
Uniti joint venture using the equlty method since we do not have a’ controllmg interest.

' l
e




2006 Compared 1o 2005 . :

Sales for the Flat-Rolled Products segment for 2006 were $2.70 billion, or 42% higher than 2005 due primarily to increased volume,
higher average base-selling prices and higher average raw material surcharges. Comparative information on the segment’s products
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was:

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 % Change
Volume (000s Ibs.): .
HIH VAU ..ttt e e e e ae e 502,524 495,868 1%
COMIMOTILY .vovveviveeveieresrerteesoere e esee e st esessaere s s s s s s s se e s eeen e e seese e em e reae e 889,105 652,870 36%
Total Flat-Roled PROGUCES .....ovveeiiirririeree oo eeemeeeee e sernseabarsneas 1,391,629 1,148,738 21%
Average Prices (per lb.):
HiZh VBIUE. ... eereceeerereere ettt et b bbb 3 250 % 2.15 16%
COMIMOMILY .eevvoeeeereis et s s e st st se g e e e s ne e mbeem e e sbesm e s s e e eae s emnatts b 1.6l § 1.26 28%
Total Flat-Rolled Products ....c..ouceieveiviriieiciiieciiiiieiisseeteeessesseseestesnssresssssnssnsoresnesssonssnassescane 3 1.93 3 1.64 18%

Shipments in 2006 increased by 21% to 1,392 million pounds compared to shipments of 1,149 million pounds for 2005. The
average transaction prices to customers, which includes the effect of higher average raw material surcharges and higher average base-
selling prices, increased by 8% to $1.93 per pound in 2006.

Our Flat-Rolled Products segment high-value product shipments, which include engineered strip, Precision Rolled Strip, super
stainless steel, nickel-based alloys, titanium and titanium-based alloys, grain-oriented silicon electrical steel, and tool steel products,
increased 1%, with average transaction prices for our high-value products increasing 16%, primarily due to product mix. Demand was .
strong for our specialty stainless, grain-oriented silicon, titanium, and nickel-based alloy products from the chemical process industry,
oil and gas, electrical energy, and aerospace and defense markets. Our direct international sales, which were primarily comprised of
high value products, increased $134.7 million to $485.6 million, and represented 18% of sales for the Flat-Rolled Products segment.

Shipments of our commedity products, which primarily include stainless steel hot roll and cold roll sheet, and stainless steel plate,
increased 36% and average transaction prices for these products increased 28%. In 2006, consumption in the U.S. of stainless steel
strip, sheet and plate products increased approximately*15%, compared to 2005 consumption, according to the Specialty Stee! Institute
of North America (SSINA), Demand was strong for our commodity products from the biofuel (ethanol) and construction markets and
was good from the appliance and appliance related markets. Qur The Switch is On™ marketing campaign had its best year ever in
2006 as customers in both the U.S. and Europe recognized the value of lean nickel products, such as AL201HP™ stainless, which has
one-half the nickel content as the most common Type 304 stainless product with similar corrosion properties and greater strength. In
2006, shipments of 201HP increased over 40% compared to 2005. In addition, we now sell other commodity stainless products in
Europe, which demonstrates that we-are a cost competitive global producer of these products.
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The majority of our ﬂat-rol}ed products are sold at prices that include surcharges for raw materials, including purchased scrap, that

are requtred to manufacture our products The‘,e raw materrals mclude 1ror|I nickel, chromium, ‘and molybdenum
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Operating income increas:ed to- $344 3 million for 2006, compared to- $l49 9 million for 2005. The benef"ts of mcreased sales
volume, higher average basel-sel ing prlces gross cost reduction initiatives,;and additional surcharges offset significantly htgher LIFO
inventory valuat:on reserve charges due to higher raw material costs. During 2006, the average cost of our raw materials in our Flat-
Rolled -Products segment mcreased approxrmately 49% compared to the 2005 average cost As a result, for 2006 we recogmzed a
charge of $147.3 million under the L]FO inventory costing methodology. ln 2005, we recorded a LIFO inventory valuation reserve
benefit of $8.9 mrlllon asa reéult!of slightly lower raw materlal costs, compared to 2004, |

¢ .

!

|
We continued to aggresstvely reduce costs and streamline our operattons In 2006, we achleved gross cost reductions, before the
effects of inflation, of approxrmately1$96 million in our Flat-Rolled Products segment. Major areas of gross cost reductions mcluded

$75 mitlion from operatmg efﬁc1enc1es $11 million from lower compensatlon and frmge benefit expenses, and $10 million from .

.procurement savings. o : : ! ’ '

. N ‘ ' |

To support our, strateglc lgrowthirrntlanvesa in the Flat-Rolled Producls segment we committed to significantly expand our

. manufacturing capabllmes In January 2007, we announced expansion of ATI Allegheny Ludlum’s tltamum and specialty :plate

facility located in Washmgton IT'A The purpose of the capital project is to meet growing demand from the aerospace and defense,

chemical process industry, 01] ar‘ld gas, and electrical energy markets for[our Flat-RollediProducts and High Performance Metals

segments. We expect this mvestrnent to be approximately 360 million with completion planned for the second quarter 2008} The

titanium and specialty plate cl:aprtal project includes increasing reheat furnace, annealing, and flattening capacrty at the exrstmg plate
mill. In addition, our plate size capabllmes are being expanded and signifi cant pI‘OdUCtIVlty 1mprovements are bemg made. ]

'
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In 2006 we also announced the expansion of our STAL joint venture operations in Shanghai, China. This expansion, which is
expected to more than triple STAL’s precision rolling and slitting capacity, is estimated to cost approximately $110 million. The
expansion is expected to be fully operational in the 2009 first-quarter and is expected to be funded through capital contributions from
the joint venture partners, including a $25 million capital contribution by ATI, bank credit lines, and the internal cash flow of the joint
venture. .

2005 Compared to 2004 . . .
Sales for the Flat-Rolled Products segment for 2005 nfere $1.90 billion, or 16% higher than 2604, due primarily to higher avera'ge

base-selling prices and higher average raw material surcharges, partially offset by a decrease in demand in the second half of 2005.
Comparative information on the segment’s products for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was:

For the Years Ended Dece.mber 31, . . 2005 2004 % Change

Volume (000°s 1bs.): . L ‘
High valUe ..o 495,868 508946  (3)%
COMMOGILY ovovvrreririrereeeseie e stes et besass ettt ceeee e seenseres s eeesesseesesseenessnaneeeeens e - 652,870 666,560 (2)%
. Total Flat-Rolled Produels ..ottt et ee e eee e e e eeeneeee e 1,148,738 1,175,506 (2)%
Average Prices (per 1b.): ' -
High valte........coovverveerooenleva, B OSSOSO OO U UV UURUUSURURUP SO 5 215 % 1.67 * 29%
COMIMOITY ..ovvviiiiiee sttt s s st ens e s s s senes et etetesesesnees $ 126 § 1.18 7%
Total Flat-Rolled ProdUCES .....oviee ittt v s b rsb s sbemesnasesnsnsencs $ 1.64 § 1.39 18%

Our Flat-Rolled Products segment high-value product shipments, which include engin'eered"strip,’Pr'ecision Rolled Strip, super
stainless steel, nickel alloy, titanium, grain-oriented silicon electrical steel, and tool steel products, decreased 3%, while average
transaction prices for our high-value products increased 29%, primarily due to product mix. Shipments declined primarily due to
softness in automotive markets partially offset by strong capital goods and power generation markets, especially in Asia. Our direct
international sales, which were primarily comprised of high value products, increased $138.6 mrl]ron 0" $3509 million, and
represented arecord 18.5% of sales for the Flat Rolled Products segment. -

Shrpments of commod1ty products (including stainless steel hot roll and cold roll sheet, and slamless steel plate among other

products) decreased 2% and average transaction prices for these products increased 7%. The decrease in shlpments was primarily -

attributable to mventory adjustments in the second half of 2005 by service center customers primarily for stainless steel sheet. In 2005,
consumption in the U.S. of sramless steel strip, sheet ‘and plate products decreased _approximately 10%, compared to 2004

consumption, according ‘to the' Spec1alty Steel Institute of North America (SSINA). Demand from the capital goods markets such as -

chemical processmg, oil and gas, and power generatlon markets remained strong throughout 2005 We expenenced a weakenmg n

~ demand from the automotwe construcnon and mining,. and appliances markets.

Opera'ting income increased to $149.9 million for 2005 compared to $61.5 million in the 2004 period. “The benefits of higher

average base-selling prices, cost reduction initiatives, additional surcharges, and a change in the LIFO inventory valuation reserve due-

“to lower raw material costs, were partially offset by lower sh:pments and higher energy costs. During 2005, the average cost of our

raw materials in our Flat-Rolled Products segment decreased approximately 9% compared to the 2004 average cost. This compares to

an increase of approximatety 50% in 2004, compared to 2003. As a result, for 2005 we recognized a benefit of $8.9 million under the
LIFO inventory costing methodology. In 2004, we recorded a LIFO inventory valuation reserve charge of approximately $86.5 million
as a result of the higher raw material costs. Natural gas and electricity costs, net of natural gas hedges, for 2005 were approximately
$39.5 million higher than 2004.

We contmued o aggressrvely reduce costs and streamline our operatlons In 2005, we achieved gross cost réductions, before the
effects of inflation, of approximately. $85 million in our Flat- Rolled Products segment Major areas of gross cost reducuons mcluded
$24 million from operating éfficiencies, $49 million from procurement, and $12 million from lower compensatron and fringe benefit
expenses. At the end of 2005, we decided to indefinitely idle the West Leechburg, PA flat-rolled products finishing facility, which
occurred in stages during 2006. These restructuring charges of $17.5 million, plus charges of $8.5 million for fair market value
adJustmems of previously recognlzed asset impairments, are excluded from 20(]5 segment operatrng prof' L.

In 2005 we announced $16 million in strateg1c capital programs to expand our titanium and nickel-based alloy and specialty alloy
production capabilities which include:expanding high-value plate products capacrty by 25%, upgradmg our flat-rolled cold- rolling
assets used to produce titanium sheet and strip products, and expanding prem1um product re- melting capaelty These projects are
expected to be fully implemented in 2007.
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Acqmsrlmn of J&L Specrahy Steel iLLC Assets - T ;

On June 1, 2004 we completed thel acqursmon of substantially all of the assets of J&L Spec1alty Steel LLC a producer of flat-roiled
stainless steel products with operat1ons in Midland, Pennsylvania and Louisville, Ohio, for $69.0 million in total consideration,
including the assumpnon of certarn current liabilities. The purchase price included $7.5 million cash paid at closing, the issuance to
the seller of a non-interest bearlng $7.5 million promissory note paid on June 1, 2005, and the issuance to the seller of a promissory
note in the principal amount of $54 0 million, which is subject to final adjustment, and secured by the property, plant and equipment
acquired, payable in mstallments in' 2007 through 201}, which bears interest at a London Inter-bank Offered Rate plus a 1% margin,
with a maximum-interest rate of 6%.
+ {

In connecnor!t with the J&L asset acquisition, in June 2004 we reached a labor agreement with the USW, which represents
employees at Allegheny Ludlum and at the former J&L facilities. The agreement provided for a workforce restructuring through
which we are achieving srgmf' cant productivity improvements. Through a reduction in the number of job classifications and the
1mplementatton of flexible work rules employees have been given broader responsibilities and the opportunity to become more
involved in the business. The number of production and maintenance employees at the pre-acquisition Allegheny Ludlum facilities
was reduced by 650 employees or;apprommately 25%, through an early, retirement program over two and a half years pursuant to
which the employces were: offered transition incentives. Approximately 40% of these retirements occurred in second half of 2004,
with over 70% of these retrreme‘nts lflavmg taken place by the end of 2005, and 100% of these retirements were effective by thelend of
2006.

f !

The aeqmsmon of the J&L dssetls and the negotiation of the progressive labor agreement in 2004 with the USW have contmued 10
improve the performance of ourIAllegheny Ludlum business. !

I
Engmeered Products | - %
|
!

{In millions) . |

: T 2006 % Change 2005 % Change 2004
Sales to external customers..!....l' ...... PEPTTOP U URRRUP O iereereeeereeeenans $ 4327 10% $ 3934 33% % 295.0
Operating profit.........ccoceeveenene ettt et st areen et srrsn e nres C 567 15% 47.5 128% 20.8
Operating profit as a percentage’of sales ......oooeevneee e eeeen s L 13.1% 12.1% . 7.1%
Direct international sales as a pércentage of sales ............. teetertieereiteaiaans . 26.8% 28.6% 28.9%
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Our Engineered Products seément includes the production of fungsten powder tungsten heavy alloys, tungsten carbide materials
and’ carbide cutting tools. The 'segment also produces carbon alloy steel’ 1mpre551on die forgings, and large grey and ductile iron
castmgs and provides prec1snon metals processing services. The operatlons in this segment are ATl Metalwerking Products ATI
Portland Forge, ATI Casting. Servrce1 and Rome Metals, On April 5, 2005, 'we acquired U.K.-based Garryson Limited (“Garryson™), a
leading producer of tungsten car;blde burrs, rotary tooling and specialty abrasive wheels and discs. The acquisition was accounted for
as a purchase, and our results for, ATI Metalworkmg Products include Garryson 5 sales and earnings from the acquisition date.

The major markets served by our products of the Engineered Products Segment inciude a wide variety of industrial markets_
1nclud1ng automottve chemlcal‘l process industry, oil and gas, machme and cutting tools, construction and mining, aerospace
transportatlon and wmd power generatlon

]
'r

2006 Compared m 2005
Sales for the Engineered Products segment in 2006 increased 10%, to $432 7 million, and operating profit increased 19%, to $56 7
million, both compared to 2005 Demand for our tungsten products was strong from the oil and gas, construction and mining,
aerospace and defense and power generation markets. Demand was strong for our forged products from the transportation,
construction and mmmg, and: 011 and gas markets. Demand for our cast products was strong from the wind energy, and transportanon
markets. Demand remamed very strong for our titanium precrsron metal processmg conversion services.

“The |mprovement in segment'sales was primarily due to higher seliing pnces and increased volumé, including shipments from our
U.K.-based ATI Garryson L|m1ted cumng tool operations acquired in April:2005. Segment operating proﬁt improved to $56.7 million
in 2006, principally as a result of tmproved pricing and the benefits of cost: reductions, which totaled $8.2 million. This improvement
in operating profit was part1ally offset by the negative impact of higher raw material costs -especially in the second half of the 2006
year, Operating proﬁt mcluded a LIFO inventory valuation reserve charge of $0.3 million in 2006 and a charge of $8.7 million i ini 12005
as a result of hlgher raw materlal costs and inventory levels.
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In 2006, we continued to invest to enhance our manufacturing capabilities and reduce costs. In the 2005 fourth quarter, we began a |

$17 million capital investment to expand our production capacity to internally source all of our ammonium paratungstate (APT) and
cobalt requirements at what is expected to be significantly lower costs than purchased material, In addition, in 2006, we invested $4
million to expand our titanium precision metal conversion services operation as part our continuing strategic program to increase our
overall titanium production capacity to betler meet growing global demand.

2005 Compared to 2004

Sales for the Engineered Products segment in 2005 increased 33%, to $393.4 million, and operating profit increased 128%, to $47.5
million, both compared to 2004, Demand for our tungsten products was strong from the oil and gas, mining, and automotive markets.
Demand remained strong for forgings from the Class 8 truck, and construction and mining markets. Demand for our cast products was
strong from the transportation and wind energy markets. Demand was very strong for our titanium precision metal processing
conversion services.

The improvement in segment sales was primarily due to higher selling prices and increased volume, including shipments from our
U.K.-based ATI Garryson Limited cutting too! operations acquired in April 2005, Segment operating profit improved to $47.5 mitlion
in 2003, principally as a result of improved pricing and the benefits of cost reductions, which totaled $6.9 million. Operating profit
included a LIFO inventory valuation reserve charge of $8.7 million in 2005 and a charge of $9.5 million in 2004 as a result of higher
raw material costs and mventory levels: -

Corporate Expensés

Corporate expenses were 1.4% of sales, or $68.9 million, in 2006 compared to 1.5% of sales, or $51.7 million, in 2005 and 1.3% of

. sales, or $34.9 million, in 2004. The increase in corporate expenses in 2006 and 2005 was primarily the result of expenses associated

with annual and long-term performance-based incentive compensation programs, partialiy offset by cost controls.

Interest Expense, net
Interest expense,.net of interest income, was $23.3 million for 2006-compared to-$38.6 million for 2005, and $35.5 miltion for 2004.
Interest expense is presented net of interest income of $15.0 million for 2006, $8.4 million for 2005, and $2.9 million for 2004, The
increase in interest lncome for 2006 and 2005 primarily results from higher cash balances.

Increased capltal expendlrures assomated with strategic investments to expand our production capabilities resulted in higher
interest capitalization in 2006. Interest expense in 2006, 2005, and 2004 was reduced by $4.5 million, $0.2 million, and $0.9 million,
respectively, related to interest capitalization on capital projects. :

In prior years, we'entered into “receive. fixed, pay floating” interest rate swap contracts related to our $300 million, 8.375% 10-
year Notes. In 2004, we terminated the remaining ocutstanding swap agreements and recognized a gain. The settlement gain is being
amortized into income as an offset to interest expense over the remaining life of the 10-year Notes. Interest expense decreased by $1.7

- mitlion in 2006, $1 5 million in 2005, and $4.4 million in 2004 due to these settled interest rate swap agreements.

Restructuring Costs and Curtailment Gain

We had no restrucrurmg COSts or curta1lment gains in 2006 We recorded restructuring costs of $23.9 m1]]:0n in 2005 and a curtailment
gain, net of restructunng costs, of $40.4 mllllon in 2004,

In 2005, we recorded a restructuring charge of $23.9 million primarily related to recognizing an asset impairment charge for
certain tong-lived assets in the Flat-Rolled Products segment. At the end of 2005, we decided to indefinitely idle Allegheny Ludlum’s
West Leechburg, PA flat-rolled products finishing facility. The cost of indefinitely idling the facility was $17.3 million. The 2005
restructuring charge also included adjustments of previously recognized asset impairment charges for changes in estimated fair market
values. We recorded 38.5 million of asset impairment charges associated with previously idled assets in the Flat-Rolled Products
segment at the Washington Flat-Roll coil facility located in Washington, PA, and at the stainless steel plate facility located in
Massillon, OH, partially offset by a $1.9 million reversal of previously recorded lease termination charges.
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In 2004, the curtailment galn net of reslructurtng costs, of $40.4 million, mcludes the $71.5 million curtailment and settlement
gain and the $25. 3 million pensmn termination benefit charge discussed in Retirement Benefit Expense, below, and $5.8 million of
restructuring charges. The restructurmt> charges related to the 2004 labonr agreement at our Allegheny Ludlum operations and the J&L
asset acquisition, and mcluded labor agreement costs of $4.6 million, severance costs of $0.7-million related to approx1mate1y 30
salaried emp[oyees and $0: 5 ml“l(l)n for asset impairment charges for redundant equipment following the J&L asset aequtsmon
i
At December 31, 2006, approxtmately $3 million of prior year workforce reduction and facility closure charges are future cash
requirements that will be patd over the next several years. Cash to meet these obligations is expected to be paid from internally
generated funds from operattons | .
: ¢ : !

Other Expenses, Net of Gains on!'Asset Sales ; . .o o

1
[

Other expenses, net of gaults on asset sales, includes charges incurred in connection with closed operattons pretax gains and losses on
the sale of surplus real estate” norit -strategic investments and other assets operating results from equity-method investees, minority
interest, and other;non- operatmg mcome or expense. These items are presented primarily in selling and administrative expenses, and
in other income {expense) in the statement of income and resulted in net,charges of $15.2 million in 2006 and $33.8 million i in 2005,
and other income of $2.5 mllhon in 2004. : . .'

Other expenses for 2006 prtmanly related to legal costs assomatedtwuh closed operanons For 2005, other expenses tncluded
$26.8 million for legal matters and £7.0 million for environmental and other closed company costs. The charges for legal matters
included the settlement of thle Katser Aerospace. & Electronics matter the unfavorable court judgment rendered in Aprll 2005
concerning a commermal dtsp'ute with a raw materials supplier, both of whtch were paid in 2006, and other matters assoc1ated with
closed compames 'and are cIa551ﬁed in selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income: "

. ‘ P : t
Retirement Benefit Expense ! . - . _— ! !
i ;
Retirement benefit expense whlch[pnmanly includes pension and postretirement medical benefits, increased $4.3 million-in 2006 due
to the use of a lower assumed dtscount rate to value obligations and a lower level of postretirement medical benefit plan assets. In

2005 and 2004, retlrementebeneﬁt expense deeltned compared to the appltcab[e preceding full year period, primarily as a result of

‘higher than expected returns on penston assets durmg 2004 and 2003, actions taken in the second quarter 2004 to control retiree

medical costs, and the favorable lmpact of the Medicare prescription drug legislation, partially offset by the use of progresswely lower
discount rate assumptions for determmmg benefit plan liabilities. Retirement benefit expense, excluding the effect of curtailment gains
and termination beneﬁt charges was $81.9 million for 2006, $77.6 mlllton for 2005, and $119.8 million for 2004. The effect-of the
Medicare prescription drug leﬂglsléuon which provides for a Federal subsuiy 1o sponsors of reliree health care benefit plans that
provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to the benefit established by law, is recognized in operating. resultsI over a
number of years. Retirement benef’ 1 expenses are included in both cost of sales and selling and administrative expenses. Reurement
benefit expense included in cost of sales and selling and administrative’ expenses for the years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 was as
follows:

. . i . .
(In millions) . N l - i . 2006 2005 ;2004
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Costofsales.................. el b $ 553 % 55.1-3 884
Selling and adminiStrative EXPENSES. . . uu. i ieieereiraireiriiesieeaianins] e et ee e ite e eeeiaerairrrraeas 266 225, 314
Total retirement-l:uenef'ltexpense...!‘.............................................‘.i ....................................... $ 819 $ 776 $ 119.8

The 2004 retirement beneﬁt expense shown above does not include the effects of the $71.5 million curtailment and settlement gain
related to the elimination of' retlreelmedlcal benefits for certain non-collectively bargained employees beginning in 2010, nor does this
expense include the $25.3 mllllon |chttt’ge related to the Transition Assistance Program (“TAP”) incentives associated, with the 2004
labor agreement at Allegheny Ludlum which was paid from our U.S. quahﬁed defined benefit pension plan. o :
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Total retirement benefit expense for 2007 is expected to be approximately $32 million, with effects on cost of sales and selling and
administrative expenses similar to the percentages in 2006. Pension expense for 2007 is expected to be approximately $17 million,
compared to $64 million in 2006, as higher than expected returns on pension assets in 2006 and the positive benefits of the voluntary
$100 million 2006 pension contribution are partially offset by the use of a lower assumed discount rate to value pension liabilities.
Postretirement medical expense for 2007 is expected to decrease to approximately $15 million, from $18 million'in 2006, as higher
than expected returns on plan assets in 2006 is partially offset by the use of a lower assumed discount rate to value obligations.

Income Taxes

Results of operations for 2006 included a provision for income taxes of $297.3 million, or 34.2% of income before tax, for U.S.
Federal, foreign and slate income taxes. The results for 2006 benefited from a favorable $8.7 million adjustment of prior years’ taxes.
For 2005, results of operations included an income tax benefit of $54.7 million principally related to the reversal of the remaining
valuation allowance for gur U.S. Federal net deferred tax assets, partially offset by accruals for U.S. Federal, foreign and state income
taxes. Results of operations for 2004 did not include an income tax provision or benefit for current or deferred taxes primarily as a
result of the uncertainty regarding full utilization of the net deferred tax asset and available operating loss carryforwards. From the
2003 fourth quarter through the third quarter of 2005, we maintained a vatuation allowance for a major portion of our U.S.

Federal deferred tax assets and certain state deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”,
due to uncertainty regarding full utilization of our net deferred tax asset, including the 2003 and 2004 unutilized net operating losses.
In the 2003 fourth quarter we had recorded a $138.5 million valuation allowance for the majority of our net deferred tax asset, based
upon the results of our quarterly evaluation concerning the estimated probability that the net deferred tax asset would be realizable in
light of our history of annual reported losses in the years 2001 through 2003. In 2005, we generated taxable income which exceeded
the 2003 and 2004 net operating losses allowing us to fully realize these U.S. Federal tax benefits. This realization of tax benefits,
together with our improved profitability, required us to eliminate the remaining valuation allowance for U.S. Federal.income taxes in
the 2005 fourth quarter. In 2004, we received $7.2 million in income tax refunds related to carrying back the previous year’s taxable’
loss to earlier years in which we had paid taxes.

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of income and expense for financial and income tax reporting
purposes, and differences between the fair value of assets acquired in business combinations accounted for as purchases for financial
reporting purposes and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred income taxes represent future tax benefits or costs to be recognized
when those temporary differences reverse. At December 31, 2006, we had a net deferred tax asset of $151.4 million. A significant
portion of our deferred 1ax assets relates to the postretirement benefit obligations, which have been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements but which are not recognized for income tax reporting purposes until the benefits are paid. These benefit
payments are expected to occur over an extended period of years. .

Financial Condition and Liquidity

We believe that internally generated ﬁmdé, current cash on hand, and available borrowings under existing secured credit lines will be
adequate to meet foreseeable liquidity needs, including a substantial expansion of our production capabilities over the next few years.
We did not borrow funds under our domestic secured credit facility during 2006, 2005, or 2004, However, a portion of this secured

. credit facility is utilized to support letters of credit.

Our ability to access the credit markets in the future to obtain additional financing, if needed, may be influenced by our credit
rating. As of December 31, 2006, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services corporate credit rating for our Company was BB with a stable
outlook. As of December 31, 2006, Moody's Investor Service’s corporate family rating for our Company was Ba2 with a stable
outlook. Changes in our credit rating do not impact our access to, or the cost of, our existing credit facilities.

We have no off-balance sheet financing relationships with variable interest or structured finance entities.

Cash Flow and Working Capital

In 2006, cash generated by operations of $408.5 million, the proceeds from exercises of stock options of $33.1 million, and tax
benefits on share-based compensation of $80.9 million were used to invest $235.2 million in capital equipment, fund a $100 million
voluntary contribution to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan, pay dividends of $43.1 million, repay debt of $7.1 million,
and increase cash balances by $139.6 million to $302.3 million at December 31, 2006. In 2005, cash gencrated by operations of
$322.6 million, the proceeds from exercises of stock options of $26.1 million, and tax benefits on share-based compensation of $25.2
million were used to invest $90.1 million in capital equipment, fund a $100 million voluntary contribution to our U.S. qualified
defined benefit pension plan, pay $18.3 million for the acquisition of the Garryson Limited operation, repay debt of $25.7 million, pay
dividends of $27.1 millien, and increase cash balances by $111.9 million to $362.7 million at December 31, 2005. In 2004, cash

‘F33



{
|
i
t

generaled from operations of 574 l million, proceeds from sale of common stock of $229.7 million, proceeds from asset sales of $6.6
million, and proceeds from exercises of stock options of $7.6 million, were used to invest-$49.9 million in capltal egquipment, fund a
$50 million voluntary contribution to our U.S. defined benefit pensmn plan ‘pay $7.5 million of the purchase price for the J&L assets,
repay debt of $15.9 million, ipay}dwldends of $21.2 million, and increase cash balances by $171.2 miltion to $250.8 million at
December 31, 2004. We use cash flow from operations before voluntary. pension plan contributions in order to evatuate and compare
fiscal periods that do not,mclude|these contributions, and to make rescurce allocation decisions among operational requirements,

investing and ﬁnancmg alternatlves :

t

Mmmgudwod“ng(‘ﬂpm] !“m'h I Millions/$
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. 1 b -~ * 36.8% 324% 30.7% 29.5% 303% 29.0% |
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¥ ! . ' . . i i
The favorable impact of lmproved operating results in 2006 and 2005 on cash ﬂow from operatlons was offset by contmumg
investment in managed workmg capnal to support the higher business levels and the effect of higher costs for certain raw matena]s
As part of managing the lnqmdlly of the business, we focus on controlling inventory, accounts receivable and accounts payable In
measuring performance in control]mg this managed working capital, we exclude the effects of the LIFO inventory valuation reserves,
excess and obsolete mventorylreserves and reserves for uncollectible accounts receivable which, due to their nature, are managed
separately. During 2006, managed working capital, which we define as gross inventory plus accounts receivable less accounts
payable, increased $534.2 mllllon T]‘llS increase resulted from a $166.5 million increase in accounts receivable due to a higher level of
sales in the fourth quarter 2006I compared to the fourth quarter 2005, andia $409.2 million increase in.inventory, mostly as a result of
increased operating volumes and h:gher raw material costs, partially offset by a $41.5 miilion increase in accounts payable. Most of
the increase in raw materials IS expected to be recovered through surcharge and index pricing mechanisms. During 2005, managed
workmg cap:tal 1ncreased by $187'8 million, excludmg working capital acqulred as part of the Garryson Limited acquisition. This
increase in managed workmg (:lapllal resulted from a $80.9 million increase in accounts receivable due to a higher level of sales in the
2005 fourth quarter compared o the fourth quarter of 2004, and a $145.6 million increase in inventory mostly as a result of higher
costs for certain raw materials and increased business volumes, partlally offset by a $38.7 million increase in accounts payable.
Managed working ; capital | hasﬂ[mcreased $1.0 biltion over the past four years as our level of business activity has significantly
increased and raw material: costs have increased. This increase in managed working capital is expected to represent a future source of
cash if the level of business actmty were to decline. Managed working capital as a percent of annualized sales declined to 29.0% at
the end of 2006, compared to 30.3% at the end of 2005, 29.5% in 2004, and 30.7% in 2003. The decrease in 2006 of managed working
capital as a percentage of saleshwas'pnmanly due to higher business activity in the Flat-Rolled Products segment, which has a shorter
manufacturing cycle than our other business segments, and ATI Business System initiatives. While inventory and accounts receivable
balances increased during this Eour year period, gross inventory turns, which exclude the éffect of LIFO inventory valuation reserves,
decreased slightly in 2006 after improving for the past three years, and days sales outstandmg, which measures actual collectlon
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timing for accounts recelvable 'Tlas éteadtly improved.

The components of managed

workmg capital were as follows:

{
: ' | : I; l t December 31, December 31, December 31,

* (In milfions) - . , 2006 2005 12004
Accounts receivable, Net........ et et vt $° 6109 $ 4421 $ 3579
INVENLOTY, NEL....eorvvvvererreeriens b b 798.7 607.1 513.0
ACCOUMS PAYADIE i s ssssssens et (355.1) (312.9) (271.2)
Subtotal..............'.................:....!E......’ .............................................................................. 1,054.5 736.3 © 5997
Allowance for doubtful accounts L OO OO 5.7 8.1 - 8.4
LIFO reserve .............. S S O O eeeeeeeneneenns 466.7 269.7 2239
Corporate and other.............;....."t......’ .............................................................................. 55.3 339 20.6
Managed workmg capltal .......... T SO UUOT OPT eeeceiceeens $ .1,582.2 $ 1,048.0 § 8526
Annualized prior 2 MOMEKS SAIES..ccoo it cessssseseseseeessseecessaesseseebesessceresennses $ f5,453.5 $ 3461.1 $ 2,887.0
Managed working capital 852 % of Sales ..o _ -29.0% 30.3% 29.5%

Capital expenditures for 2006 were $235.2 million, compared to $90. million in 2005 and $49.9 million for 2004,
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-~ We ha\{é committed to significantly expand our manufacturing capabilities to meet current and expected demand growth from the
aerospace (engine and airframe), defense, chemical process industry, oil and gas, and medical markets, especially for titanium and

titanium-based alloys, nickel-based alloys and superalloys, and specialty alloys. Our self-funded investments include the following

* announced projects:

» A multi-phase titanium products expansion that is expected to yield 44 million pounds of aerospace quality titanium sponge
annual gapacity and increase ATI’s annual titanium melt capacity by at least 25 million pounds. The four-phase expansion, which
is expected to total approximately $625 million, includes the following: - ‘ , AN

L v

restarting ATI’s titanium sponge facility in Albany, OR, constructing a third Plasma Arc Melt (PAM) cold-hearth furnace in
Bakers, NC; adding three vacuum arc remelt.(VAR) furnaces, expanding high-value_plate products capacity by 25%, and
continued upgrading of ATI’s cold-rolling assets-used in producing titanium sheet and strip products. Phase 1 of our Albany,
OR titanium sponge facility is now fully operational with six new furnaces producing at an annualized rate of approximately
8.0 million pounds, and the additional VAR melt capacity began operations in late 2006 and carly 2007. The riew PAM furnace
is expected to begin operations in the first.quarter 2007. Plasma arc melting is a superior cold-hearth. melting process for
making alloyed titanium products for jet engine rotating parts, medical applications, and other critical applications. VAR
melting is a consumable electrode re-melting process that improves the cleanliness and chemical homaogeneity of the alloys.

“— The .Phase 11-expansion of ATI's titanium -production capabilities was announced in March 2006, and includes additional

. titanium sponge capacity at ATD’s facility in Albany, OR, and an additional VAR furnace at ATI’s facility in Bakers, NC. We

expect the additional titanium sponge production capacity -of approximately 4.0 million pounds annually from this phase to

begin operation in the first half of 2007. The additional VAR melt.capacity is expected to begin operation early in the third
quarter 2007. s

.— The Phase HI expansion of ATI’s titanium production capabilities was announced in June 2006, and. includes additional
titanium sponge capacity and an additional VAR furnace at ATI’s facility in_Albany, OR. The additional titanium sponge
production capacity of approximately 4.0 million pounds annually from this phase is expected to be fully operational in the

- second half of 2007. As a result of Phases I, 11 and 111, we expect our annual titanium- sponge production capacity from the
Albany facility.to be approximately 12 million pounds in 2007, expanding to-approximately 16 million pounds in 2008. The
additional VAR melt capacity is expected to begin operations in two stages, with the first start-up in the second quarter of 2007
and the second stage in the first quarter of 2008, B

— In June 2006, we announced the Phase 1V expansion to our titanium capabilities. Phase 1V is a greenfield premium-grade
titanium sponge facility to be built in Rowley, UT. with an annual capacity of 24 million- pounds. This investment, which is
estimated at $425 to $450 million including engineering and design for future expansion, is aimed at increasing our capacity to
produce titanium alloys for aerospace and defense applications. Premium-grade sponge is essential for many aerospace
applications, including rotating quality titanium alloys used for new jet engines and spare parts. ATI expects initial production
of titanium sponge to begin in the third quarter 2008, and grow to an initial annualized rate of 24 million pounds in 2009.

— In February 2007, we announced a further expansion of our Albany, OR titanium sponge production capabilities. The additional
expansion of the Albany, OR facility will include four sponge furnaces and related processing operations, and is expected to be

. in service in the first half of 2008.- This expansion is expected to-add another 4 million pounds of titanium sponge capacity
annually. . ' :

Upon the completion of these phases, our internal titanium sponge annual capacity of approximately 44 million pounds will be in

addition to the amount of titanium sponge and titanium scrap that we purchase from external sources.

» In January 2007, we announced the expansion of our titanium and nickel-based superalloy capabilities at facilities located in
. Bakers, NC. The total investment is approximately $215 million, which is expected to be nearly evenly spread over the next three
... years and be substantially completed by the end of 2009. The project will include:- - -

— The Phase 1 expansion of ATD’s titanium production capabilitie's was announced in July 2005, and includes upgrading and .
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— Additional forging capacrtyI We plan to add an integrated 10,000 ton press forge, 700mm rotary forge, conditioning, finishing,

and inspection facility to support increased forged product requirements. The new forging capacity is expected to be operational
by the third quarter 2009. Forgmg is a hot- fonmng process that produces wrought forgmg billet and forged machmlng bar from
an mgot . ; i

q
i

— A fourth PAM to support przemtum titanium alloy growth requirements. We expect this fourth PAM furnace to begin product1on
by the fourth quarter 2008 l o . _—
— Additional VAR capacrlty to support premium nickel-based superalloy and titanium growth, We expect one néw VARito be in

product1on in the first quartTr 2008. The remaining four VAR furnaces would be mstalled as needed. i
s AS60 mrllron'expansrdn of our titanium and specialty plate facility located in Washington, PA, which is expected to be co}npleted
in the second quarter ”008 In addition to titanium and titanium alloys ‘ATD’s specialty plate products include duplex alloys,
superaustenitic alloys, mckel based alloys, zirconium alloys, armor plate, and common austenitic stainless grades. Plate is a flat-
rolled mtll product that is3/16 inch (4.76 mm) thick; or greater, and over 10 inches (254 mrn) w1de The project will include:

— lncreasmg reheat furnace, annealmg, and flattenmg capacity at ATl‘s existing plate mlll '
(A

|
i ' i

— ln‘addmon 'ATI’s pl'tte srze;capabﬂlttes are berng expanded and srgmﬁcant productivity improvements are being made.+.

= A 330 million expansron lof ohr premium-melt nickel-based alloy, superalloy, and specialty alloy production capabilities to our
capacity to produce -these hlgh performance alloys used for aero-engine rotating parts, airframe applications, oil and gas
exploration; extraction am}d relﬁnmg, power generation land-based turblnes and flue gas desulfurization pollutlon control units,
which was! completed i early 2007. Major projects”of this expansron which ' increased our premium-melt capac1ty by
approx1mately 20%, mcluded I _ !
' |

— Upgrading and expandmg vacuum induction melt (VIM) capacity. /'VIM is a melting process designed for premium grades with

high alloy content that requtre more precise chemistry controt and lower impurity levels. - .

I N

—Installauon of two- ncvlv electro-slag re-melt (ESR) furnaces and three new VAR furnaces ESR and VAR fumaces are
consumable electrode ret-melltlng processes used to improve both the cleanliness and metallur; grcal structure of alloys.

l
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The above-described strateglc growth capital projects represent approx1mately $925 ‘million of self funded capital investments,
approximately $145 million of which had already been expended through 2006. We expect that our projected 2007i capital
expenditures will be between $450 to $500 million, including $300 to $330 million for the above-mentioned strategic capital projects.
The remaining $450 to $480 mrllron of the §925 mlllton of strateglc growth capital projects will be expended in 2008 and 2009, with
the majority of the expendltures expectcd in 2008. : 1

H
i

Addrttonally, STAL, our Chmi:se joint venture company in which ‘ATl has a 60% interest, commenced an expansion of its
operatlons in Shanghai, Chma r:rr lat'e 2006. This expansion, which is expeoted to more than triple STAL’s precision rolling and’ sllttlng
capacily, is estimated to cost approximately $ 110 million. The expansion is expected to be fully operational in the 2009 first quaner
and is expected to be funded through capital contributions from the joint venture partners, bank credit lines, and the internal cash flow
of the joint venture, Our cash d'ontnbutron to this expansion is expected to be approximately $25 million, of which $12.4 million was
contributed by ATI in the 200? thtrd quarter with the remainder anticipated to be contributed in the first half of 2007. The financial
results of STAL are eonsoltderlted into our financial statements with the 40% interest of our minority partner recognized as other
income or expense in the statements of income and as a liability in the slatements of financial position.

. i { ' . B ' . . '
Debt : Tk : i _ ‘ ;

]

Total debt outstanding decreased $6 8 million, to $553.6 million at December 31, 2006, from $560.4 million at December 31, 2005.
The decrease was primarily related 1o capital leases and financing on certain caprtal projects. In managing our overall capital structure,
one of the measures on which \'ve focus is net debt to total capitalization, which is the percentage of our debt, net of cash on hand, to
our total invested and borrowed caprtal In determining this measure, debt and total capitalization are net of cash on hand which may
be available to reduce borrowrngs Our net debt to total capitalization ratio improved to 3.3% at December 31, 2006, from 19.8% at
December 31, 2005, and 43. 8%| at December 31, 2004. The lower ratio in'2006 results primarily from a continued increase in cash on
hand and stockholders equlty resultmg from the improvement in results of operations. |
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' : December 31, December 31,

{in millions) . - 2006 2003

P TOtal debt .l erereers oo sriresessioreres e e e emeneeeeesesesess $ 5536 $ 5604

1 Less: Cash ....ovcvovn oot e etteiiert it et s et nans tereiareresreereresstabeiasasaennansennneaas (502.3) (362.7)
INEE AEDBE. ... euversees e oo eeet e eee et e et e eu et ea bt cae b et e es et et es b s as s ab s e de e eb e eA et e R e e A et eR e At r e b e £ s er e e r e neneenene e raea bR ares 3 51.3 $ 197.7
NEE QOB ev.. et et eeeeseeseeeeeeeeess s sess s esessemae e e e s e s eesse e e seseasesesemaetes e b s s e s raerseban s ea s ne s et $ 513 £ 1977
Total stockholders’ equ1ty 1,492.6 799.9
Total capital ... eeevevessnerararantatasesesetntntntntnansessnnesmareeen st sesassnatatbabararerenesererernresasiseneseereronrensioene B 1,543.9 3 997.6
Net debt to capltal FALO oo oot eeseeesseeeeseesseeseeeesseereseeeserenefeescreieessaeeeesscsc e 3.3% 19.8%

We maintain a senior secured domestic revolving credit facility which is secured by all accounts receivable and inventory of our
U.S. operations and includes capacity for up to $175 million of letters of credit. Under the facility, if undrawn availability, as defined
in the facility, were to decline below $75 million, corporate actions that could be undertaken without the prior consent of the lending
group, including capital expendltures acquisitions, sales of assets, dividends,’ investments in, or loans to, corporations, partnerships,

. joint venturés and subsidiaries, lssuance of unsecuréd indebtedness, leases, and prepayment of indebtedness, would be limited. The
amended facility contains a financial covenant, Wthh is not measured unless our undrawn availability is less than $75 million. This
financial ¢ovenant, when measured, requires us to prospectively maintain a ratio of consolidated earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (as défined in the credit facility) to fixed charges of at least ‘1.0 to 1.0 from the date the covenant is
measured.. Our abilityto borrow under the amended secured credit facility in' the future could be adverse]y affected if we fail to
maintain the applicable covenants under the agreément governing the facility. At December 31, 2006; we "had the ability to access the
entire $325 million undrawn avarlab:llty under the fac:llty, and the measurement of the ﬁnanelal covenant described above was 5. 0 to
1.0.

Interest rate swap contracts have been used from time-to-time to manage our exposure to interest rate risks. At December 31, 2006,
we have no interest rate swzip contracts in'place. We have deferred gains on settled “receive fixed, pay floating™ interest rate swap
contracts associated with our $300 million, 8.375% Notes due 2011 (“Notes”). These gains on settlement, which occurred in 2004 and
' 2003, remain a component of the reported balance of the Notes, and are ratably recognized as a reduction to-interest expense over the
remaining life of the Notes, which is approximately five years. At December 31, 2006, the deferred settlement gain was $10.5 million.
The'result of the “receivé fixed, pay floating” arrangements was a decrease in interest expense of $1.7 miilion, $1.5 mitlion'and $4.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, compated to the fixed interest expenserof the ten-year
Notes.

A summary of requ:red payments under financial instruments (excluding accrued mterest) and other commltments are presenled

below ! -
Lo - : . . ..

A S - : ‘ Less than 1-3. 4-5 -+ - After§
(In millions) Total . . 1year years years years
Contractual Cash Obligations )

Total Debt including Capital Leases.......coovvrcccnniinssiinsninns $ 5471 § 237 8§ 270 $34001 5 1563
Operating Lease Obligations. ... 516 17.0 18.2 10.1 6.3
Other Long-term Liabilities {A)......coiviviiiiiimimiiiii i o, 1498 s— o, 159 7.6 66.3
Unconditional Purchase Obhgatlons , - ' ‘ . ) .
Raw MAterials (B) ..l ' 5.4 7334 T175 3145 0 —
Capital expenditures......... _ e : . 3657 06  — T —
Other(C) ................... Ko eeereeeeenceeeeesnrnenetessnrneesncesrace ‘ . - 181 98 20 0.6
TOAL ... oottt eresresesresremees ,581. $ 8287 § 849.0 56743 $ 229, 5"
‘ (in millions) )
Other Financial Commitments
Lines 0f Credit (D) .evvievcvicerecisininiseeresererererssssssssassesasssssccassasesssssnsnsessesesns $ 3957 $ 450 % — 83507 § —

GUATAIITEES ....eieeieiieieeeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeestssesbeesseabesessbasaesssseeassssssasssrneeersnrrarane ) 17.2

(A) OIHer long—terrri liabilities ex'chide' pen'sion liabilities and aeerued'postretirement bene_ﬁts.
(B) We have contracted for physncal del:very for certain of our raw materials to meet a pomon of our needs. These contracts are

based ‘ipon fixed or variable price provisions. We used: current market prices as of December 31, 2006 for raw material obllgatlons
with varlable pricing.
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(C) We have varrous contractual obligations that extend through 2015 for services involving production facilities ‘and

administrative operanons Our purchase obligation as disclosed represents the estimated termination fees payable if we were to exit
these contracts. . . l ! 1

l.

(D) Drawn amounts, 1f any', are! included in total debt. There are no drawn amounts at December 31 2006. Includes $119.5 million
utilized under the.$325 million domestic secured credit facility for standby letters of credit, which renew annually and aref used to
support: $72.5 miltion of ﬁnahcmg outside of the domestic secured credit facility, primarily for our foretgn-based operations; $38.5
million in workers compensatlon;and general insurance arrangements ‘and $8.5 million related to legal, environmental and other
matters. ot

| l . . |
. " . 4
Retirement Benefits .~ . _ r - l

We adopted Statement of Fmancrall Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Def'med Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans™ (“FAS 158”) on December 31, 2006. FAS 158 requires that the net funded position of the plans, as measured by
the pro_]ected benefit obllgat:'on (‘PBO™) in the case of pension plans, and by- the accumulated postretirement benefit obllgatlon
(“APBO™) in the case of other"I postretirement benefit plans, be récognized as an asset or liability in the employer s balance sheet. As
required under the accountmg mles which existed prior to adoption of the new standard, we recognized an increase to stockholders’
equity of $389.8 million at ycar-end 2006 primarily as a result of the improved funded position of the U.S. defined benefit pension
plan. Srmultaneously, the adoﬁtronlof FAS 138 resulted in a reduction to stockholders equity of $342.6 million, which is included as a
component of accumulated 'other comprehensive income. The net effect of both of these adjustments was an increase in stockholders
equity of $47.2 mrlllon Thesg charg,es and adjustments did not affect our results of operations and do not have a cash 1mpact In
addition, they do not affect colnpltance with debt covenants in our bank credrt agreement.

We were not requrred to makelcash contributions to our U.S. defined benefit pensron plan for 2006, 2005 or 2004. Durmg the
fourth quarter 2006 and 2005, and the third quarter 2004, we made voluntary contributions to this defined benefit pension plan, of $100
million, $100 million and $50 mtllron respectively, to improve the plan’s funded position. Based on current regulatrons and actuarial
studies, we do not expect to be required to make cash contributions to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan for at least the
next several years. We may elcct' depending upon mvestment performance of the pensmn plan assets and other factors, to make
addmonal voluntary cash contnbut}ons to this pension plan in the future.

We fund cettain retiree 'health care benefits for Allegheny Ludlum usmg investments held in a Company-administered Voluntary

Employee Benefit Assocranon[(VEBA) trust. This allows us to recover a portion of the retiree medical costs. In accordance with our

labor agreements, during 2006, 2005, and 2004, we funded $28.3 mrlllon $24.7 million, and $18.2 million, respectively, of retiree
medical costs using the mvestmchts of the VEBA trust. We may contmue to fund certain retiree -medical benefits utilizing the
investments held in the VEBA! The value of the investments held in the VEBA was approxnmately $93 million as of November 30,
2006, our measurement daie fo'l' acoountmg purposes. .

. " vy : ‘ .
; - i - .
Dividends o : ‘ ' | 4

We paid a quarterly drvrdend of $0 10 per share of common stock for each of the first three quarters of 2006. [n the fourth quarter of
2006, our Board of Directors lncreased the cash dividend paid on our common stock to $0.13 per share. During 2004 and the first
three quarters of 2005, we patd a quarterly dividend of $0.06 per share of common stock. In the fourth quarter of 2005, our Board of
Directors mcreased the cash d1v1dend paid on our common stock to $0.10] per share. The payment of dividends and the amount of siich
dividends depends upon matters decmed relevant by our Board of D1rect0rs such as our results of operations, financia! condition, cash
requirements, future prospects lanyf limitations imposed by credit agreements or senior securities, and other factors déemed relevant

and appropnatc .
N

Critical Accounting Policies || | ' : !

" The accompanymg consolldated ﬁnancral statements have been prepared in conformity with United States generally accepted
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accounting principles. When more than one accountmg principle, or the method of its application, is generally accepted, management
selects the principle or method‘ that is appropriate in our specific c1rcumstances Application of these accounting principles requires
our management to make esttmates about the future resolution of cxrstmg uncertaintics; as a result, actual results could differ from
these estimates. In preparing these f' nancial statements, management has made its best estimates and judgments of the amounts and
disclosures included in the ﬁnancra] statements giving due regard to rnaterlallty .. )
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Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

1 e . *
.- . . »

Revenue is recognized when title passes or as services are rendered: We havé no significant unusual sale arrangements with any of our
customers: - L St . . : -

We market our products to a diverse customer base, principally throughout the United States. Trade credit is extended based upon
evaluations of each customer’s ability to perform its obligations, which are updated periodically: Accounts, receivable reserves are
based upon an aging of accounts and a review for collectibility of specific accounts. Accounts receivable are presented net of a reserve
for doubtful accounts of $5.7 million at December 31, 2006 and $8.1 million at December 31, 2005, which represented 0.9% and
1.8%, respectively, of total gross accounts receivable. During 2006, we wrote off $1.7 miltion of uncollectible accounts, which
reduced the reserve, and also reduced expense by $0.7 million frorh.decreasing the reserve for doubtful-accounts. During 2005, we
recognized expense of $1.7 million to increase the reserve for doubtful accounts and wrote off $2.0 million of uncollectible accounts,
which reduced the reserve.

Inventories . . _ ot .

At December 31, 2006, we had net inventory of $798.7 million. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (last-in, first-out (LIFO),
first-in,. first-out (FIFO) and average cost methods) or market, less progress payments. Costs include direct material, direct labor and
applicable manufacturing and engineering overhead, and other direct costs. Most of our inventory is valued utilizing the LIFO costing
methodotogy. Inventory of our non-U.S. operations is valued using average cost;or FIFO methods. Under the LIFO inventory
“valuation method, changes in the cost of raw materials and production activities are recognized in cost of sales:in the current period
even though these material and other costs may have been incurred at significantly different values due to.the length of time: of our
production cycle. The prices for many of the raw materials we use have been extremely volatile during the past three years..Since we
value most of our inventory utilizing the LIFO inventory costing methodology, a rapid rise in raw material costs has a negative effect
on our operating results. For example, in 2006, 2005, and 2004, the efféct of the increase in raw material costs on our LIFO inventory
valuation method resulted in cost of sales which was $197.0 million, $45.8 million, and $112.2 million higher, respectively, than
| "would have been recognized if we utilized the FIFO methodology to value our inventory. In a period of rising prices, cost of sales
expense recognized under LIFO is generally higher than the cash costs incurred to acquire the inventory sold. Conversely, in a period
of declining raw material -prices,-cost.of sales recognized under LIFO is generally lower than cash costs incurred to-acquire the
inventory sold. -

We evaluate product. lines-on a quarterly basis to identify inventory values that exceed estimated net. realizable value. The
calculation of a resulting reserve, if any, is recognized as an expense in the period that the need for the reserve is identified. At
Deceinber-31, 2006, no sich reserves were required.-It is our general policy to.write-down to scrap value.any inventory that is
identified as obsolete and any inventory that has aged or has not moved in more than twelve months. In some instances this criterion is
up to twenty-four months due to the longer manufacturing and distribution process for such products. '

Asset Impairment
' We monitor the recoverability of the carrying value-of our long-lived assets. An impairment charge is recognized when the expected
. net undiscounted future cash flows from an asset’s use (including any proceeds’ from disposition) are less than the.asset’s carrying
value, and the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair.value. Changes in the expected use of a long-lived asset group, and the financial
performance of the long-lived asset group and its operating segment, are evaluated as indicators of possible impairment. Future cash
flow value may include appraisals for property, plant and equipment, land and improvements, future cash flow cstimates from
operating the long-lived assets, and other operating considerations. - - R - :

At December 31, 2006, we had $206 million of goodwill on our balance sheet. Changes in the goodwill balance from 20035 are due
to foreign currency translation. Of the total; $112 million related to the Flat-Rolled Products segment, $68 million related: to the High
Performance Metals segment, and $26 million related to the Engineered-Products segment. Goodwill is required to be reviewed
annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The impairment test for goodwill is a two-step process. The first step is a
comparison of the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If this comparison reflects impairment,
then the loss would be measured as the excess of recorded goodwill over its implied fair value. Implied fair value is the excess of the
fair value of the reporting unit over the fair value of all recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities.
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We perform our annual evaluation of goodwill for possible impairment during the folurth. -quarter. Our evaluation of gooderI for
possible 1mpa1rrnent mcludcs estlnhatmg the fair market value of each of the reporting units that have goodwill associated wrth their
.operations using drscounted clish ﬂow and multiples of cash eamings | valuation. techniques, plus valuation comparlsons to recent
public sale transactrons of similar busmesses if.any. These valuation methods require us to make estimates and assumptions regarding

* future operating, results cash flows, Jincluding changes in workmg capital and capital expenditures, selhng prices, profitability,iand the

cost of capital. Although t%ve beheve that the estimates and assumptions used were reasonable, actual results could differ from those
estimates and aslsumptrons' No lgoodwrll 1mparrment was determined to ex1st for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004

. '
b 1 [ . : +

. ) t
Contingencies . - Lo i . e

o i g , _‘ . ' l

. v ! . . g - - - . . . ! .
When it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset has been impaired, we recognize a loss if the amount of the loss can
. . : : i .

be reasonably estimated. ll | ‘ : _ !
H ' |

We are Sllb_]BCt to varlous domestrc and international environmental laws and regulations that govern the discharge of pollutants,

and disposal of wastes, and: WlllCh may require that we investigate and remediate the effects of the release or disposal of materials at

sites associated with past and plresent operaticns. We could incur substantral cleanup costs, fines and civil or criminal sanctions, third

party property damage or personal injury claims as a result of* vrolatlons or liabilities 'under these laws or -non- comphance with

environmental - permlts reqmred at our facilities. We are currently mvolved in the investigation and remedratron of a number of our
curent and former snes as well as thrrd party sites.

With respecn to proceedmgs brought under. the Federal Superfund laws or srmllar state statutes, we have been 1dent1ﬁed as a.

potentially responsible party (“‘PRP”) at approximately 28 of such sites, excluding those at which we believe we have no future
liability. Our involvement i is lnmted or de minimis at approximately,21 of these sites, and the potentlal loss exposure with respect to
any of the remammg 7 mdlvrdual srtes is not considered to be material.. | . P o !

13

i . l | | . o - } . - ' L l N
. We are a party to vanous c!(i)st-s'harlng arrangements with- other PRPs at the sites. The terms of the cost-sharing arrangements are
subject to non—dl!sclosure agreements as confidential information. Nevertheless thie cost-sharing arrangements generally . require all
PRPs to post ﬁnancrai assurance of the performance of the obligations or to pre-pay into an.escrow or trust account their share of

_anticipated site- related costs In'add;tlon the Federal government, through various agencies, is a party to several such arrangements

[ : ’ l : | ; 7
Environmental llabrlltres are recorded when our habrhty is probable and the costs are reasonablv estlmable In many cases, lwe are
not able to determme whether we aré liable ot, if liability is probable, to reasonably estimate the loss or range of“loss. Estlmates of our
liability are- further subject to additional uncertainties including the nature and extent of site. contamination, available remedratron
alternatives, the extent of corrective factions that may be required, and the partrcrpanon number and financial condition of otherI PRPs.

i
We intend to adJust our accrua]s to reflect new mformanon as appropriate.! Future adjustments could have a material adverse effect on
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our results of operatlons m1a grlven period, but we cannot reliably predtct the amounts of such future adjustments. At December 31
2006 our reserves for envrropmental matters totaled approximately $25 m111|on

Accruals for losses from; env1rorl1mental remediation obligations do not take into account the effects of inflation, and anncrpated
expenditures are not dlscountedlto their present value. The-accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries from insurance camers or
other third partres but do reflect alldcations among PRPs at Federal Superfund sites or similar state-managed sites after an’ assessment
is made of the llkehhood thatils.ueh parties will fulfill their obllgatlons at such sites and after appropriate cost-sharing : ot other
agreements are entered Our measurement of environmental liabilities |is based on currently available facts, present- laws and
regulations, and current technoldgy lSuch estimates take into consideration our prior experience in site investigation and remed1anon
the data concernmg cleanup coSts available from other companies and regulatory authorities, and the professional judgment of our
environmental experts in consultatloh with outside envrronmental specialists, when necessary [

. l . rl. " , v . .

+ Baged on cun’ently avallablel mfonnatlon we do not believe that there 1s a reasonable possrblhty that a loss exceeding the amount.

already accrued for'any of the matters with which we are. currently associated (cither individually or in the aggregate) will ibe an -

amount that. would be matenal to aldeclsron to buy.or sell:our, securities! Future developments, admmlstratlve actions or liabilities -

relatmg to env1ronmental matters, however could have a material. adverse effect on our ﬁnanclal condition or results of operations. *
|. 1 H - _’ \ B L r o X o :
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Retirement Benefits

{

I . : - .

! We have defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans covering substantially all of our employees. In the fourth
|

; quarter 2006 and 2005, and in third quarter 2004, we made voluntary cash contributions of $100 million, $100 million and $50

' million, respectively, to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan to improve the plan’s.funded position. We are not required to
" make a contribution to the U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan for 2007, and, based upon current regulations and actuarial
, analyses, we do not expect to be required to make cash contributions to the U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan for at least the
* next several years. However, we may elect, depending upon the investment performance of the pension plan assets and other factors,
+ to make additional voluntary cash contributions to this pension plan in the future.

' We account for our defined benefit pension plans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” (“FAS 87"), as amended by FAS 158 regarding the balance sheet presentation of pension
assets and liabilities, FAS 87 requires that amounts recognized in financial statements be determined on an actuarial basis, rather than
as contributions are made to the plan. A significant element in determining our pension (expense) income in accordance with FAS 87
, is the expected investment return on plan assets. In establishing the expected return on plan investments, which is reviewed annually
in the fourth quarter, we take into consideration input from our third party pension plan assct managers and actuaries regarding the
' types of securities the plan assets are invested in, how those investments have performed historically, and expectations for how those
investments will perform in the future. Our expected return on pension pian investments is 8.75%. We apply this assumed rate to the
| market value of plan assets at.the end of the previous year. This produces the expected return on plan assets that is included in annual
! pension (expense) income for the current year. The actual return on pension plan assets was 18.2% for 2006, 9.7% for 2005, 11.7% for
{' 2004, and 13.1% for 2003. While the actual return on pension plan investments has exceeded the expected return on pension plan
i investments for each of the past four years, our expected return on penston plan investments for 2007 remains at 8.75%. The effect of
increasing, or lowering, the expected return on pension plan investments by 0.25% results in additional annual income, or expense, of
! approximately $5.4 million. The cumulative difference between this expected return and the actual return on-plan assets is deferred
'and amortized into pension income or expense over future periods. The amount-of expected return on plan assets can vary
significantly from year-to-year since the -calculation is dependent on the market value of plan assets as of the end of the preceding
year: U.S. generally accepted accounting principles allow companies to calculate the expected return on pension assets using either an
average of fair-market values of pension assets over a period not to exceed five years, which reduces the volatility in reported pension
income or expense, or their fair market value at the end of the previous year. However, the Securities and Exchange Commission
currently does not permit companies to change from the fair market value at the end of the previous year methodology, which is the
methodology that we use, to an averaging of fair market values of plan assets methodology. As a result, our results of operations and
those of other companies, including companies with which we compete, may not be comparable due.to these different methodologies
in calculating the expected return on pension investments.

1 .

i At the end of November of each year, we determine the discount rate to be used to value pension plan liabilities. In accordance
; with FAS 87, the discount rate reflects the current rate at which the pension liabilities could be effectively settled. In estimating this
, rate, we receive input from our actuaries regarding the rates of return on high quality, fixed-income investments with maturities
! matched to the expected future retirement benefit payments. Based on this assessment at the end of November 2006, we established a
* discount rate of 5.8% for valuing the pension liabilities as of the end of 2006, and for determining the pension expense for 2007. We
! had previously assumed a discount rate of 5.9% for 2005, which determined the 2006 expense, 6.1% for 2004, which determined the
, 2005 expense, and 6.5% for 2003, which determined the 2004 expense. The effect of lowering the discount rate to 5.8%, from 5.9% in
« the previous year, increased pension liabilities by approximately $22 million at 2006 year-end, and is expected to increase pension
. expense by approximately $3.5 million in 2007. The effect on pension liabilities for changes to the discount rate, as well as the net
i effect of other changes in actuarial assumptions and experience, are deferred and amortized over future periods in accordance with
- FAS 87. . :

ll We adopted FAS 158 as of fiscal year-end 2006. FAS 158 requires that the net funded position of the plans, as measured by the
- projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) in the case of pension plans, and by the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (“APBO™)
tin the case of other postretirement benefit plans, be recognized as an asset or liability in the employer’s balance sheet. Prior period
' information is not restated, In addition, the new standard will require assets and benefits to be measured at the date of our statement of
! financial position, which is December 31, rather than our measurement date of November 30, as currently permitted. This change will
! be effective for our 2008 fiscal year.
i

.
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Prior to the adoptlon of FAS 158, the funded status of pension plans was measured by the accumulated benefit obligdtion
{(“ABO™). At the November 30, 2006 measurement date, our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan was overfunded on an ABQO
basis, and we reversed the ;')reweusly-recorded minimum pension liability and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
associated with this plan when it had been in an ABO underfunded position, recorded a prepaid pension cost asset of $569.9 million,
and increased stockholders’ equlty by $389.8 million, net of related deferred tax effects. However, on a PBO basis, which is the
funded status measure requ1red by FAS 158, our U.S. quahﬁed defined benefit pension plan was underfunded by $5.6 million at the
measurement date. For ourU. S qualified defined benefit pension plan, the adoption of FAS 158 eliminated the $569.9 million prepaid
pension cost, established ,a $5 6 mllllon noncurrent liability, and reduced stockholders’ equity by $345.3 million, net of related
deferred tax effects. We also sponsor other non-qualified defined benefit. pensron plans in the U.S., a defined benefit pension plan in
the U.K., and several postretlrement benefit plans, Including these other pension and postretirement benefit plans, the aggregate effect
of adoptmg FAS 158 reduced stockholders’ equity by $342.6 million, net of related deferred tax effects, as a component of
accumulated other comprehenswe lincome {loss). The net effect of these adjustments was an increase in stockholders’ equity of $47.2
million. These charges and adjustments did not affect our results of operations and do not have a cash impact. In addition, they do not
affect compliance with debt colven?ns in our bank credit agreement. :

!

We also sponsor several postretlremem plans covering certain hourly and salaried employees and retirees. These plans provide
health care and life insurancé benefits for cligible employees. Under most of the plans, our contributions towards premiums are
capped based upon the cost asl' of a certain date, lhereby creating a defined contribution. For the non—collectlvely bargained plans, we
maintain the right to amend or terminate the plans in the future. We account for these benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretlrement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“FAS '106"), as amended by FAS 158 regarding the
balance sheet display of pen5|0n1and other postretirement benefits oblrganons assets and liabilities, which. requires that amounts

1
-recognized in financial statements: be determined on an actuarial basis, rather than as benefits are paid: We use actuarial assumptions,

including the discount rate’ and the expected trend in health care costs, to estimate the costs and benefit obligations for the plans. The
discount rate, which is determmed annually at the end of November of each year, is developed based upon rates of return:on high
quality, fixed-income inveéstments: At the end of 2006, we determined thls rate to be 5.8%, a reduction from a 5.9% discount rate in
2005, 6.1% discount rate in 2'004land 6.50% in 2003. The effect of lowermg the discount rate to 5.8% from 5.9% increased 2006
postretirement benefit llabllmes by approximately $3 million, compared to the prior year, and 2007 expenses are expected to increase
by approximately:$0.5 million. Based upon predictions of continued significant medical cost inflation in future years, the annual

"assumed rate of increase in theI per capita cost of covered benefits for health care plans is 10.0% for 2007 and is assumed to gradually

decrease to 5. 0% in the year 2016 and remain level thereafter, '

. , i \ , :

The Medicare Prescrlpuon Drug, [mprovement and Modernization ‘Act provides for a federal sub51dy, with tax-free payments

commencing in 2006, to spondnrs of retiree health care benefits plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to the

benefit established by the iav.ir[ The federal subsidy included in the law' resulted in a reduction of our other postretirement jbenefits

obllgatlon of apprnxlmately $70 mllllon .which will be recognized in operating results over a number of years as an actuarial

experience gain: As a result of;this reduction of our other postretirement L benefits obligation, our 2006 and 2005 postretlrement benefit
expense was' reduced by approxlmzlttely $10 million in each year. ; ;

b
- - [

Certam of these postrellrement benefits are funded usmg plan investments held in a Company aclmmlstered VEBA trust The

~ expected retumn on plan |nvestments is a significant element in determining postretirement benefits expenses in accordance with FAS
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106. In establishing the expected return on plan investments, whlchtls reviewed -annually in the fourth quarter, we take into
consideration the .types of Securmes the plan. assets are invested in; how those investments have performed hlstoncally, and
expectations for how those mvestmems will perform in the future. For 2006, our expected return on investments held in the. VEBA
trust was 9%. This assumed long-tem1 rate of return on investments is applled to the market value of plan assets at the end of the
previous year. This produces lhe expected return on plan investments that is included in annual postretirement benefits expenses for
the current year. While the actual relum on investments held in the VEBA trust was 50.0% in 2006, 11.6% in both 2005 and 2004, and
9.3% for 2003, our expected rletum on invesiments'in the VEBA .trust remains 9% for 2007. The expected return on investments held
in the VEBA trust is expccled to exceed the return on pensmn plan investments due to a higher percentage of private equ1ty
investments held by the VEBA|& trust . ) . !

I ; l- . :

New Accountmg Pronouncements - :

In September 2006, the FlnanclallAccoummg Standards Board issued FAS 158, an amendment to its standards for defined benefit

pension and other postretirement benefit plans accounting. The new standard requires that the net funded position of the plans, as

measured by the projected bedeﬁt obllganon in the case of pension plans, and by the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation in

the case of other postretlrement benefit plans, be recognized as an asset ¢r liability in the employer s balance sheet. As required under

the accounting rules which exlsled prior to adoption of the new standard, we recognized an increase to stockholders’ equity of $389.8
1
]

!
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million at year-end 2006 primarily as a result of the improved funded position of our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan.
Simultaneously, the adoption of FAS 158 resulted in a reduction to stockholders’ equity of $342.6 million, which is included as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. The net effect of both of these adjustments was an increase in stockholders’
equity of $47.2 million, In' addition, the new standard will require assets and benefits to be measured at the date of the employer’s
statement- of financial position, which is December 31 in our case, rather than our measurement date of November 30, as currently
perrnltted This change will be effective for ATI’s 2008 fiscal year. : :

The FASB lssued in September 2006 a FASB Staff Posmon (“FSP™) t1tled “Accountlng for Planned Major Maintenance
Activities” (“FSP PMMA™): This FSP amends an AICPA Industry Audit guide and is applicable to all industries that accrue for
planned major maintenance activities. The FSP PMMA prohibits the use of-the accrue-in-advance method of accounting for planned
major maintenance activities, which is the policy we used to record planned plant outage costs on an-interim basis within a fiscal year,
and also to record the costs of major equipment rebuilds which extend the life of capital equipment. The FSP PMMA is effective as of
the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year, with retrospective application to all prior periods presented. Under the FSP PMMA, we will
report results using the deferral method whereby major equipment rebuilds are capitalized as costs are incurred and amortized into
expense over their estimated useful lives, and planned plant outage costs are fully recognized in the interim period of the outage. The
adoption of the FSP PMMA on January 1, 2007, resulted in an increase to retained earnings of $12.2 million, net of related taxes.
Retrospectively applied, our net income for 2006, 2005 and 2004 increased $2.1 million, $2.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively,
or approximately $0.02 per share for each year. Beginning with the 2007 first quarter, ATI’s financial statements will reflect this FSP
for all periods, as if it had been applied to the earliest period presented. - .

In June:2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty, in
Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 prescribes
| recognitionjand measurement standards for a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The evaluation of a tax position
in accordance with FIN 48 is a two step process.- The first step is the determination of whether a tax position should be recognized in -
the financial statements. Under FIN 48, a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return is to be recognized only if we
determine that it is more-likely-than-not that the tax position will be sustained upon-examination by the tax authorities based upon the
technical merits of the position. In step two for those tax positions which.should be recognized, the measurement of a tax position is

determined as-being the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48
| was effective for the beginning of ATI’s 2007 fiscal year, with adoption treated as a cumulative-effect type reduction to retained
earnings in the range of $10 million as of the beginning of 2007.

In-the fourth quarter 2005 we, adopted the Financial Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretatlon No. 47, “Accountmg
for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” (“FIN 47), an interpretation” of FASB Statement No, 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations™ (“SFAS 143”). FIN 47 clarifies that the term “conditional asset retirement obllgatlon” as used in SFAS 143
refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and {or) method of settlement are conditional on
a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. An entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of
a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated, even if conditional on a future
event. For existing asset retirement obligations which are determined to be recognizable under FIN 47, the effect of applying FIN 47 is
| recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. Our adoption of FIN 47 resulted in recognizing a charge of $2.0
million, net of income taxes, or $0.02 per share, in the fourth quarter 2005 principally for estimable asset retirement obligations related
to remediation costs which would be incurred if we were to cease certain manufacturing activities which utilize what may be
categorized as potentially hazardous materials. - ‘ . .,

In the'ﬁfst quarter 2005, we adopted FASB Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”). Under this revised
standard, companies may no longer account for share-based compensation_transactions, such as stock options, restricted stock, and
potential payments under programs such as our Total Shareholder Return Program (“TSRP”) awards, using the intrinsic value method
as defined in APB Opinion No. 25. Instead, companies are required to account for such equity transactions using an approach in which
the fair value of an award is estimated at the date of grant and recognized as an expense over the requisite service period.
Compensation expense is adjusted for equity awards that do not vest because service or performance conditions are not satisfied.
However, compensation expense already recognized is not adjusted if market conditions are not met, such as our total shareholder
return performance relative to a peer group under our TSRP awards, or for stock options expiring “out-of-the-money.” We adopted the
new standard using the modified prospective method, in which the effect of the standard is recognized in the period of adoption and in
future periods. Prior periods are not restated to reflect the impact of adopting the new standard at earlier dates.
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From time- to-tlme the: Company has made and may continue to make “fonvard Iookmg statements” w1th1n the meaning of the Private
_Securities™ L1t|gat|on Reform Act of 1995, Certain- statéments in’this report relate to future events “and expectatlons and, as such,

constitute forward looklng statrements Forward-looking "statements ‘include those’ contammg 'such words as “anticipates,” “beheves
“estimates,” “expects ? “would ” “should ? *will,” “will likely resuit,” “fdrecast ” “outlook,” “projects,” and similar express1ons Such
forward- lookmg statement‘s' are based on management § current expectatlons and include known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors, many of wh:ch"thelCompany is-unable to predict or control that may cause our. actua] results or performance to
materially differ- from any, future results or performance-expressed or; implied byssuch statements! Various of these factors ‘are
described in ltem 1A, Rlsk Factors of this Annual Repott on Form 10-K and will be described frorn time-to-time*in the Company
filings w1th the 'Securities’ and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), 1ncludmg the Company s Annual Reports on -Form 10-K:and the
Company’s subsequent'reports ftled with the SEC on Form 10-Q and Form 8-K, which are available on the SEC’s website at
http:/fwww.sec. gov and’ on the Company s website at: http://www, alleghenytechnologtes com. We assume no duty to update our
forward -looking statements : 3 . . ‘. i

: . . l‘ . s _i *, : - l

Item 7A Quantltatwe and Qualltatne Dlsclosures About Market Rlsk ) SR . S DR S AP

D ; b o (o]

Interest Rate Rrsk. We attelmpt to maintain a reasonabie balance between fixed- and’ ﬂoatmg -rate debt to keep fmancmg costsl as low
as possible. At December, 31 “2006 we had approximately $78. mllllon of floating rate' debt outstanding with a weighted average

- interest rate of approxrmately 6. 1%: Approximately $54 mitlion of this ﬂoanng rate debt is capped at a 6% maximum interest rate, and

at December 31 2006, was. be'anng interest at the capped 6% rate. Since the interest rate on ﬂoatlng rate debt changes with the short-

term market rate of interest; we are iexposed to the risk that these interestirates may increase; raising our interest expense in srtuatlons
“where the interest rate is not cappeld For example, a hypothetical 1% in rate of interest on the $24 million of our outstandlng ﬂoatmg
: rate debt not subjected to a cap would result in increased annual financing costs of $0.2 mrlhon _ : i )

}l' T e . . oo

>

’ Var’anmy 0f Energv Prrces. Energy resources markets are subject to, condmons that create uncenalnty in the prices and avatlablhty of

energy resources. The pnces fdr and avallablhty of electricity, natural gas il and other energy resources are subject to. volatrle market
conditions. These market condmons often are affected by political and economic: factors beyond our control. Increases in’ energy costs;
or changes in’ costs relatlve tollenergy costs paid by competitors,*have and may continue to adversely'affect our. proﬁtablhty To the
extent that these' uncenatntles cause suppliers and customers to be more cost sensitive, increased energy prices may have an adverse

_effect on'our. results of operatlons and financial condition. We use approximately 10 to 12 million MMBtu’s of natural gas annually,

depending upon!busmess condlmons in the manufacture of our products% These purchases of natural gas expose us to risk of higher
gas pnces “For example ‘a hypothetu,al $1.00 per MMBtu increase in the price of natural gas, ‘would result in increased annual Jenergy

- costs of approx1mately $10 t0*$12 million. We use several approaches to- minimize any material adverse effect-on our ﬁnancral

| ft
condition or results of operanons from-volatile energy prices: These approaches include mcorporatmg an energy surcharge on many of

»

- l. 1" 1 -
our products and using fi nanc1a] derwauves to reduce exposure to energy prlce volatthty SR : - [ T

‘i b t " b . . A R
Volanhry of Raw Materml Prrces. We use raw materlals surcharge -and index mechamsms to offset the"impact of 1ncreased raw
material costs; however compettttve factors in the marketplace can hmlt‘our ability.to institute such niechanisms; and there' can be a

“delay between the i mcrease n the pnce of raw materials and the realtzatton of the-benefit of such mechanisms. For example, smce we .
‘generally use 1n|excess of[85 mtlhon pounds- of -nickel each year, a hyppthencal change of $1.00 per pound in nickel pnces would

result in mcreased costs of[approxrmately $85 million. In addition, we also use in excess of 800 million pounds of ferrous scrap in the
production of our products andla hypothetical change of $0.01 per poundiwould result'in increased costs of approximately $8 million.
While we enter mto raw materials futures contracts’ from time-to-time to hedge exposure 10 price fluctuations, such asfor nickel! we

cannot be- certain that our hed'ge posmon adequately reduces exposure We believe that we have adequate controls to monitor these

F44

tv 0}

'
contracts, but we may not be able to accurately assess exposure to price volatthty in the markets for crttlcal raw materials. - "
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’ltem 8. Financizl Statements and Supplementary Data . KR
Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and Subsndlanes ,
Consolidated Statements of Income
{In millions except per share amounts) ’
For the Years Ended December 31, - . : 2006 2005 - 2004
Sales - - : $ 4,936.6- § 35399 § 27330
Costs and expenses: o o
| COSEOFSAIES ..o s 3,743.8 2,889:7 2;488.1
Selling and administrative eXpenses ..........coeeveevevemrirenesicrenns e e 295.3 2758 2333
Restructuring costs and curtailment (gain), net.................. TP PO OO P S SR — 23.9 (40.4)
Income before interest, other income (expense), income taxes and cumulatwe effect of change :
in‘accounting prmmple ................................................................................................................ 897.5 -350.5 52.0-
Interest expense, Net.........cococveveeieiiicnnn, o (23.3) (38.6) (35.5)
Other income (expense), net js : (5.0) 48 - 33
- Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle................ . 8692 3071 198
Income tax provision (benefit)........... Lt eceeuesrsseeetue oneenese e reer e e e e e e aneeneereeanE e s eenteeataratesheesrareenae 297.3 547 —
Income before cumulative effect of change in accountmg PINCIPIE oo . 3.9 3618 . 19.8.
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, Net OF tAX......ooveiiiiiiiiii i serseeae — 2.0 L —
NEEIICOMIE 1111 oot ceceeeeeceeeeceseeeeeeccaeececeeeesenteenteceeceeereeninreeeeeecereceeemcecceeeereececcececceree. 3 3119 & 3998 & . 10.8
Basnc income per common share before cumulative effect of change in accounting pnnc1plc ....... 3 574 .8 3768 023
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle............... L leiiecureerrrsnrennanesnass i aesraenresrasree — 0.0y —
Basic net income per COMMON SRAIE. .........ccoovoveeveiieiieiicee e Dot eeeeeeeseeeeeeenetenseenenen 3 574 § 374§ 0.23
Diluted income per common share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... '§ 559 § 359 § 022
Cumulative effect of change in accounting pr1nc1ple ...................................................................... — . -(0.02) —
Diluted net income per common share ....................................... et re s s r e se s srenas "8 559 §. .357-% 0.22
| - .
. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements, . . .
F
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The accompanymg nate.s; are an integral part of these statements.
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Allegheny Technologles-Incorporated and Subsudlarles ‘ P o i : b
ConsolldatediBalance Sheéts A ' i ' e 1 ;
N L { S PR , e T B T
2 ' E : o S k LT S T _l December 31, - Deéerplﬁ_éﬂl, ‘-{
(In mrlhons excepr share ::md pershare amounts) - L L * A 2006 T 2005 E -
. Assets G } ‘ : ] ' : co T T L
~ + Cash and cash equxvalcnts e e T e fi' 8. 5023 % 362 7 o
Accounts recelvable net ... ] e s SRR SV s e 6109 =~ 4421, |
InVehtories, net..I ........... [R5 SO0 O AN R 798.7 607.1°
" Deferred i mcome taxes ..U....ﬂ ...... | 3 ................................ evereesssaes e ' Pl ~ 26.6 - 228 L
_ Prepaid expenses and other.current assets ¥ . '- ‘ 49.4 L 493 j‘
v .+ Total Current Assets."......= ...... ‘.‘ ............ fere ettt ee et reene et e ' ;. 1,987.9 11,484.0 2l
Property, plant and eqmpment net .. ; : - : ) . 867, 6. " 704 9 - i|
Cost in excess of net assets acqulred . 206.5° 199 7 o A
! 1248, ., 10553 L
= 1006 4
S » 95.4 ,,Jr 87.17, S
' - $ 32822 ..§ 12 731 6 . ]'
Llabllmes and Stockholders’ Equlty . EEANE T LS DU ST o e g v
Accounts payable .......... e, e s erstere et B s 8135801 —_ '_$; 312 9 i
Accrued fiabilitics......... H!F!” ....... eeeeeaeenesieeee SR e . 266.7 - 246
" Short-term’debt and cirrrent portion.of long- term debt ) : : T SR, L. 231 134 b
. Total Current Liabilities ./................... sreeerieeerene S OO SO R 7. T X 560 9.
. Long-termdebt L.t L o - - Pl [ 0529970105470 . .
. Accrued postretlrement benefits B, JOOE ST OO SOOI RPN Y. e o - 4286 4615 t :
" Pension 11ab111t1es..........!.E.....f; ..... B, RN RS T SOTUE U OO OO USSP 358 2429 7
* Other long-térm liabilities... ...l B R 1498 - 1'1194 . % ‘
+ . Total Liabilities ...t -k L. . ... e e e enaneearaean s verrenns ot 17896 0 - 19317 ¢
Stockholders’Equity: {[ f | o oo = ’ b
Preferred stock par value $0 10: authorized - 50 ,000,000 shares; 1ssued NONE ..M it ieneninns . v — B — f
*Common stock par value $0 IO authorized - 500,000,000 shares 1ssued 101,201 4]] at 2006 and oY
. 98,951, 490 at 2005 outstandmg —-101 ,201 328 shares at 2006 and 98 200,561 shares at 2005 ..... 10.1 99 - 1
Additional pald in capltal.i.l ...... B e e SO SOV ST e R 637.0 1 5356 | .

" Retained eamings...... “..:..i ....... i’* .......................... el Sy 1,156.3 642.6 & ‘
Treasury stock 83 sha‘res ziat 2({06 and 750,929 shares at 2005............ j ................. et STERUSPUR. - —_ (188
Accumulated other commprehensive loss, net of tax : - (310.8) (369.4)

Total Stockholders’ Equity L. ST ST 1,492.6 . 17999
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ............. eerrreneerenesaereies eteereciee e et eeeeereeenes ‘ $ 32822  $ 2,731.6




Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ‘ -
{In millions}
For the Years Ended December 3t 2006 2005 2004
Operatmg Activities: '
Net income........ et e O RO TR OTOOP .. $ 5719 § 3598 § 1938
" Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operatmg activities: ‘ ‘ o S
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. ... e — 20 —
Depreciation and amMOTIZAtION ........ccuoeieeiereeee e eresn e eanesr e ese e seess s eetrrenrssenesns e 842 77.3 76.1
Non-cash restructuring costs and curtailment (gain), net......ccocoveviininininnns [FORUROR —  .224 (43.6)
- Deferred i income taxes .............. e hberbreeettenebbe e te oo b e e be e ab e e bee4ea b e et b e enaben b e et ae e b b e e b bae e e et aenneeias 8.2 92.0) -~ (04)
Change in operating assets and liabilities: - ' .
IVENEOTIES ..ereiier e e e eere e ee s es s st e e s n e e s sase e b e e s rareeabe s sanseensesaranesser e e bneennreerrneesneearaeasasssnseeasnens {(191.6) (87.9) (96.8)
© ACCOUNS TECEIVADLE ..ottt ettt e e Teeeeens (168.8) (78.7) (78.4)
Pension assets and liabilities (a) ......... e eeeaeeeemememesiseseseseatrrarete s eseses s e be e e e b S b bbb aba bbb e b et eEetnes (433) - (42.3) - 182
Accounts'payable............ S S RTRUP ».d42.2 0 390 83.7
ACCTUC TADTIHES c..vvv e eeeeeeeeeee e seessteeeesee e seeseeeeceeseseseseeseeeneseeseee e 30.7.. "38.7° 11.0
POSITEHIEMENT DEMEIIIS 1 viiiviriiriieieerir v rerersraestesssassseissesssasnsease e sassssessesssesssesnsesnnensnanasenseesenenes 6.3 - (11.1)° 189
Accrued income taxes, net of tax beneﬁt on share-based compensation .................... 42 T 185 7.2
Other......... ST POy U OO UOT DD p PO OO POE FOPPYCEPTUOPOTFPPPOPN : {22.9) (23.1) 104
Cash provided by operating activities ...............ocooooioioiiieiiieee e b : 085 2226 0 241
Investing Activities: - ‘ -
Purchases of property, plant and eqUIPIMENt ..ot e (235.2) - (90.1) - (49.9)
Purchase of businesses and investments in ventures, net of cash acquired.............cceeinns Ceieeened n —. (18.3) (7.5)
Disposals of property, plant and equUIPmEnt........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiii s 2.0 0.6 © 6.6
Proceeds from sales of businesses and mvestments and (011113 (O O 0.5 (4)y- (3.8
Cash used in investing ACHVILES. ..................o.iiiiiiiiiiiciicis it erreeirscie e e eesbestesasasraeanas (232.7y (109.2) - (54.6)
Financing Activities: ' , : ‘
Payments of long-term debt and capital 1€aSES ....c.cococeiviriieiiiiiiiiir it (7.8) (385) --(27.1)
Borrowings of [ong-term debl........c..ccociiioiiiiei s ressesrersserarssasssissssaissessessersensessesssesesnsasssseessases B KU D i
Net borrowings (repayments) under credit facilities ............. Feiseeresreeesarararnrerareesrneersreserperasaess esnees - 0.7 1.8 (0.5)
Net repayments ........... et eteeeeeeeetesesereestesesstesissesssseistsieressisssessssesesssistesesneeseeseansessissesinisiaiatsreinte . {7 {25.7) (15.9)
DIAVIAENAS PAIL 2.2t st e se et et e s easmnse s et esesesessssssssnamenetnsnsntsenenbeemans {43.1)- -(27.1) (21.2)
EXErCisSes 0f SLOCK OPHONS ...vrvvreriroiieieteieirererersrssssarsesseisssssssmerasssaseintrssinsesssssessassessesssesassassansns e 331 - 261 - 7.6
" Tax benefit on share-based COMPENSATION.......cceriiirieeieeeiireere e e e s e e ressaresrssseneas 80.9 252 —
Issuance of COMMON SIOCK .....ccovceiciiiriri e es s e s e e s e e e ereead e —_ — 2297
Proceeds from interest rate swap settlement ........... TheesreesresreisrssheeeneeRrab s et e st e eareenrronreeRrenrnenresrreaneeas — — 1.5
Cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancmg activities...........cccovvv i, iereeesrriarressrrarasasns : 63.8 (1.5) 2017
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ... T, ‘1396 tiL9- 1712
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......... Ltetiarer e s s sas e LOTPPUPOTTO e 362.7 2508 " - 796
Cash and cash equivalents at entd 0 YEAN .........cccocviiiiiiiviciiiiniccceecies i ceesiersiseesireesrresoresrraeeseeeas § 5023 § 3627 § 2508

fa) Includes annual voluntary cash pension contributions of 3(100.0) million in 2006 and 2005, and $(50.0) miilion in 2004.

Amounts presented on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows may not agree to the corresponding changes in balance sheet items
due to the accounting for purchases and sales of businesses and the effects of foreign currency translation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Allegheny Technolog:es lncorporated and Subsidiaries ? ' - '
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity } . { ot
, 3 d " .
Lo o i H Accumulated i .
I ;l o Additional o . Other  +  Stock-
‘, "1. i : Common ' | Paid-ln  Retained Treasury  Comprehensive . "holders™
{In millions except per Share amoums) . Stock ., Capital Famings "Stock Income (Lnss) l Equity
Balance, December 3, 2003.‘.l ............................................ §. 99 S 4812 8 4838 § (4584) 8 (341.8) " § 11747
Net income.........ten b il b e — — 19 8 L= — i 19.8
Other comprehenswe 1ncome (loss) net of tax ' i : ) 3
" Minimum pensnon llablllty adjustment ............................. — — — —_ 2.1 <201
Foreign currency translatlonlgams ................................... — — — — - 208 i 20.8
Unrealized losses on derivativest............... eereerereeeeneees — — — — {12.4) (12.4)
_Comprehensive income...... !....'.‘ ...... e ) —— i — 19.8 — 10.5. : i 303
Cash dividends on common stock ($0 24 per share)............ - — (21.2) — — -1 (212)
Issuance ofcommon stock ..... I, e : (116.0) 345.7 — 1~“229.7 ‘
' — — (20.9) 333 — 1124
Balance, December 31, 2004.'.’ ...... D 9.9 | 481.2 345.5 (79.4) .(331.3) , 4259
Net income.......\... SR E !....'.’......i ..................................... — ' — 3598 S ¢, — - j 3598
Other comprehenswe mcome (loss), net of tax:....... - : f , b
Minimum pensnon llablllW adjustmcnt — | — = —_ (36.0) ~e(36.0)
Foreign cun*ency translatlon ‘losses — = i— — 227 - -+ (227
Unrealized gains on derivatives . T ' — 205 . 1.205
Change in unreallzed gams (!)ln 1; 1 o
securities . A — — — — 0.1 N
Comprehenswe income........... !‘.......‘ ..................................... — — 359.8 - (38.1) |321.7
Cash dividends on common stack ($0 28 per Chare) ............ — .| — - (27 D = — ; @711
Employee stock plans ...t b T — © 544" (356) . 60.6 — I 794
Balance, December 31, 2005.1! el 9.9 v 5356 6426 (18.8) {369.4) | 799.9
Net incotne ; — % — 5719 . — —. x3571 9
Other comprehenswe mcome (loss) net of tax: | ) . -
Minimum penmqn l1ab111ty adjusﬁment ............................. — | — — — 389.8 '389 8
Foreign currency translatlonlgams ....................... RTINS i — | — — — 243, i 243
Unrealized losses on derlvauves .l ..................................... — | — — -— (13.6) - E (13.6)
Change in unrealized £AINS ON SECUTILIES ........voveveeses — . — — 0.7 P07
Comprehensive income....}. 0L — ; - 5719 . = 401.2 ; 973.1
Adjustment to mltlally apply LFASB Statemt.m No 158 . i ' ' : - .
net Of taxX oo.oor i S — — — (342.6)  (342.6)
Cash dividends on commorilfstock ($0.43 per share) ............ — ! — 3., — R (43.1)
Employee stock plans”...~. O SO T O 0.2 101.4 (15.1) 18.8 — . 1053
Balance, December 31,2006.10.....0 .......covveevervrnnnnene § 101 §: 6370 $1,1563 & = — (310.8)° $1.492.6
- NN N R
The accompanying notes c_n:'l an integral part of these statements. 1 ' %
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accoumfng Firm

Board of Directors .
Allegheny Technologies Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on these financial statements based on our audits.

. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform theaudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinien.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of accour;ting for penéions and other

. postretirement benefits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2005 the Company changed its methods of accounting

for stock-based compensation and conditional asset retirement obligations.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Allegheny Technologies Incorporated’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 21, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania *
February 21, 2007
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ t L :
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Note 1. Summary, of Signi}ﬁcant Accounting Policies — | ]
| !
!

1 g [ I
The consoltdated ﬁnancral statements include the accounts of Allegheny T echnologtes Incorporated and its subsidiaries, including the
Chinese joint venture known as Shangha1 STAL Precision Stainless Steel Company Limited (“STAL”), in which the Company has a

60% interest. The remamlng, 40% mtcrest in STAL is owned by Baosteel Group, a state authorized investment company whose equity
securities are publicly tradéd i 1n the People’s Repubtic of China. The fi nancral results of STAL are consolidated into the Company 5
operating results with the 40% mterest of the Company’s minority partner recognized on the statement of income as other i 1ncome or
expense, and on the balanceé sheet in other long-term liabilities. Investments in which-the Company exercises significant mﬂuence but
which it does not ;controd! (generally a 20% to 50% ownership mterest), are accounted for under the equity method of accountmg
Significant mte’rcompanyr dccounts and transactions have been el:mmated Unless the context réquires otherwise, “Allegheny

Technologies,” {'ATI” and! the| “Company refer to Allegheny Teehno]ogles Incorporated and its subsrdrartes . {[
L I j [ t
. &

i

Use of Estimates X !} ! . ’
The preparatton of consoltdated financial statements inconformity with' United States generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estlmates and assumptions that affect reported amounts, of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reportmg, period: Actual results could differ

from those esumates Management believes that the esnmates are reasonable, -
. aF

t | ! ‘i {
Cash Equivalents and J’nve'stments= : I : ' t
. ! ‘.

| *
|

! ' | '
Cash equwalents are hrghly quurdimvestments valued at cost, whtch approxlmates fair value acqutred with an original maturity of
three months or!less -

' !
' i . -'i - . [ , : . ;

The Company’s invest'men”ts in debt and equity securities are classrt‘ ed as available-for-sale and are reported at fair values, with
net unrealized apprecratlon and depreciation on investments reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensrve; income
(loss). ) | ! . !

| | I
Accounts Receivable '

S -. .

Accounts receivable are presepted' net of a reserve for doubtful accounts of $5.7 million at December 31, 2006, and $8.1 mtllton at
December 31, 2005 The lCon?pany markets its products to a diverse customer base, principally throughout the United States Trade
credit is extendled based upon evaluations of each customer’s ability to perform its obltgattons which are updated perrodlcally
Accounts receivable reserves are dletermmed based upoen an aging of accounts and a reviéw for co]lecttbthty of specific accounts No
single customer accountedl for: ‘more than 10% of sales in 2006. : |
] H
i iy : f t
Inventories | '! : l : , _ ‘ t
Inventories are stated at the lower ot cost (last-in, first-out (LIFO), first-in, first-out- (FIFO) and average cost methods) or market less
progress payments Costs' mc'lude direct material, direct labor and applicable manufacturmg and engineering overhead, and other
direct costs. Most: of the Company § inventory is valued utilizing the LIFO costing methodology. Inventory of the Company S non-
U.S. operations s valued us!mg averdg,e cost or FIFO methods. i
, ‘ t b
The Comparity evaluates product lines on a quarterly basis to identify inventory values that exceed estimated net realizable value.

i
. The calculation of.a resultmg reserve if any, is recognized as an.expense in the period that the need for the reserve is identified. It s

the Company’s general policy to wrtte down to scrap value any mventory that is identified as obsolete and any inventory that has aged
or has not moved in more than Itwelve months. In some instances this criterion is up to twenty-four months, \

t; ! :
Long-Lived Assets ) : E

£ ; I

: {
Property, plant and equ1pment are recorded at cost, including capitalized interest, and includes long-lived assets acquired under capital
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leases. The pnncrpal methocl df deprecratron adopted for all property placed into service after July 1, 1996 is the straight-line method
For buildings and equrpment acqurred prior to July 1, 1996, deprecratlon is computed using a combination of accelerated and stratght-

1:"H ' |
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line methods. Significant enhancements that extend the lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Costs related to repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense in the year incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of property and equipment
retired or disposed of are removed from the accounts and any related gains or losses are included in income.

The Company monitors the recoverability of the carrying value of its long-lived assets. An impairment charge is recognized when
the expected net undiscounted future cash flows from an asset’s use (including any proceeds from disposition) are less than the asset’s
carrying value and the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value. Assets to be disposed of by sale are stated at the lower of their fair
values or carrying amounts and depreciation is no longer recognized.

Cost in Excess of Net Assets Acquired

At December 31, 2006, the Company had $206.5 million of goodwill on its balance sheet. Of the total, $68.4 million related to the
High Performance Metals segment, $112.1 million related to the Flat-Rolled Products segment, and $26.0 million related to the
Engineered Products segment. Goodwill increased $6.8 million during 2006 as a result of the impact of foreign currency translation on
goodwill denominated in functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The Company accounts for goodwill under ‘Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142). Under SFAS 142, goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The
impairment test for goodwill requires a comparison of the fair value of each reporting unit that has goodwill associated with its
operations with its carrying amount; including goodwill. If this comparison reflects impairment, then the loss would be measured as
the excess of recorded goodwill over its implied fair value. Implied fair value is the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over
the fair value of all recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities. :

The evaluation of goodwill for possible impairment includes estimating the fair market value of each of the reporting units which
have goodwill associated with their operations using discounted cash flow and multiples of cash earnings valuation techniques, plus
valuation comparisons to recent public sale transactions of similar businesses, if any. These valuation methods require the Company to
make estimates and assumptions regarding future operating results, cash flows, changes in working capital and capital expenditures,
selling prices, profitability, and the cost of tapital. Although the Company believes that the estimates and. assumptions used were
reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. The Company performs the required annual goodwill
impairment evaluation in the fourth quarter of each year. No impairment of goodwill was determined to exist for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Environmental

Costs that mitigate or prevent future environmental contamination or extend the life, increase the capacity or improve the safety or
efficiency of property utilized in current operations are capitalized. Other costs that relate to current operations or an existing
condition caused by past operations are expensed. Environmental liabilities are recorded when the Company’s liability is probable and
the costs are reasonably estimable, but generally not later than the completion of the feasibility study or the Company’s
recommendation of a remedy or commitment to an appropriate plan of action. The accruals are reviewed periodically and, as
investigations and remediations proceed, adjustments of the accruals are made to reflect new information as appropriate. Accruals for
losses from environmental remediation obligations do not take into account the effects of inflation, and anticipated expenditures are
not discounted to their present value. The accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries from insurance carriers or other third parties,
but do reflect allocations among potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) at Federal Superfund sites or similar state-managed sites
after an assessment is made of the likelihood that such parties will fulfill their obligations at such sites and after appropriate cost-
sharing or other agreements are entered. The measurement of environmental liabilities by the Company is based on currently available
facts, present laws and regulations, and current technology. Such estimates take into consideration the Company’s prior experience in
site investigation and remediation, the data concerning cleanup costs available from other companies and regulatory authorities, and
the professional judgment of the Company’s environmental experts in consultation with outside environmental specialists, when
necessary.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging

As part of its risk management strategy, the Company, from time-to-time, purchases futures and swap contracts to primarily manage
exposure to changes in nickel prices, a component of raw material cost for some of its high performance metals and flat-rolled
products, and natural gas, a significant energy cost for all of the Company’s businesses. The contracts obligate the Company to make
or receive a payment equal to the net change in value of the contract at its maturity. These contracts are designated as hedges of the
variability in cash flows of a portion of the Company’s forecasted purchases of nickel and natural gas payments. The majority of these
contracts mature within one year. The Company accounts for all of these contracts as hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting
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| Standards No. 133, “Accountmg for Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Activities” (“SFAS 133”). Changes in the fair valueof these

: contracts are recogmzed as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity until the hedged item is

recognized in the’ statement of mcome within cost of sales. If a portion of the contract is ineffective as a hedge of the underlymg

I'
exposure, the change in fa1r value related to the ineffective portion 1s :mmedlately recogmzed as income or expense in the statement of

income within cost of sales T S 1 i
i | Ty X

i r I ‘ i ! . ‘ - : | ;
Foreign currency exchange contracts are used, from time-to-time, to llmlt transactronal exposure to changes in currency exchange
rates. The Company sometimes purchases foreign currency forward contracts that permit- it to sell specified amounts oﬂ foreign
currencies expected to belreéervefd from its export sales for pre-established U.S. dollar amounts at specified dates. The forward
»contracts are denommated n the same foreign currencies in which export sales are denominated. These contracts are desrgnated as
hedges of the variability in ‘cash-flows of a portion of the forecasted future export sales transactions which otherwise would expose the
Company to forelgn curren:cylnskl The Company accounts for all of these contracts as hedges under SFAS 133. Changes in' the fair
value of these contracts are recogmzed as a component of other comprehensrve income (loss) in stockholders’ equity until the hedged
itern is recogmzed in the statement of income. If a portlon of the contract 15 meffectwe as a hedge of the underlying exposure the
change in fair value related to the lineffectwe port1on is immediately recogmzed as income or expense in the statement of i mcome
! S Co ; = { S AR "
Derivative mterest rate l:ontracts are used from time-to-time fo manage the Company’s exposure to interest rate risks: For example
in 2003 and 200|2,,the Company entered into interest rate swap contracts for the receipt of fixed rate amounts in exchange for" ﬂoatmg
rate interest payments over the ltfe of the, contracts without an'exchange of the underlying: prmcrpal amount. These contracts.are
designated as fair value hedge'ls As a result, changes in the fair value of these swap contracts and the underlying fixed rate debt are
recognized in the statementlof mco;me , l * . , ol
N |
In general ‘hedge effectwe]nesslrs determined by examining the relat1onshtp between offsetting changes in fair vaiue or cash flows
attributable to the item bemglhedged and the financial instrument bemg used for the hedge. Effectiveness is measured utlhzmg
regression analysis and other Itechmques to determine whether the change in the fair market value or cash flows of the derivative
exceeds the change in fair ,value or,cash flow of the hedged item.'Calculated meffectweness if any, is immediately recognized on the
statement of income. For the .years ended December 31, 2006, 20035, and 2004, calculated meﬁ'ecttveness was not material to-the
| results of income, I !l - S ) 1
l l ; ’ . I " . e o - }.
| Fareign Currency. Translatl'iorr : 1
i v t .
Assets and liabilities of international operations are translated into U.S.! idollars using year-end exchange rates, while revenues and
expenses are translated at 'average exchange rates during the period. The resulting net translation adjustments are recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehenswe income (loss) in stockholders” equity. : . _ l
’ |
Sales Recognition’ ‘ . . ‘ ‘
| \ o lr e . )
Sales are recognized when ‘fitlerpasses or as services are rendered. . 1 - l
. . o :
. Research and Develapment : - : e ‘ l z
. : : H ll .
Company funded research and Idevelopment costs were $9. 6 million in 2006 $8 4 million in 2005 and $8.2 million in 2004 and were
expensed as mcurred ‘Customer funded research and development costs- were $0.5 millionin 2006, and $1.7 million each in 2005.and
in 2004. Customer fundedlresearch and development costs are recogmzed in the consolidated statement of operations in accordance
with revenue recogrntron po]lCtes | .

=

) . | 3
. ! . .
‘Income Ta.res ! |; . ‘ : l

. E N | .
The provision for, or beneﬁt from, mcome taxes includes deferred taxes lesultmg from temporary differences in income for f'mancral
and tax purposes using the!llalll)thty method. Such temporary d:ffcrences result primarily- from differénces in the carrying value of
assets and liabilities. Future rleahzatron of deferred income tax assets requires sufficient taxable income within the carryback
carryforward penod avarlable ulnder tax law.. The Company evaluates, on a quarterly basis ' whether, based on all available evidence, it
is probable that. the deferred income tax assets are realizable; Valuation allowances are established when it is estimated that it 1s more
likely than not that the tax benef' t of the deferred tax asset -will not be realized. The evaluation, as prescribed by Statement of
- Financial Accountmg Standards No 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes includes the consideration of all available ev1dence both
positive and negative, regardmg htstoncal operating results including recent years with reported losses, the estimated timing of future
reversals of existing taxable! temporary differences, estimated future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary drfferences and

!
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carryforwards, and potential tax planning strategies which may be employed to prevent an operating loss or tax credit carryforward
from expiring unused.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net income or loss available to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. The calculation of diluted net loss per share, if any,
excludes the potentially dilutive effect of outstanding stock options since the inclusion in the calculation of additional shares in the net
loss per share would result in a lower per share loss and therefore be anti-dilutive.

Stock-based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123R™). Under the revised standard, companies may no longer account for share-based compensation transactions, such as
stock options, restricted stock, and potential payments under programs such as the Company’s Total Shareholder Return Program
(“TSRP”) awards, using the intrinsic value method as defined in APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
(“APB 25”): Instead, companies are required to account for such equity transactions using an approach in which the fair value of an
award is estimated at the date of grant and recognized as an expense- over the requisite service period. Compensation expense is
adjusted for equity awards that do not vest because service or performance: conditions are not satisfied. However, compensation
expense already recognized is not adjusted if market. conditions are not met, such -as -the Company’s total shareholder return
performance relative to a peer group under the Company’s TSRP awards, or for stock options which expire “out-of-the-money.” The
new standard was adopted using the modified prospective method and beginning with the first quarter 2005, the Company reflects
compensation expense in accordance with the SFAS 123R transition provisions. Under the modified prospective method, the effect of
the standard is recognized in the period of adoption and in future periods. Prior periods have not been restated to reflect the impact of
adoptmg the new standard .

Pnor to 2003, the Company accounted for its stock option plans and other stock-based compensation in accordance with APB 25.
Under APB 25, for awards which vest without a performance-based contingency, no compensation expense was recognized when the
exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options equaled the market price of the underlying stock at the date of the grant.
Compensation expense for fixed stock-based awards, generally awards of nonvested stock, was recognized over the associated
employment service period based on the fair value of the stock at the date of the grant. The Company also had performance-based
stock award programs which were accounted for under the variable plan rules of APB 25 Compensation expense for these awards of
stock, which are earned based on performance-based criterta, was recognized at the measurement date based on the stock price at the
end of the performance period, with compensation expense recognized at interim dates based on performance criteria achieved and the
Company’s stock price at the interim dates.

Compensation expense for 2006 and 2005 related to share-based incentive plans was $11.0 million and $9.4 million, respectively,
compared to $20.6 million in 2004. Share-based compensation expense for 2006 and 2005 includes $0.3 million and $2.6 million,
respectively, related to expensing of stock options. The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on operating results and per
share information for 2004, had the Company accounted for share-based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123R during this
period.

{in millions, except per share amounts) . 2004
Net inCome 48 TEPOTLEA .......covcviiieeiereriririrerese s s s b st e e b ba st sanas s e bn e e e e eeeens Crerererrores e naesnaenes $ 198
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net income, Net Of taX ..o 20.6
Deduct: Impact of SFAS 123R, N8E OF LAX ..oooeiie it es ety sm e e e et encne s et ettt {11.0)
PrO FOINIA MEE IICOIMIE ... ..otitiisviisveisesstisteesteiseseeinsssaseenseassesssessesssesasssasesaseamtaanssnssesoohsabt ek s e bt skt sabsebars e s arsbasbsaanseatasssasnsennsass § 294
Net income per common share: ' ‘ . ]
"7 BASIC — A5 FEPOTTEA ouvveecveeecesesereresesssaesanseescescsseesseseeeases e eaebe b eeb bbb s bbb em s s bR n st et be s $ 0.23
BASIC — PIO FOTINA .....vv.cesieisssissisesss s sass s semsse s s sess s bbbt sttt mmsemssenscmeesiessssessnsesressines D 0034
Diluted — as r'eported ...................................................... e rererererreerrerpa s e sesaesenaesneneatein ettt et e ene e e e n et e aena gt et s $ 022
DHIULE — PIO FOTINIA.........ooooooveoivesiesesississsssseseserasesssrsss s ssar s sessns g oE oA EA oot se81 a4t b bbb be s $ 0.33%
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- New Accounting Pronouncements

n : . o
|

In September 2006 the F mancral Accounttng Standards Board issued an amendment to 1ts standards for defined beneﬁt pension and
other postretrrement benefit plans aceountmg The new standard; Statement of Financial Accountlng Standards No. 158, “Employers

Accounting for Défined Benéfit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (“FAS 158™), requires that the net funded position of the

" plans, as measured by the|prdjected benefit obligation in the. case of pensron plans, and by the accumulated postretirement benefit

obligation-in the case of other postretirement benefit plans, be recognized as an asset or hab1hty in the employer’s balance sheet This

change was effecnve for year end]2006 and is more fully discussed in Note. 9. Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Beneﬁts As

, required under tthe aceounnng rules which existed prior to adoption of the new standard, the Company recognized an mcrease to

stockholders’ equlty of $389 8 mrlhon at year-end 2006 prrmanly as a' result of the improved fundéd position of the U.S.' defined
benefit pension plan The adoptton1 of FAS 158 resulted in a reduction to stockholders’ equity of $342.6 million, which is me]uded asa
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. The net effect of both of thése adjustients was an increase in stockholders’

" equity of $47.2' million. In adtdmon the new standard will require assets and benefits to be measured at the: date of the em'ployer 5
_statement of financial posmon whtch in our case is December.31-of each year, rather than our measurement date of November 30, as

currently permrtted This change will be effective for ATI's 2008 fiscal year . |
Co ' i i
"The FASB iissued, 1n September 2006 a FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) trtled “Aceountmg for Planned Major Matrlttenance
Activities” (“FSP PMMA ) Ll"htsI FSP amends an AICPA :Industry Audrt guide and 1s applicable to all industries that acerue for
p]anned major mamtenance activitics. The FSP PMMA proh1b1ts the use of the accrue-in-advance method of accounting: for planned
major mamtenance aettvmes yvhtch is the palicy presently used’ by the Company to record planned plant outage costs on an interim
basis within a ﬁscal year, and also to record the costs of major equrpment rebuilds which extend the ltfe of capital equipment. The FSP
PMMA is efl'ectwe as of the begmnmg of 'ATI’s 2007 fiscal year, with retrospecttve application to all prior periods presented Under
the FSP PMMA ‘ATI wrll report {results using the deferral method whereby major .equipment rebuilds are. capitalized as costs arg
incurred and amortized 1nto expense over their estimated useful lives, |and planned plant outage costs are fully recogntzed in the
interim period of the outage T|he adopnon of the FSP PMMA on January 1, 2007 resulted in an increase to retained eamings ¢ of $12.2
miilion, net of related taxes Retrospeetrvely applied, the Company’s net. 1ncome increased $2.1 million, $2. 5 million and $1 .6 million
in 2006, 2005 and 2004; respectrvely, or approximately $0.02 per share for each year. Beginning with the 2007 first quarter AT[
financial statements will refleet this FSP for all periods, as-if it had been applted to the earltest period presented. .
’ !
ln June 2006, rthe Fmanc1al Accountmg Standards Board 1ssued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertamty in
Income Taxes” (“FlN 4 ’;), an mterpretatron of FASB Statement No! 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”., FIN 48 prescnbes

4

recognition and’ measurement standards for a tax position taken or expected to be taken'in'a tax return. The evaluation of a tax position

in accordance wnh FIN 48 1s\a rwo step process. The first step is the determmatton of whethér a tax'position should be recognrzed
Under FIN 48, a tax. posmon tlaken or expected to be taken in a tax rerum is'to be reco;,mzed only if the Company determines that it is

. i
more-likely- than-not that the tax position will be sustained upon exammatron by the tax authorities based upon the technical merrts of
the position. In step two for those tax positions which should be recogmzed the measurement of a tax position is determined as being
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the.largest amount of beneﬁt that is greater than 50% likely of bemg realized upon ultrmate settlement. FIN 48 was efl‘ectwe for the
beginning of ATI’s 2007 ﬁseal year with adoption treated as a cumulattve effect type reduction to retained earnings in the range of
$10 million as of the beginning of ‘200? l |
| ¢ |
In March 2005 the Flnancltal Accounting Standards Board issued FASB lnterpretatton No. 47, “Accounting for Condlttonal Asset
Retirement Obltgattons“ (“FIN 47”) an interpretation of SFAS 143. FIN 47 clarifies that the term “conditional asset retlrement
obligation” as used in SF/I\S ['143lrefers to a legal obligation to perfonn an asset rettrement activity in which the ttmmg and (or)
method of settlement are condltronal on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. An entity is required to
¥ H
recognize a habtlrty for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement oblrgatron if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated, evenllf condtttonal]lon a future event. FIN 47 is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 15,
2005, and ATI adopted the stalndard in the 2005 fourth quarter, as requtred The adoption f FIN 47 resulted in recognizing a charge of
$2.0 million, net of 1ncome taxes of $1.3 million, and is reported as a cumulatwe effect of a change in accounting principle. The pro
forma effects of the apphcatlclnln otl” FIN 47 as if the Statement had been’ adopted on January 1, 2003 were not material. See' Note 5.
Supplemental Financial Statement’ ‘Information, and Note 14. Comrmtments and Contingencies, for additional information on asset
retirement obhgatrons é
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Note 2, Acquisitions —

On April 5, 2005, a subsidiary of the. Company acquired U.K.-based Garryson Limited (“Garryson™), a leading producer of tungsten
carbide burrs, rotary tooling and specialty abrasive wheels and discs, from Elliott Industries Limited for approximately $18 million in
cash. Garryson had sales of over $30 million in 2004. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase business combination, and
results of operations include Garryson subsequent to the acquisition date. The acquired operations were integrated into ATIDs
Metalworking Products operation, which is part of the Company’s Engineered Products business segment.

On June 1, 2004, a subsidiary of the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of J&L Specialty Steel LLC, a producer of
flat-rolled stainless steel products with operations in Midland, Pennsylvania and Louisville, Ohio. Consideration for the acquisition of
$69.0 million consisted of a payment of $7.5 million at closing, the issuance to the seller of a non-interest bearing $7.5 million
promissory note that matured and was paid on June 1, 2005, the issuance to the seller of a promissory note in the principal amount of
$54.0 million, which is secured by the J&L property, plant and equipment acquired, and which is subject to adjustment on the terms
set forth in the asset purchase agreement and has a final maturity of July 1, 2011, and the assumption of certain current liabilities. The
purchase price will be finalized upon agreement between buyer and seller regarding certain working capital adjustments. The acquired
operations have been integrated into the Allegheny Ludlum operations, which are part of the Company’s Flat-Rolled Products
business segment. :

Note 3. _lnvgntnriés —
Inventory at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

(in millions) 2006 2005

Raw materials and SEPPIIES .......ceuivermreeseeser s atatasiasi s s se e s bbb rR e TE e b bt $ 1907 § 1111
W OTK-TT-PIOCESS .......cvoiivaiisiesssnsssnssse s s s b8 842E000LEEEEEE 931.7 6454
FiniSHE MOOMS ... ovev oot ce ettt a1 o4ttt e 148.0 128.5
Total INVENIOTIES At CUITENE COSE ... ouiumrmiiitimeieei ittt b s 1,270.4 885.0
Less allowances to reduce current cost values 1o LIFO Basis ..o (466.7)  (269.7)
PrOEIESS PAYIMENES ... ittt sttty e B.0) (8.2)
Total inventories................ OO O P oo OV P OO OUOOPUOT VP PPPUPPPPPOTOPPPOS $ 7987 § 607.1

Inventories, before progress paﬂrments, determined on the last-in, first-out (“LIFO™) method were $536.7 million at December 31,
2006, and $437.7 million at December 31, 2005. The remainder of the inventory was determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO™)
and average cost' methods. These inventory values do not differ materially from current cost. The effect of using the LIFO
methodology to value inventory, rather than FIFO, increased cost of sales in 2006, 2005, and 2004 by $197.0 million, $45.8 million,
and $112.2 million, respectively. .

During 2006, 2005, and 2004, inventory usage resulied in liquidations of LIFO inventory quantities. These inventories were
carried at the lower costs prevailing inprior years as compared with the cost of current purchases. The effect of these LIFO
liquidations was to decrease cost of sales by $2.5 million in 2006, $2.8 million in 2005 and $0.6 million in 2004.

Note 4. Debt —

Debt at December 3 f, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

(I miltions) , ‘ 2006 2005
Allegheny Technologies $300 million 8.375% Notes due 2011, BEE (@) .....vroveererccciniiiiii $ 3065 § 3075
Allegheny Ludlum 6.95% debentures due 2025 ..o 150.0 150.0
Domestic Bank Group $325 million secured credit agreement ... — —
Promissory notes for J&L asset aCqUISTHON ..ot 54.0 54.0
FOTEign CLEfit AETERITIEIES ....c.ovei o taitisis sttt s s bbb b es SRR 24.2 23.7
Industrial revenue bonds, due throngh 2020 ........cccceerieersiorceci s e .. 10.9 11.8
Capitalized leases and other...........tve! e oreeemmeeeeeseanteeesseesntteeeseeaeeeeaeaeteseiaeeereeeaneeeatettitaereeerrtsaane e st e s en s s reeeaare s ‘ 8.0 13.4
Total short-term and leng-term debt ... RS URTTRRPR -553.6 560.4.
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt ..o orerrterDessersnenreseebeebeeeneebt et e i aR s srreb (23.7) (13.4)
Total Iong-termm debt ..o eieed tarteseeeeneetemeenetsesaatebaetear e nrese e e sr e $ 5299 § 547.0

(a) Includes fair value adjustments for interest rate swap contracts of $10.5 million and $12.2 million for deferred gains on settled
interest rate swap contracts at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. '
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Interest expense was $38 3 mtllton in 2006, $47.0 million in 2005, and $38.4 million in 2004. Interest expense was reduced by
$4.5 million, $0.2 million, land $0 9 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectwely, from interest capitalization on capital pro;ects
Interest and commitment fees patd,were $47.6 million in 2006, $44.8 million in 2005, and $38. 0 million in 2004, Interest payments in
2006 included $4. 9 mtlhon related 1o litigation settlements. Net mterestlexpense 1ncludes 1nterest mcome ‘of $15.0 m1llton m 2006,
$84 m1lhon in 2005 and $2 9.m1ll|on in 2004 : !
! . .

Scheduled maturities of borrowmgs durmg the next five years are $23 7 mtllton in 2007 $15.3 millien in 2008, $11 7 million in
2009, $28 3 mtlhon in 2010 and $311 8 million in 2011.

} “ T

In December 2001, thegCompany issued $300 million of 8.375% Notes due December 15, 2011, ‘which are registered under the
Securities Act of 1933’ Interest on the Notes is payable semi- annually, on June 15 and; Deceinber 15 and is subject to adjustment
under certain crrcumstances These Notes contain default provisions w1th respect to default for the followmg, among other things:

it )
nonpayment of tnterest on'the Notes for 30 days, default in payment of prmmpal when due, or failure to cure the breach of a covenant
as provided in the Notes. Any“vtolatton of the default provision could result in the requirement to immediately repay the borrowmgs
These Notes are presented on the balance sheet net of unamomzed 1ssuance costs of $4.0 m1llton wh:ch are bemg amorttzed ?ver the

i

: l
f .

term of the Notes b li i ‘ . ‘ g

' ; ' ' - i
I

The Company has deferred gams on settled interest rate swap contracts that are recogmzed as reductions to interest expense over
the remaining hferof the. Notes which is approximately five years. At December 31, 2006, the deferred settlement gain was $10.5
million, and recogmtton of a p‘(')rttdn of the deferred settlement gain decreased interest expense by $1. 7 million, $1.5 million, and $4.4
million for the years ended ’Decemllaer 31,2006, 2005, and 2004, respecttvely, compared to the fixed interest expense of the Notes.

. ! i | ’

The Company maintains a $325 million senior secured domiestic revolving credit facrltty (“the secured credit faelltty”|or “the
facility™), which i lS secured by Iall accounts receivable and inventory of the Company’s U.S. operations-and includes capacity for up to
$175 million of letters oﬂ credtt Under the facility, if undrawn avatlabll:ty, as def’med in the facility, were to decline below 375
million, corporate factions| thalI could be undertaken without the prior consent of the lendmg group, including capital expendltures
acquisitions, sales of assets; d1v1dends investments in, or loans to, corporations, partnerships, joint ventures and subsidiaries, 1ssuance

of unsecured indebtedness! le|asesl and prepayment of indebtedness, would be limited. . The facility ‘contains a financial covenant :

which is not measured unless|undrawn availability is less than $75 mtlhon This financial covenant, when measured, requires the

i
.Company to prospectlvely|mamtam a ratio of consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, (depreciation and amortization (as defined in

the credit facrhty) to ﬁxed charr,es of at least 1.0 to 1.0 from the date the covenant is measured. The Company’s ability to1 borrow

under the secured credit facrllty in’ the future could be adversely* affected if the Company fails to maintain the applicable covenants

under the agreement governmg thelfamhty P . . l ,
. l

Fees assomated with the selcured credit facility are determined based on the Company’s availability coverage ratio, which is a ratio

of collateral versus outstandmg borrowmgs and letters of credit. Borrowmgs under the secured credit facility bear interest at the

Company’s optlon at either: (lu) the one-, two-, three- or six- month LIBOR rate plus a margin ranging from 1.00% to 1.75% dependmg

“upon the avat]ab:hty coveragelratto or (2) a base rate announced 'from ttme to-time by the lending group (i.e., the Prime lending rate)

plus a margin ranging from 0% to 1.00% dependtng upon the avatlabtltty coverage ratio. In addition, the secured credtt‘ facility
contains a facility fee of 0. 20% to 0 35% depending on the availability coverage ratio. The facility alsoicontains fees for issuing letters

“of credit of 0. 125% per annum and annualized fees ranging from 1| 00% to 1.75% depending on the availability coverage ratio. The

Company’s overall bormvt'rmg cost$ under the secured credit facility are not affected by changes in the Company’s credit ratmgs )
b

At December 31 2006,tthe Company had the ability to access the entire $325 mtlhon undrawn availability under the faCtltty, and
there have been. no bortowmgsI made under either the secured credit facrhty or the former unsecured credit facility since the begmnmg

“of 2002. The Company s|outstandmg letters of credit issued under thetsecured credit fac111ty were approximately $120 mtlhon at

‘average interest rate of foretgn

December 31, 2006 _ '} | , 'l

The Company’s subsidiaries also maintain credit agreements with vanous foreign banks, which provide for borrowmgs of up to

approximately $71 mtlltonl 1n'cludmg capacity for $17 million. of short- term ﬁnancmg of trade accounts payable at the Company s

60% owned STAL ; joint ventur'e m'Chma At December 31, 2006, the Company had approxrmately $47-million of available: bolrrowmg

capacity under these foretgn t:redtt agreements. These agreements prowde for annual facility fees of up to 0.20%. The welghted
‘icrec}ht agreements in 2006 was 6.2%. l
¢ 1

i .
‘The Company[has no off balance sheet financing relattonshtps with; variable 1nterest ennttes structured finance entmes or any

other unconsohdated enttttes At December 31, 2006, the Company has not guaranteed any thtrd-party indebtedness. l
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Note 5. Supplemental Financial Statement Information —

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

(in millions) ‘ ‘ S 2006 2005

Cash ...oooovereeenne S OO OHU IS SP OO PIPUP SRR $ 1635 % 733
Other short-term investments, at cost which approXimates MArKel........c.vevevveciiisiseeiissieirissrersnssasacsnssssoresesosnessas 3388 2894
Total cash and cash @QUIVAIENES ..........oovoeeiiiiiiriieiei e et e s et eent s et e e et sasresaeeoneses et $ 502.3 % 362.7

The estimated fair value of financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

{In millions) ) 2006 2003
: Carrying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated
Amount___Fair Value Amount  Fair Value
Cash and cash eqUIVAIEINES ..........oooiiiiiieee e e $ 5023 §$ 5023 3§ 3627 § 3627
Debt: : .
Allegheny chhnologles $300 million 8.375% Notes due 2011, net (a) ..........cceeeene. 3065 332.5 307.5 3385
Allegheny Ludlum 6.95% debentures due 2025 ... 150.0 15L.7 150.0 148.3
Promissory notes for J&L asset ACqUISHION .voeoveveeirircccccicecec e 54.0 54.0 54.0 4.0
Foreign credit BgreemENtS ..o 24.2 24.2 23.7 23.7
Industrial revenue bonds, due through 2020 ........c.oerieerrerrereree e e 10.9 10.9 11.8 11.8
Capitalized 1eases and OURET .........oveeeveorererriiiereieie et re e eeeeeseeeeseeeeseseeessessserees ‘8.0 3.0 13.4 13.4

(a) Includes fair value adjustments for settled interest rate swap contracts of $10.5 million at December 31, 2006, and $12.2 million at
‘December 31, 2005. '

The following methods and assumptfdns were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount on the balance sheet approximates fair value.

Short-term and long-term debt: The fair values of the Allegheny Technologies 8.375% Notes and the Allegheny Ludium 6.95%
debentures were based on quoted market prices. The carrying amounts of the other short-term and long-term debt approxnmate fair
value.

Acédunts receivable are presented net of a reserve for doubtful accounts of $5.7 million at December 31, 2006, and 38.1 miilion at
December 31, 2005. During 2006, the Company wrote off $1.7 million of uncollectible accounts, which decreased the reserve, and
also reduced expense by $0.7 million due to decreasing the reserve for doubtful accounts. During 2005, the Company recognized
expense of $1.7 million to increase the reserve for doubtful accounts and wrote off $2.0 million of uncollectible accounts, which
reduced the reserve. During 2004, the Company made no increases for doubtful accounts and wrote off $1.8 million of uncoilectible
accounts which reduced the reserve.

Accrued liabilities 1ncluded salaries and wages of $83.1 million and $48.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

{in millions} 2006 2005
LA o1ttt ettt e e s e e s bbb ek et e s et et et et e b e b et abeRe e eE R A e b e b ebebese e e eE R R eRsererertRe R tReReReRareret et nen et s $ 239 § 23.5
Buildings..........ccoveneee ettt eeteteteieiteeetbebetesaebesesstessseataretessetet e b s erers e ar s et et et et EnEenE e e ae e EnEene e rerererevaeaeatererares . 242.1 230.8
Equipment and leasehold IMProveMENts ... ...o.ic ittt ittt reis s ists b ssesssnsassan s rssaess e reresnesnessrsnrsess 1,671.1 1,580.1
1,937.1 1,834.4
Accumulated depreciation and amMOMIZAtION. ... .o i rirrerrerierreeresrreesnersrarasarassnssessoasssaceastsamsaanssassaecnsconsosas (1,069.5) (1,129.5)
Total property, plant and SQUIPIIEIE ... .. .iovii ittt eec et e $ 8676 3 70409

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was as follows:

(In millions) . 2006 2005 2004

Depreciation ' of property, plant and QUIPIMENL............ccoiiiiinieeenee e $ 728 $ 7003 702
Software and other AMOTTIZATION .....c.c. ittt ie et et se e e et snesns s e s sr s o e sessesin et e sr e r s sne b e srssan e 11.4 7.3 59 -
Total depreciation and AMOTEIZATION .o..ccvv.viovirirreereie ettt eeceneem et esr et sneere s b srs b s $ 842 § 773 76.]

- Other income (expense) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was as follows:
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{In millions)

2006

'
l
|
!

20051 2004

* Minority interest .............. '.'t....'.l .............................................................................................. SRR

Rent, royalty income and other income
Net gains (losses) on propertyland investments

2.0

‘ $ 81D S (55 %458
L1 e 11 25

04) - 56

) (50) $ (48) $ 3.3

ii I»

Changes in asset retirement obllganons for the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005 were as follows:

1 .
' : - _
tn millions) S . ] 2006 {2005
Balance at beginning of year.lL....! ' ! ' ' ' $ 52 % 1.7
Accretion expense ............ K TN OOVt 0.4 | 02
Payments............. oo ' 06 |, —
Liabilities incurred . 1.0 L=
FIN 47 adoption .............. SR SO OO0 SOy O OO OO OO OTTTOR — .33
Balance atend of year ...... e et san e 3 60 $§ ! 5.2

| 1 . T

Note 6. Accumulated Oth'er Comprehénsive Income (Loss) —

The components of accumulated
follows: : '

L]

other comprehens:ve income (loss), net of tax, at December 31, 2006 2005, and 2004 'were as

I
P

|
|
N Total
A l Foreign Net Unrealized Pension Plans Accumulated
. . . ‘ Currency Gains (Losses) and Other Net Unrealized " Other
A ! Translation ©  On Derivative Postretirement  Gains (Losses) Comprehensive
(In millions) - ' | ' l i Adjustments [nstruments Benefits * On Investments Income (Loss)
Balance, December 31, 2003 .‘.' ...... e 7.8 8 | 9.8 - (3594) % — 3 (341.8).
Amounts arising dunng the year.. l.. 20.8 1(12.4) 2.1 . — 110.5
Balance, December 31, 2004 1. 286 | (26) T (357.3) — (331.3)
Amounts arising durmg the yéar..|L.. 22.7) 20.5 (36.0) 0.1 (38.1)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ... boiidiin. 5.9 179 1:(393.3) 0.1 (369.4)
Amounts arising durmg the year...l‘ ............................. 243 I (13.6) . 3898 0.7 401.2 ¢
Adoption of SFAS No. 158..L...L ... — L = (342.6) — (342.6)
“Balance, December 31,20061__%_______ S 302 S 43§ '(346.1 ) $ 08 " 5 (108)
: . ![ o ' T =
h

" Other comprehenswe mcome (loss) amounts are net of i mcome tal:1 expense, (benef' t) Amounts ‘in 2005 exclude effects of the
deferred tax valuauon allowance lAmounts ansmg “during 2004 include an income tax valuation allowance equal to the income tax

|
- expense (beneﬁt) that would have been recogmzed Foreign currency translation adjustments are generally not adjusted for income

[ Vv
taxes as they relate to mdeﬁmte mvestments in non-U.S. subsidiaries. . ' !

‘Note 7. Stockholders Equnty — ' ' S ) T l -

. . ‘
Common Smck 4

(K} 'I i . - l

Préferred Stock : } : } '
. i : i f 4 '

Authorized preferred stoclc may be issued in one or more series, with desrgnatlons powers and preferences as shall be desrgnated by

the Board of Dlrectors At December 31, 2006, there were no shares of preferred stock issued. L.

| 1

f
. s L
! !

On July 28, 2004 the Company completed a public-offering of 13.8 mllllon shares of common stock at $17. 50 per share, and recelved
$229.7 million in net proceeds aﬁer underwriting costs and expenses. The 13.8 million shares were re-issued from treasury stock. Per

share amounts for 2004 reﬂect the effect of the public offering on a welghted average bas:s for the periods presented. 1

b

'
'
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Share-based Compensation

As described in Note 1, effective January 1, 2005, the Company accounts for its share-based compensation awards in accordance with
SFAS 123R. The Company previously accounted for share-based compensation in accordance with' APB 25. Certain share awards
prevmusly classified as assets and liabilities were reclassified to Stockholders’ Equity based on the SFAS 123R requirements resulting
in a net increase to Stockholders® Equity of $16.0 million at January 1, 2005. The Company sponsors three principal share-based
incentive compensation programs. During 2000, the Company adopted the Allegheny Technologies Incorporated 2000 Incentive Plan
(the “Incentive Plan™). Awards earned under share-based incentive compensation programs are generally paid with shares held in
treasury, if sufficient treasury shares are held, and any additional required share payments are made with newly issued shares.

At December 31, 2006, approximately 2.4 million shares of common stock were available for future awards under the Incentive
Plan. The general terms of each arrangement granted under the [ncentive Plan, and predecessor plans, the method of estimating fair
value for each arrangement, and award activity is reported below. A 2007 Incentive Plan, which has been approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors, is being submitted to the stockholders of the Company for approval at the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. Upon adoption of the Plan with the approval of the stockholders, no new awards would be granted under the 2000
Incentive Plan. :

. Stock optlon awards: The Company has not granted any stock optlons other than grants to non-employee directors, since 2003.
In December 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors determined that no new director options would be granted. Options granted to
employees vested in one-third increments over three years, based on term of service. Options have been granted at not less than
market prices on the dates of grant. Optlons granted under the Incentive Plan have a maximum term of 10 years. Compensation
expense under SFAS 123R is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for the entire grant. Fair value as calculated
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” was used to recognize
expense upon adoption of SFAS 123R. Compensation expense related to stock option awards was $0.3 million in 2006 and $2.6
million in 2005. Prior to 2005, under the previous APB 25 accounting standard for share-based compensation, no compensatlon
éxpense for stock option plans was recognized for awards that vest without a performance-based contingency where the exercise price
of the stock option award equaled the market price of the underlying stock at the date of grant.

During 2006, the Company granted options to purchase 9,000 shares of Common Stock to non-employee directors, which vest in
one year. As of December 31, 2006, the remaining amount of compensation expense relating to unvested stock option awards was not
material. The fair valie of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

. 2006 2005 2004
Expected dividend yield...... ... e 0.6% 1.0% 2.3%
ExXpected vOIatiliny ... e s 60% 59% 59%
RISK-TTEE TMEEIESE TALE ..ottt et et e et e eeseee e e e e s eamemaesae st et st bt st ebe st nbnenena 5.1% 4.3% 4.2%
Expected lives (in years)....... Hereevtre st e s e e e s sae e e sas s ensene e e s ee e e re et em e e ea e ea e aeen e bR 3.0 8.0 8.0
Weighted average fair value of options granted during Vear ... $ 309 § 1458 § 694

Stock option transactions under the Company’s plans for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 are summarized as
foliows:

(shares in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
S - : v» Weighted : Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average - Number of Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares " Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding, begmnmg of year.....coveeeeeinne 3,660 $ 1379 6,126 $ 1310 7,274 $ 1245
Granted ..o e B 72.46 9 24,38 16 11.24
Exercised............... : : (2,323) 1521 - (2,266) 11.49 (1,001) 7.36
Cancelled i : ; (22) © 1642 (209) 19.79 (163) 18.99
Qutstanding atend of year .........cooovveinnn - 1,324 $ 11.65 3,660 $ 13.99 6,126 ~§ 1310
Exercisable at end of year..........o.oooveeeerevearannn 1,315 $ 11.73 " 3,024 $ 1669 - 3818 $ 17.28
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Options outstanding at:December 31, 2006 were as follows: ; )
| : - I |
(shares in thousands, life in yedr;)’, ! Options Qutstanding ' . Options Exercisable 1
o ' } ‘ ] I Weighted | \ : Weighted
Range of - ! ! A Weighted Average’ Average ‘ . Average
Exercise : : - oh ' Number of Remaining | Exercise Number of Exercise
Prices ‘ P " Shares Contractual Life . Price Shares Price ~
$3.63-37.00 512 . 6.1 . §F 439 512 . S 439 ..
. 7.01-10.00 348 . 5.8 | 725 . . 348 7.25
10.01-15.00 9 . 5.1 » 1267 79 12.67
15.01-20.00 188 45 t 17.51 . 188 © 1751
20.01-30.00 105° 32 ‘ 21.90 105 21.90
30.01-40.00 37 1.8 ! 35.81 37 35.81
40.01-50.00 46 1.0 45.40 | 46 45.40
50.01- 72 46 -9 9.3 i 72.46 — —
1,324 - 5.2 . $ 11.65 . 1,315 - § 11.73

2008 based on estimates of’ attammg performance vesting criteria.

Nonvested stock awards Awards of nonvested stock are granted with either performance and/or service conditions. ln certain
grants, nonvested shares pamcrpate in cash dividends durmg the' resmctlon period. In other grants, dividends are paid in the form of

additional shares of nonvested}stock subject to the same vesung'condmons and dividend treatment as the underlying shares. Thé fair -

value of nonvested stock awards 1'5 measured based on the stock price at the grant date, adjusted for non-participating dividends, as
applicable, based on the current dr,wdend rate. For nonvested stock awards in 2006, 2005, and 2004, one-half of the nonvested stock
(“performance shares ) vestsionly on the attainment of an income target measured over a cumulative three-year penod The
remaining nonvested stock fvest‘; over a service penod of five years w1th accelerated vestmg to three years if the performance shares’

vesting cntenon is altamed Expense for each of these awards is recogmzed based on €stimates ‘of attaining the performance cntenon '

As of December 31, 2006 the mcome statement metrics for the 2006 and 2005. awards were presently bemg attamed for the
petformance shares, and expense for both portions.of the awards 'was recognized on a straight line basis based on a three- -year vesting
assumption. The performance metnc for the 2004 award, compnsmg'ZSS ,080 shares, mcludmg dividend shares, was met as of
December 31, 2006

+ ( H
' ! ! i

Compensatlon expensc-:!:frelated to all nonvested stock awards was $4 2 million in 2006 and $2.6 million in 2003, Compensatron

expense recogmzed in pl‘lO}" years pnder APB Opmlon 25 for nonvested stock awards was $2.4 million for 2004, Approx1mate|y $4.3
million of unrecogmzed fair value compensation expense relatmf, 1o nonvested stock awards is expected to be recognized jthrough
' I

! !
(in millions, except for shares) ' : 2006 2005 2004 !
o P . ; Weighted : Weighted Weighted
i | - . Average ;. Average : . Average
| l , . Number.of _ Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of , - Grant Date ~
Pk B Shares {Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Nonvested, beglnmng of year O OO © 663,678 % 8.1 532,369 § 49 422800 § , 23
Granted ...........oeeiveenenn. .. 100,027 5.1 156,366 ° 35 289560 3.1
Vested‘.........................‘.. ‘ (503,355) | 4.7 (6,484) (0.1) (176,116) . (0.4)
Forfeited.........cccooovvvenn b i, (2,486) (0.1) (18,573) (0.2) (3,875) (0.1

257,864 $ 8.4 663 678 $ 81 532,369 § . 49

.25 ) ! ' |} H . |
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Total shareholder return”lncentlve compensation program (“TSBP”) awards: Awards under the TSRP are granted ag a target
number of shares and vest based on the measured return of the Company s stock price and dividend. performance at the end of three-
year perlods compared to* the [stock price and dividend performance of a group of industry peers. The 2004-2006 TSRP perfonnance
period was in effect at the adoptlon of SFAS 123R. In 2006, the Company initiated a 2006-2008 TSRP, with 102,324 shares as the
target award level; The actual 'num'ber of shares awarded may range from a minimum of zero to a maximum of three times target. Fair
values for the TSRP awards }vereiestrmated using Monte Carlo srmulatlons of hlstonca} stock price correlation, projected d1v1dend
yields and other variables'  over three-year time horizons’ matchmg the TSRP performance periods. Compensatron expense was $5.7
million in 2006land $4 2 mllhon in 2005 for the fair value of TSRP awards, compared to $181 mllhon recogmzed n 2004 unlder APB

. ! : i - '

The estimat,ed' fair val_ﬁe of each TSRP award, including the projectéd shares to be awarded and future compensation expense to

be recognized for TSRP aWards excludmg estimated forfeitures, was as follows:
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(in millions, except for shares)

December 31 , 2006

'

TSRP Award Unrecognized
Performance ’ TSRP Award . Compensation Minimum Target Maximum
Period : Fair Value Expense Shares Shares Shares
2004 - 2000 ..o e S 4.6 $ — 0 347,042 1,041,126
2005 — 2007 ..o e - 49 1.6 0 166,749 - 500,247
2006 — 2008 ....oeeeieeee et $ 8.2 -5.3 : 0- 102,324 306,972
Total...oovoevvvnnnnnn eteteereeraenes sttt sre et eanseeas $ 6.9 0 616,115 1 848 345

An award was earned for the 2004-2006 TSRP performance period based on the Company’s stock price performance for the three-
year period ended December 31, 2006, which resulted in the issuance of 1,029, 507 shares of stock to participants in the 2007 first
quarter.

Undistributed Earnings of Investees

Stockholders’ equity includes undistributed earnings of investees accounted for under the equity tnethod of accounting of

approximately $23.6 miilion at December 31, 2006.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

Under the Company’s stockholder rights plan, each share of Allegheny Technologies common stock is accompanied by one right to
purchase two one-hundredths of a share of preferred stock for $100. Each two hundredths .of a share of preferred stock would be
entitled to dividends and to vote on an equivalent basis with one share of common stock. The rights are neither exercisable nor
separately transferable from shares of common stock unless a party acquires or effects a tender offer for more than 15% of Allegheny
Technologies common stock. If a party acquired more than 15% of the Allegheny Technologies common stock or acquired the
Company in a business combination, each right (other than those held by the acquiring party) would entitle the holder to purchase
coinmon stock or preferred stock at a substantial discount. The rights expire. on March 12, 2008, and the Company’s Board of
Directors can amend certain provisions of the plan or redeem the rights at any time prior to their becoming exercisable.

Note 8. Income Taxes —

Income tax provision (benefit) was as follows:

(n miltions) 2006 2005 2004
Current;
T U o) OV U U $ 2505 & 324 § (0.9
SHALE <. et e b et ea sttt e st be s e e s e ae e b eh e ee A e R R et eh e e e st st abese s e ae s bea e s enneseaneneneas 26.3 1.7 4.2y
FOTCIEIL.....c.oiiiveiiieiii s ieiiveaeeaeeteeteeteeeteeaeesreevreernsernsnsessesesssnssensesasesssesssssssnasesnneseeensanscaseensasnsas i1.1 4.6 5.5
TOMAL ..ttt ettt e e et e e et e et e eneeene et eenteereeateeebesnreesbaatbesnee enrennertaesaasaens 287.9 38.7 04
Deferred: ] :
Federal ...........oooviiiiiiiiiiiinaeees e eere i eeeetehLe e R bbb e n b s em e e e om e e et e e eeee e eeeaanenaRbaeeAntesssendssiabseeiets 5.9 {100.6) —
SHALE 11ttt eis ittt et ceem e eeteeneatsbere et e e bbb b et sm e e s eaeeasesemnsessensessssebebe s ebe b e e et et ebe e bt s . 0.1 8.7 —
FOTRIBI ...t et is sttt et ce e eeeeaemeeerensenesnrennsssnoninrsonsersinserssnsnsnensesnsesesnsereenneinan . 3.4 (1.5) (0.4)
TOTAL Lottt em e e s emcans e eeseaearneatisasshsanbeberetsins e 9.4 (93.4) (04).
Income tax Provision (BENEEILY ... . ..o i anes $ 2973 § (54.7) § —

Results of operations for 2005 included an income tax benefit of $54.7 million principally caused by the reversal of the remaining
valuation allowance for the Company’s U.S. Federal net deferred tax assets, partially offset by aceruals for U.S. Federal, foreign and
state income taxes. From the 2003 fourth quarter through the third quarter of 2005, the Company maintained a valuation allowance for
a major portion of its U.S. Federal deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” due to
uncertainty regarding full utilization of its net deferred tax asset, including the 2003 and 2004 unutilized U.S. Federal net operating
losses of approximately $140 million. In the 2003 fourth quarter, the Company recorded a $138.5 million valuation allowance for the
majority of its net deferred tax asset, based upon the results of its quarterly evaluation concerning the estimated probability that the net
deferred tax asset would be realizable in light of the Company’s history of annual reported losses in the years 2001 through 2003. In

.2005, the Company generated taxable income which exceeded the 2003 and 2004 net operating losses, allowing full realization of

these tax benefits. This realization of tax benefits, together with the Company’s improved profitability, allowed the Company to
reverse the remaining valuation allowance for U.S. Federal deferred taxes in the 2005 fourth quarter.
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The followmg isa reconm'llandn of income taxes computed at the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate to the actual effective
income tax pr0v|1510n (beneiﬁt):*e ' _ I , ,'
: | ; _ S . iy L
o N R - In¢ome Tax Provision (Benefit)- -
In millions) : : T ' ' i . . 2006 . 2005 b 2004
Taxes computed at federal tax fate ..o s $ 3042 S 1075 § 6.9
- .State and local i mcome taxet; rllet oflfederal tax benefit ..o O . 303 . 2.1 07
Foreign tax credlt and OUHET CTRAILS ... vvevevreroieienesseese s e I .......................... SR 69 2.6 . (0.
“Adjustment to prlor years |taxes....'.‘..................' .............................. revreeenenes LSOO T {8.7) {9.5) | (4.3)
Extraterritorial income tax benefit L.........cocoovvviveirovinrinrirnnns ereereeerenrene rerteerrenererneeneaeens DN L (6. 2.0 L (1.4)
Manufaeturmg deduc’non.!.:.....”....‘..l.i ................................................ PPN rereedese e esessrerenns VRO ; (5.9) (0.7) f —
Foreign eammgs taxed at dlfferent TALE 1. vvere et ceseess ettt en e ess bbb ss st ss s s .7 (4.1) (3.8)
Valuation allowance et L SNSRI et 4.7 (97.1). } 10.1
© Medicare Part D sub51dy.........|! ...... B s b (3.3) 35 i -
Net operating loss carryfon‘vard ..... et neens bt e '— (48.6) '(11.6)
01111 PO LA NSRS — e 4.0 38 1 35
Income tax provision {(benefit)..... .. evseoeeereeeeeeeeee e LY S T SO . $.2973 % (%47 3 -
P S . [ j :
|

In general, the 'Companf, is{ respbnsible for filing consolidated U.S. Fe;deral foreign and combined, unitary or separate state income
tax returns. The Company, is responsxble for paying the taxes relating to such returns, mcludmg any subsequent adjustments resulting
- from the redetermmauon of such tsax liability by the applicable taxing authormes ‘No provision has been made for U.S. Federal, state
-or addmonal forelgn taxes, 'related to undlstnbuted eammgs of foreign subsndlarles which have been permanently re-invested. }

! " ]
i | 1 l

' Income before'income; ltaxes for the Company’s U.S. and ndn-U.S. op?ratm’ns was as follows: © ' . |
1 s ! Jl .- . . . ol . - [
{In millions} N I ; . 3 : ! | 2006 © 2005 l 2004
' . : ' '$ 8114 8§ 27245 18
+ 578 314 180
S 869.2 $ 3038 $ 19.8
i E l | .
U.S. income before income ta)!es includes the pretax expense for the cumulative effect of change n accountlng pnncrple of $3.3
million in 2005. : ‘ . I
. i ’ 7 ! i
Income taxes paid and'amounts received as refunds were as follows: ' !!
1 3 ' ' 5 ‘
(In millions) : ! ! ; ! 2006 2005 E 2004
Income taxes paid............. RO OO v SR e $2069 $ 11.7 § 112
Income tax refunds received..l....}....ii) etisierereeiriesnenenrasrsreasenenns e e . _ 5.5 (12.1) | (8.0)

» Income taxes pdid (received), fiet b e ene et ens e e e '$20014 § (04) $. 3.2°

. { ' : ' '

Deferred mcon‘le taxeereleult flrom temporary dlfferences in the reco}gmuon of income and expense for financial and income tax
reporting purposes and dlfferences between the fair value of assets acquired in business combinations accounted for as purchases for
financial repomng purposes and their corresponding tax bases. Deferréd income taxes 'represent -future tax benefits or costs to be
recognized when those temporary|dlﬂ'erences reverse. The categories of assets and Ilabllmes that have resulted in differences i in the
ummg of the recognmon of mcomf and expense at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows ‘

{f [’, : .
' . 1) - 1
§ ‘ !
v I
| : l -
! ¥ : ; : [ -
5 H ; E |
!' - |I R : | 3 .
! H ! |
| Il i b
) | i) : .
! | - - |
I; ' | I
f t
: i |
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(In millions) : . ) 2006 2005

Deferred income tax assets:

Postretirement benefits other than Pensions. ... e $ 1802 § 1796
I Deferred compensation and other benefit Plans ...........coooiiiiiiiiin e e e 354 31.8
t : State net operating 1085 1aX CArTYTOIWAIAS ..ottt r st et s et b s s s s e 26.3 373
Foreign and state tax credits and allOWANCES ........c..ocoiiiiiiiiieice et s e sttt 14.7 12.8
VACAIION BCCTUAIS ..ottt e e et e et e et e et e e atesaeesaeesaeaneaaneeseeesearbeesseeseenseanseesseansasneeseeseensensneesnns 11.5 10.2
ENVITONIMIENEAl TESETVES........ovvvvreerieeeoe o saseeeeeeseaseseseseseneeessess o aseseretesassnsssssssmsessserersssss e samsssssasasasarrssasaneren 10.4 10.5.
Pension.........ocooi, G QU UROO 10.0 44.9
SEIf-INSUTANCE TESETVES ..vovmeurvrrerereriesseesssssesssssssasessssssssssasesasssssssasasasassessesessssssssssesessesesessesesesens e 7.8 9.2
Lt A IOM TESEIVES . ..eeeuerieieeucrrereeaenresaerertet et etesaesete st et ete st eas et e st easehere e s et e seemenE e sEeuenE e nE e e nE e saer et em e r et memeanereaneanensereen — 17.8
BT TEBITIS 1. cu ettt ettt e e ettt ettt e s et et e et bt s est et essebsesbe s bob s st ek esse4dem e o8 sbr e bbb e bt S AeeR b ek SRk as e bt eatehnemEenenresreeneennan 46.6 32.4
Gross deferred INCOME 1AX AS5EL5 ..evvivieelivere e ee s rarae s ssaieee s P, e ereree e e aras 342.9 386.5
Valuation allowance for deferTed AKX ASSEIS........o...icoiieiiieeeceeisseeecieie st esrnes e e sreresenrrsesssnteesbesonaesnreserntesnressrneesn (36.9) (41.6)
Total deferréd income tax assets....... et ettt it er et er e e e ehe e aeeh e se e Rt b se et e b e sa e R £ E e ne R e r e s b resaE SRt eR e r st e e r et e e 316.0 3449
Deferred income tax liabilities: ‘
Bases of property, plant and equipment .........c...cvoevene. et et et eeet e et ir et b ettt e bR e et et e as s et e e n e e res 131.8 - 1344
Inventory valuation . 10.9 12.2
OMREE EINS ... ee et se e e ceeeee e seeeeeen e sceeeeensenceseneeesesesemseseensenernsesaesineaeesesresnssresesarsebstsns 11.9 20.2
Total deferred INCOME taX HABIIITIES ..o veeeiieriiiiti ettt se s s e e et ebe b n e b et abe b n s s 154.6 166.8
Net deferred income tax asset..........ccooeeeeveeeens SOT T OO OO OO TP OO TS PO . % 1514 & 178.1
t -
¥ -
! The Company has $36.9 million and $41.6 million in deferred tax asset valuation altowances at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively, related to state deferred tax assets. Based on current tax law, the Company has deferred tax assets of approximately $26
million at December 31, 2006, for state net operating loss tax carryforwards and approximately $11 million for state temporary
 differences. For most of these state net operating loss tax carryforwards, expiration will occur in 20 years and utilization of the tax
benefit is limited to $2 million per year. A valuation allowance has been established for certain of these state deferred tax assets since
the Company has concluded, based on current state tax laws, that it is'more likely than not that these tax benefits would not be
realized.

Note 9. Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits —

The Company has defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans covering substantially all employeces, Benefits under
the defined benefit pension plans are generally based on years of service and/or final average pay. The Company funds the U.S.
pension plans in accordance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the
Internal Revenue Code.

The Company also sponsors several postretirement benefit plans covering certain salaried and hourly employees. The plans
provide health care and life insurance benefits for eligible retirees. In most plans, Company contributions towards premiums are
capped based on the cost as of a certain date, thereby creating a defined contribution. For the non-collectively bargained plans, the
Company maintains the right to amend or terminate the plans at its discretion.

Components of pension expense for the Company’s defined benefit plans and components of other postretirement benefit expens
{income) included the following: :

Expense (Income)

| Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

| {In millions} 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Service cost — benefits earned during the year.........oooecvnenen. $ 284 3% 279 % 271 § 28 § 31 % S1
Interest cost on benefits earned in prior years...........ccocoeeevieees 128.5 125.1 126.6 321 316 455
Expected return on plan asSets ... v sieesiseas (162.7) (153.7)  (147.5) {6.6) (8.2) (8.8)
Amortization of prior service cost (credit),.......cocovveieieiivinnnnns 19.3 21.7 25.2 {26.4) (26.4) (17.5),
Amortization of net actuarial 10SS...........coovevreeeiiiiiinn. 50.4 42.1 42.4 16.1 14.4 21.7
Retirement benefit eXPense.. ... 63.9 63.1 73.8 18.0 14.5 46.0
Curtailment and termination benefits (gain) loss...........ccoee.e.. — — 253 — — (72.00
Salary plan design change. ... — — 0.5 — — —

{ Total retirement benefit (income) eXpense .........ouecervrrevnane.. $ 639 § 631 % 996 § 180 $ 145 § (26.0)




+

' |

!
In 2004, in- C()njlll'lCtIOIl wuh a labor agreement at the Company’ s Allegheny Ludlum operations, a $25.3 million charge for
pension tennmatlon benefits :\',vas irecognized for a Transition A551stance Program (“TAP”). The TAP incentive was paid from the
Company’s U. S defined beneﬁt pensmn fund through 2006 to a total of 650 employees. The 2004 labor contract also mcluded caps on
the Company’s retlree medlcal benefit costs. Also in 2004, the Company modified retiree medical benefits for certain non- collecnvely
bargained current and former ‘employees to cap the Company’s cost of benefits, beginning in 2005, and then eliminate the beneﬁts in
2010. As a result of these acnon's a $71.5 million curtailment and s'ettlement gain was- recog,nlzed in the 2004 second[quaner

comprised of a one -time reductlon‘of postretirement benefit expense, net ofa$0.5 mllllon charge to pension expense.”

|
|
|

' 1
I -t
|

Il
Actuarial assumpnons used lo develop the components of pens:on and other postretlremenl benefit (income) expense|were as

follows: ] i :

i ] X

: 3 Pension Benefits - - Other Postretirement Benclﬂts
{In millions) Co 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 - 2004
Discount rate ...t binnnn, 59% . 16.1% . 16.5% 5.9% 6:1% - | 6.5%
Rate of increase 1n future compensatlon levels. - 3%-4.5%. | 3%-45% 3%4.5% . — — e
Expected long-term rate of return On assets...... 8.75% ¢ ' '8.75% 8.75% 9;0% 9.0% " 5.0%

K |gA - . : . ) ‘

' i
Actuarial assumptlons used for the valuation of pension and postreurement obhgatlons at the end of the respective penods were as
follows ‘ " L . i i

i
| | ' - i
.. - Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

{in millions) ' Lo I 2006: 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate....... '" ...... ‘ ........................................ 5.8% 5.9% 58% - .. 39%
Rate of increase in future compensatlon levels.....cocernnnnn... 3%—4.5% 3%—4.5% — ——

I
For 2007, thelexpectecii l(.?lng, -term rate of returns on pensxon and other postretirement benefits assets will be 8.75% and 9.0%,
respectively, and the dlscnunt rate used to. develop pension and postretlrement benef" 1 expense W1ll be 5.8%. In developmg the
expected long- term rate of returnl .assumptions, the Company evaluated input from its third party pension plan asset managers and
actuaries, mcludlng rev1ew's of thelr asset class return expectations and Iong-term inflation assumptions. .
' J t

v [ I : P !
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- A reconciliation of funded status for the Company’s pension and postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was
as follows . . o :

- . . - . - Pension Benefits | Other Postretirement Benefits .

(r'n nillions) :

2006 2005 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation: . ) . .
Benefit ob]lgatlon at beginiing’ OF YEATovurevrersineeriisnninnisnssens st snnsneens - $ 22347 $ 2,1208 '$ 5598 % 5949
Service cost™.......... e OO PRSPPSO 28.4 ©T219 2.8 3l
Interest cost....occoooeeevirecennne ST OO L RO © 1285 125.1 321 316
Benefits paid ..o inileciininns kbt bbbttt et e ae s es s sen et eaeserananan s s etetetetetas C(177.8) (166.2) (52.4) (50.3)
Participant contributions .................... e ettt ettt ettt et n e e e 1.0 0.8 — —
Effect Of CUMTENCY FAES .......oovceeeeeeeeeeee et st ee s for s enenesas 5.1 (4.0) —
Plan amendments ..........cccceenne OTOPPOUPTOROUPR S — — — (5 8)
Net actuarial (gams) losses — discount rate change...‘ ....................... ettt 224 46.5 o

— Other. ... e Tesrereienes tdee 1946 . 838 (5.1) - (22 6)
Beneﬂt obhgatlon at end of VAT 1 e.etetisistsaeeseetenceeeneeaeseeeaeeteeeaeeeeneaceeeeeseeeeaeasenas $ 22619 b 22347 3 540.2. § 5598 -
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year............ccoccooiieceecec e, % -1,956.2 $ 18491 & 857 $ 1002
Actual returns on plan assets and plan expenses...........coevirvvnererr e, 334.8 1714 . 350 0.2
EMPlOYer CONMIIBULIONS. ......c..ooevoceocereevse s ses et s s enen e 101.8 101.4 — —
Participant CONrIBULIONS ..ot e saean 1.0 0.8 — —
Effect Of CUITENCY TAIES ...t iveritrier et sttt sttt eeeneean 5.5 (4.0) — —
Benefits paid..........0 0. ettt bt e e e eeeeeeneneeeaenenseeteransnsmeesereas C(173.9) (162.5) (28.1) (24.7)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year .. e R .. $ 22254 $°19562 § 92.6 ¥ 857
Reconciliation of the funded status under prior, accountmg rules: ' h '
Underfunded status of the plan .............ccovvveeeirreeneeeereereseresisireeereeenee 3 (36.5) $ (2785) § (d47.6) § (474.1)
Unrecog,mzed net actuarial 1oss ... e 502.9 683.4 170.4 217.0
Net minimum pensmn hablhty ....................... O e e (6.4) {648.6) o= —
Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COStvvummmmmiriiireririeiicetbeeveverirsieieieisesesasiinn . - 813 1006 (178.0) ° (2044
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost........co..ovvereenrnrnsnnnns e e . $ 5413 3 (143.1) $°:455.2) 3 (461.5)

i Amounts recognized in the balance sheet under prior accounting rules: ) ]

. Prepaid Pension COSE ...ttt enanannas $ 5750 b 29 % — 5 —
Deferred pension asSet .........ccuvuuiivererersostecserseceeeseeeeesieeesenenns [T _ 100.6 — —
Pension Habilities .......cooviviiiiiicieie it ee e ee e e ee e et e e eee e rennan 33.7) (246.6) — —
Accried postretireMent BENefIts ............ccoeveeeeeeeiviviviiieserereveisvnresssevseirenanes — — (455.2) (461.5)
Net amOount TECOZMZEM ......occcuuauvurerniisivninioriinereeeeeeeeseseeeeeseee s sseresrena $ 5413 $ (143.1) § (455.2) § (461.5)

| Amounts recognized in the balance sheet under FAS 158: .

Prepaid benefit cost........... PO $ 3.2 5 —
Current HabilIHEs ... e . (3.9 (19.0)
INoncurrent Habilities ..o it ere e (35.8) (a) 428.6
Net amount recognized under FAS 158 .. ..ocooooovoiiiiivoiioicieceieeeeee $ (36.5). $ (447.6) . )

(a) Includes 3$5.6 million noncurrent liability for the U.S. qualified defined benefit plan, representing the difference between the
- projected benefit obligation of the plan and the fair value of plan assets at the plan measurement date, and $30.2 million
* noncurrent llabllny related to U.S. nonqualified dcf' ned beneﬁt plans, which are not funded '

As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accoummg
Standards No. 158, “Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (“FAS 158™), as of fiscal
year-end 2006. FAS 158 requires that the net funded position of the plans, as measured by the pl‘O_]ECth benefit obligation (“PBO”) in
the case of pension plans, and by the-accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (“APBO™)-in the case of other postretirement
benefit plans, be recognized as an asset or liability in the employer’s balance sheet. Comparative footnote information under the prior
accounting rules is presented until the effect of FAS 158 adoption is inclided in all periods presented. Prior peruod information is not
restated. In addition, the new standard will require assets and benefits to be measured at the date of the Company’s statement of
financial position, which is December 31; rather than the Company’s measurement date of November 30, as currently permitted. This
change will be effective for ATI's 2008 ﬁscal year.
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Prior. to the adoptron of FAS| 158 the funded status of pension plans was- measured by the accumulated benefit obhgatron

(“ABO™). At the November 30 2006 measurement date, the Company s;U.S. quallﬁed defined benefit pension plan was overfunded :

on an ABO basis, and: ; the! Colmpany reversed the previousiy-recorded minimum ' pension liability and accumulaled other
.comprehensive i lncome (loss) assodmted with this plan when it had been i 1n an ABO underfunded position, récorded a prepaid pensron
cost asset of $569.9 mlllron ahd mcreased stockholders’ equity by $389 8-million, net of related deferred tax effects. However, on a
PBO basis, which is the funded status measure required by FAS 158 the Company’s U.S. qualrﬁed defined benefit pension plan was
underfunded by' 1$5.6 mrlllon at the] measurement date. For the Company s U.S: qualified defined benefit pension plan, the adeption of
FAS 158 eliminated the $569 9 million prepaid pension cost, established a $5.6 million noncurrent liability, and reduced stockholders’

eqmty by $345.3 million, net O:f re]ated deferred tax effects. The Company sponsors other non-qualified defined benefit pensron plans
in the U.S., a defined beneﬁt pension plan-in the U.K., and also sponsors several postretirement benefit plans. Including these other
. pension and postreurement behefit: plans, the aggregate effect of adoptlng FAS 158 reduced stockholders’ equity by $342.6 million,
net of related deferred tax effects as a component of accumulated other comprehensive, income (loss). The net effect of these
adjustments was an mcrease m stockho]ders equity of $47.2 million. These charges and adjustments did not affect the Company ]
results of operatlons and do ndt have a cash impact. In addition, they do not affect compllance with debt covenants in the Company s

b

bank credit agreement. : : ) , . -
' ! ! ' ' ) l
| i 1 ' . '

Changes to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to pension and other postretirement beneﬁt plans in 2006 net

of related deferred tax effects Jlwere as follows: . . |
; . . } , - .l , . : . ]
li 1 l . ! . Other | P
‘ " | - . . o Postretirement o
(In millions) ,! ) . Pension Benefits Total . .
Accumiuiated other comprehenswe income (loss}), December 31, 2005 ... v B (39338 — 8 '(393 3)
2006 minimum pension lrablllty adjustments ........................................................................... .~ 3898 — ) 389 8
Accumulated other comprehensrve income (loss) at December 31 2006, pnor to FAS 158 ’ } |
adoption ......Lon Lt OO OSSO (3.5) - l (3.5)
FAS 158 adoption............ “”l ....................................... ieessessesesserees e, (347.2) 4.6 1 (342.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), December 31, 2006.............. veneneneeneneenenes $ (350.7) 8 46 § i(346.1)
Net change in accumulated otfier comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December . -
31,2006 oot L SRR e S 465 46 8§ | 472
, r R - ' . ; | .
i Y N J
Amounts mcluded in accumulaled other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2006 under FAS 158 were: |
1 l . ! I f
| P ' ! ) . Other
. \ . ' Postretirement I
" (in mr!lrons) . i ! l Pension - Benefits : Total

$ @13 S 1780 $ | 967

(502.9) (170.4) .t (673 3

(584.2) 7.6 (576.6)

b

233.5 (3.0) | 230.5

$ (350.7)% 46 3 l(346.1)

Retirement benef' t expense n} 2007 is estimated to be $32 mllhon compnsed of $l7‘ million of net penod1c beneﬁtlcost for
. pension plans and $15 mrllllon 'of net periodic benefit cost for other postretirement benefits. Amounts in accumulated -other
comprehensive i lncome (loss) that are cxpected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost in 2007 are: I

j ' : : ' : : . L
i : o " Other !

: N l Postretirement l e
{In millions) s 4! l . Pension Benefits - - Total -
Amortization of prior serv1ce Cost (eredit) ..o s frersreeree e e e e saes $ 176 § 264) § | (88
Amortization of net ctuaral 1088 L. ..oz sssshessssssaees i 311~ T - 143 | 454
Amortization of accumulated ‘'other comprehensive income (loss) ............ e Lo % 0 487 8. (12.) § 1 36.6

T . - " ! . l . i ' R o . n
i B |




Additional information for plans with benefit obligations in excess of plari assets;

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
(fn millions) L2006 . 2005 2006 2005
Benefit 0bl1gat10n (PBO/ APBO) ......................................................................... $ 22039 § 2,1854 § 540.2 . 3 559.8-
Fair value' of PIan SSELS..........ovcovmecesieeimseieieeieessi st eesssssesmenssssenienssesns e eesnees 2,164.2 1,907.2 92.6 85.7

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $2,223.5 and $2,200.4 miilion at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Additional information for plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

) Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
{In millions) - - 2006 2005 2006 2005
Accumulated benefit obligation ... $ 331 % 2,1538 § 5402 $ 5598
Fair value of plan as8ets ..o e et s : — 1,907.2 92.6 85.7

The pension plan asset allocations for the years ended 2006 and 2005, and the target allocation for 2007 are:

Assét Category - ' ' : E 2006 2005 Tarpet Allocation 2007
EqQUity SECUMHES ..o [RTSTRRR eteeieieeres et e tebararre s 69% 74% 65% — 75%
Fixed inCOME.......coooiivmiieicericieeeeeceeeeeeee DU OO TP TV UUOTU RO U UROROUPPOPP MN%  26%- 25% — 35%

Total.......... e ettt em et eeeeeeee e ueeeteeteeseritstatee i te e At e AL et At e A besneesabesaaneasabesrteeaterarnees - 100% 100%

The postretirement plan obligation asset allocations for the years ended 2006 and 2005, and the target allocation for 2007 are:

Asset Category . ' : ' .2006 2005 Tarpet Allocation 2007
EQUITY SECUTITIES ..ottt s b b ems et © 76% 61% 65% — 75%
FIXEA INCOMIE Lottt s s e csin e s e e anes e e rre s s e rrnae s s eosinassar s e s ns s sab e e s ame s srbre e sme e os 24% 3I9% 25% — 35%

Total................... OO O PO O PO O PO O OO OO OO O PP 100%  100%

The plan invests in a diversified portfolio consisting of an array of asset classes that attempts to maximize returns while
minimizing volatility. These asset classes include U.S. domestic equities, developed markét equities, émerging market equities, private
equlty, global high quality and high yield fixed income, and real estate. The Company continually monitors the investment results of
these asset classes and its fund managers and explores other potential asset classes for poss1ble future investment.

, " The plan assets for the defined benefit pension plan at December 31, 2006 and 2005 included 1.3 million shares of Allegheny
Technologies Incorporated common stock with a fair value of $117.9 million and $46.9 million, respectively. Dividends of $0.6
million and $0.4 million were received by the plan in 2006 and 2005, respectwely, on the Allegheny Technologies common stock held
by the plan.

" The Company i is not requ:red to maKe cash contnbuuons to its U.5. defined benefit pen51on plan for 2007 and, based upon current
regulations and actuarial studies, does not expect to be required to make cash contributions to its U.S: defined benefit pension plan for
at least the next several years. However, the Company may elect, depending upon the investment performance of the pension plan
assets and other factors, to make voluntary cash contributions 1o this pension plan in the future. The Company expects to contribute
approximately $4 million to its U.S. nonqualified benefit pension plans in 2007, equal to the amount of expected benefit payments for
these plans, and approximately $2 million to its U.K. defined benefit ptan. The C0n1pany contributes on behalf of its union employees
at its Allvac Albany, OR (Oremet) facility to a pension plan, which is administered by the USW and funded pursuant to a collective
bargaining agreement. Pension expense and contributions to this plan were $1.1 million in 2006, $0.8 million in 2005, and $0.7
million in 2004.

In accordance with labor contracts, the Company funds certain retiree health care benefits for Allegheny Ludlum using plan assets
held in a Company-administered Voluntary Employee Benefit Association (VEBA) trust. During 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company
was able to fund $28.3 million, $24.7 million, and $18.2 million, respectively, of retiree medical costs using the assets of the VEBA
trust. The Company may continue to fund certain retiree medical benefits utilizing the plan assets held in the VEBA. The value of the
assets held in the VEBA was approximately $93 million as of December 31, 2006. The Company expects to contribute $19 million to
its other postretirement benefit plans in 2007, representing the non-VEBA funded portion of expected benefit payments, net of
expected Medicare Part D subsidy.
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Pension costs for defi ncd contnbutton _plans were $IS 8 million mI 2006, $15.0 million in 2005 and $13.2 m1llton in 2004.
Company contnbuttons to the defi ned contribution plans are funded with cash : ' i
) . . 1

’ l
The, followmg table summarlzes expected benefit payments from the Company s various pension and other postretlrementlbenef t
plans through 2016, and aiso|inclides estlmated Medicare Part D sub51dtes projected to be recetved durmg this pertod based on

currently avatlable»mfonnattonl b . : i S P

| ' [ ' . l . Penslon ;Othcr Phslretirement - Medicare -
{In millions) _ i : : - Benefits Benefits Part D Subsidy .
T N S—— R $ 168.4 s 569 5 @47
2008 ..ooerenerenns SRUSTRRE SO e ! S 167.4 59.0 (5.0)
2009 ..., 00 O O SOOI e e . 1676 587 T (49 |
2010 oo ) | 167.3 523 . (5.0) .
2001 o, PRI l ............................................................. leeeeresros 167.2 522 (4.0:
20122016 0o, e ereeeeev et onesensenas S S 847.8 242.3 (l9.6)

The annual assumed rate of mcreasc in the per capita cost of covered benefits (the health care cost trend rate) for health care plans

“was 10.0% in 2007 and is assumed to.gradually decrease to 5,0% in the year 2016 and remain at that level thereafter. Assumed health

care cost trend rates have~a srgmﬁcant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans A one percentage point, change in

assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: | P
. B b . B - ]

) :l l . . ) One Percentage |~ One Percentage
{In mitlions) .- L ' : : ' Point Increase . Point Décrease
Effect on total of service and mterest cost components for the year ended Pecember 31,2006....... S 07 5 O
Effect on other postrettrement benefit obltgatlon at December 31, 2006 ce e . %149 - -8 (13.6)" .
Note'10. Busmess Segments ll ( ) o : Tty Co l-

P ll . . .- : _— . AR

'seamless tube. The compatlnes in thts segment mclude ATI Allvac, ATI Allvac Ltd (U.K.) and ATl Wah Chang.

The Company operates in, three busmcss segments: High Performance Metals, Flat-Rolled Products and Engineered Produdts ‘The
High Performance Metals segment produces converts and, drstrlbutes a wrde range of hlgh performance alloys; including tltanlum and
tttamum—based alloys nlckel andlcobalt -based ailoys and superalloys exottc alloys ‘such as zirconium, hafnlum mobtum,yntckel—
titanium, and thetrprelated alloys and other specralty metals, primarily i in long product forms such’ as lngot billet, bar, rod wnre and
t ' l >

The F lat—Rolled Products segment produces converts and, dlstrtbutes stainless steel ntckel-based alloys, and t1tan1um and
tltamum—based alloys in aJvlarlety df product forms including platc sheet engmeered strtp and Precision Rolled Strip(R) products as
well as gram ortented s1]tcpn electrllcal steel sheet and tool steels. The compames 'in this segment include ATI Allegheny Ludlum the
Company 8 60% tnterest in STAL, and the Company’s industrial tttantum_]omt venture known as Uniti LLC (“Uniti”). The mvestment
in Uniti is accounted for under the equtty method. Sales to Uniti, whrch are included in ATD’s consoltdated staternents of i mcome were

" '$97.2 miillion in 12006, $38.2 mllllon in 2005, and $32.1 million in 2004.] ATl s share of Un1t1 8 mcome recogntzed under the _equity

method of accountmg, wasl$16 4 mllllon in 2006, $12.7 million in 2005l and $2. 2 millior in 2004 whtch 1s tncluded in Flat Rolled
Products segment operatmg proﬁt and w1thm cost of sales in the consoltdated statements of mcome A + : .

f N .

l . ll - l
The Engmeered Products segment s prmcrpal busmess produces tungsten powder tungsten heavy alloys, rungsten ‘carbide
materials and calrblde cuttmg tools i This segment also produces carbon alloy steel impression die forgmgs and large grey and ducttle

. iron castmgs and performsI pre'c1510n metals processing serv1ces The compames in Il‘llS segment are ATI Metalworkmg Products ATI

F68

Portland Forge, ATl Castmg S"lrwcl.e and Rome Metals. i . :, o
! .
Intersegment sales are sgenerally recorded at full cost or market Common servrces are allocated on the ba51s of esttmated

utilization. : I i
b '

‘
L

f
1
i
l
)
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Information on the Company’s business segments was as follows:

VTotaI‘ dirct international sales weré $1,170.7 million in 2006, $870.0 million in 2005, and $556.2 million in 2004. OFf these

"amounts, sales by operations in the United States to customers in other countries were $765 5 m1lhon in 2006 $565.0 million in 2005

and $336.8 million in'2004.

{In millions) e : ' 2006 2005 2004
Operating profit: . '
High Performance Metals .........cccovevvevreerrennenn. DO O ORI $ 6575 $§ 3353 § 8438

3443 1499 . 615
56.7 47.5 20.8

~ Flat-Rolled Products
Engineered Products

t .
{In millions) ) - __ 2006 2005 . 2004

| Total sales: . . .

. High Performance Metals ............o..ooviiiiimiii ettt bt bttt s s st $ 1,931.3 § 1,3359.%  853.0
Flat-Rolled Products ... s R 2,7784 1,9392 - 1,660.4
Engineered Products ettt en oA et ets bt et et A bbbt s e neeenemem et et et et et e s e e aemeteeeesaesmee et eereeeeeeenenneetasaensnens 451.5 408.9 3i4.1

O 0T T OO U U PSS USROS U P USRS OO P URR TSRO PTRRPPTORPT 5,161.2 31684.00 2,827.5

Intersegment sales: '
High Performance Metals .............cooooioeieeeeeee et eeanaas 124,7 89.6 - -589
Flat-Rolled Products .................. e eetereiereearee reeueeessteesteetnteieseeeenseienteetnteateeatntease e inteanneeteraaaaeanren 811 - 387 16.5
~ ENgINeered PrOGUCTS ...c.oo i eaisisterssrest et s snestsrssnesseresnsssasssnsasesssrassrassnsnerbssessens _ - 18.8 15.5 19.1
Total INtErSEZMENT SALES .u..u i iiiticsiitieteemieie ettt ettt ee e eeeeaeenvareenead ST . -2246 . -l44.1 94.5
Sales to external customers: . ) ’
High Performance Metals ettt aent et e e —eab b bebe et e et e et eemeeim s oot een e e eeene e e eeeneeanens e '1,806.6 1,246.0 "704.1
Flat-Rolled Products cerses s ereeeeeeanans v eerieie s GV SRR reeeeaeaan 2,697.3 19005 1,643.9
Engineered Products ........cccevcviiiieeiiseseneee. ettt etteereeeeeteeneeteeteseeaseeeeaseaneeseeneereeneaeeereenrereeneeen 432.7 - 3934 - 2950
Total sales to eXteIMAl CUSTOIMEIS. ......c.cici ittt ittt e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeneeaesseesseesseeeeemeenmen $ 4936.6 § 35399 % 2,733.0

Total operating profit...........cccoeeiiencccininininne. v Trs s JRR - 1,058.5 5327 167.1
Corporate expenses.......... TSP U TRTURUPTRTOIN s (68.9) (51.7) {34.9)
[nterest eXpense, Net.. ..o cvoerereereie e rverinse erereinerenr e U OO UTPT ST PRI . (213.3) (38.6) . (35.5)
Restructurmg charges and curtailment gain, TS SRR e e e et e e et e nre e b e e es e e r e rnennennes — (23.9) 404
Other income {(expense), net of ZaiNS 0N @SSt SALES ......oicieiiiii i (15.2) (33.8) 2.5
Retirement benefit expense................ e eeLeenre e a e e e e e se e eh e e R eE b e R e Rt bt en s e entarsterstesfeteenternreraaesnens (81.9) (77.6)  (119.8)
Income before:-income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.................... $ 8692 § 307.1 § 198

Business ségment operating profit excludes costs for res'tructuring' charges, retirement benefit curtailment gains, retirement benefit
income or expense, corporate expenses, interest expenses, and costs associated with closed operations. These costs are excluded for
segment reporting to provide a profit measure based on what management considers to be controtlable costs at the segment level.
Retirement benefit expense includes both pension expense and other postretirement benefit expenses. Restructuring charges and

* | curtailment gain, net are more fully described in Note 11.

Other income (expense), net of gains on asset sales, includes charges incurred in connection with closed operations, pretax gains
and losses on the sale of surplus real estate, non-strategic investments, and other assets, and other non-operating income or expense,
which are primarily included in selling and administrative expenses, and in other income (expense) in the consolidated statement of
income. These items tesulted in net charges of $15.2 million in 2006 and $33.8 million in 2005, and net income of $2.5 million in
2004. For 20035, net charges included legal matter expenses of $26.8 million, which included the settlement of the Kaiser Aerospace &
Electronics matter, the unfavorable court judgment rendered in April 2005 concerning a commercial dispute with a raw materials
supplier, and other matters associated with closed companies.
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. A | |
: . | | ;
il i |
2] i
AN |
(In millions) " ' . 2006 2005 £ 2004
Depremanon and amortization: | '
High Performance Me:ais..ﬂ ....... et et et b Rt e $ 348 $ 275 $, 256
Flat-Rolled Products h..t 374 39.5 . 402
Engineered Products I 9.2 8.8 10.1
Corporate ...t b b aeereeaeas 2.8 1.5 0.2
Total depreciation and aMOrMZAION ......evveorireiiiiieeceeecceenc b s $ 842 § 773 8. 76.1
Capital expenditures: i ” ’; , Lo S : ;o
High Performance Metals ettt st $-1289 §  479.%, 265
Flat-Rolled Products .11, e s e R 65.8 - 251 'y 195
Engineered Products....t‘.....“ ...... e SO s S 333 152 ; 38
‘Corporate ...L..0..........) e e ST R > 1.9 . l . 0.1
Total capital expend:tures‘.*.....'.' ...... Bt et eee et et eeteseree b e ebe b e snareeenes] Feteareiienncnnsenees e 8 2352 % 50.1°51 499 -
- Identifiable asseéts: al ” | . | X o o
High Performance Metals .I......\ OO TSSO SOOI oeeeemenen $1,227.6 $ 8885 $| 676.0
Flat-Rolled Products....}...1L.... k... | . 11394 9540 | 9958
- Engineered Products ...\ 2339 2094 i 1746
Corporate: 1+ i _ , ce R
Pension Asset.........;.t. %1 ettt n e en s s reeeetieienas e = 1006 ; 1223
Income Taxes LSRN 124.8 1781 | 530
Other ..ol SO UV OO PO PO PO PO PV DO PP PP PO U T PO e - 556.5 401.0 2940
Total assets.................c o b, [T T O SO OO SUUTU $3,282.2 § 2,731.6 §12315.7
. ’ | '- ' ’ ’ !
Geographic‘in'fonnatiqx;l for extrémal sales based on country of origin,'and assets, are as follows: i
" { .‘ T ' [ ' ’
! : } . ‘Percent Percent [PCI‘CCM
{In miflions) ! ; !’ 2006 OfTotal  © 2005 Of Total 2004 OfTolal
" External Sales: . H ” l! ‘ , I
United States 1 ‘ $ 3,765.9 76% $ .2,669.9 75% $ 2,1769- . 80%
! 218.1 4% 1619 ¢ 5% - 1082 - 4%
.......................................................................................... 178.6 4% 12800 4% 641 - 2%
146.5 3%- i 1288 4% 96.5 ! 4%
1378 - 3% 1146 3% 88:1 |, 3%
133.9 3% | 713 0 2% 53.1 - 5 2%
513 1% « - 277 1% 1202 L 1%.
41.5 1% . 335 1% 262 T 1%
. 2630 5% 204.2 6% 99.7 - 4%
‘ $ 4,936.6 100% 1$ 3,539.9  100% $ 2,733.0- .. 100%
S ' :- .
f - : P
S | i
SR B | |
L g ; [
B i-; . ' !
r E i b o i } :
T - * Lo f
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Percent . .o Percent . , Percent *

-t _(In millions) - ) 2006 - Of Total . - 2005 * Of Total 2004 Of Total
- Total Assets: o ; T : ' L
United States ............. SR O PO e $2,7533 84% 3 23400  86% $ 19664 85%
United ngdom : ' 288.9 9% 12225 8% 187:3 8%
China. .ooie sl SO PO UOPOPTTOTTT 1090 ° 3% 62.9 2% 641 . 3%
GEINANY ... .oeveieeeeeeisesevreesniveseereeccececacnnneeanns 48.4 1% - t 387 1% 308 - 1%
Switzerland . ' 22.1 1% 208 1% - 237 - 1%
Japan ... e fevererennnees 3 19.2 1% 1217 - 1% -12.7 1%

Other ..o T T T T VOO T PO PP PP TUTUTURUTUTUT SYUTPRT PR 41.3 1% - 346 -, 1% 30.7 1%

$ 3,282.2 100% § 2,731.6 100% $ 2,315.7 . - 100%.

1 Note 11. Restructuring Costs, Curtailment (Gain), and Other Charges —

Revtmcturmg Costs and Curtadment { Gam), Net _
There were no restructunng costs or curtailment gains-recorded for the year ended December 31 2006. For the year ended December
31, 2003, the Company recorded net charges of $23.9 million, due primarily to asset impairments, which are presented as restructuring
costs in the consolidated statement of income. The charges were comprised of $24.3 million of asset impairment charges, and $1. 5
million of rélated environmental costs, net of a $1.9 million reserve reversal for prevmusly accrued lease termination costs.

Based on an analysis of existing and projected business conditions, at the 2005 year-end date the Company decided to indefinitely
idle the West Leechburg, PA finishing facility in the Company’s- Flat-Rolled Products segment. This action resulted in an asset
1mpalrment .charge of $15.8 million, representing the excess of the facility’s net book value over estimated fair value based on
expected future cash flows. In conjunction with the indefinite idling, a liability for $1.5 million in environmental exit costs was
recognized. Additionally, based on revised fair value cash flow estimates, the Company recorded $8.5 million of asset impairment
charges associated with previously idled assets in the Flat-Rolled Products segment at the Washington Flat-Roll coil facility located in
Washington, PA, and the stainless steel plate facility located in Massillon, OH, partially offset by a $1. 9 million reversal of lease
termination charges.

{ * “In 2004, the Company recorded a $40.4 million curtailment gain, net of restructuring costs, which includes the $71.5 million

curtailment and settlement gain and the $25.3 million pension termination benefit charge discussed in Note 9. Pension Plans and Other
Postretirement Benefits, and $5.8 million in restructurijng charges in the Flat-Rolled Products segment related to a labor agreement and
the J&L asset acquisition. Charges included labor agreement costs of $4.6 million; severance costs of $0.7 million related to
approx1mately 30 salaried employees and $0.5 million for asset impairment charges for redundant equipment following the J&L asset
acquisition.

Reserves for restructuring’ charges recorded in prior years .involving future payments were approximately $3 million each at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2605, : )

Other Gains and Charges

In ;’2006, the Company recorded $15.2 million in other charges, including $7.1 million for legal matters and $8.1 million for
environmental and other closed company costs.

In 2005, the Company recorded $33:8 million in other charges, including $26.8 million for legal matters and $7.0 million for
environmental and other closed company costs. The charges for legal matters include the settlement of the Kaiser Aerospace &
Electronics ‘matter, the unfavorable court judgment rendered in April 2005 concerning a commercial dispute with a raw materials
supplier, and ‘other matters assoc1ated w1th closed companies. )

In 2004, the Company recognized non- recurrmg gains of $12.9 million, including $5.5 million related to net gains on sales of real
estate and realization of other investments, income from corporate-owned life insurance of $1.2" million, and a $4.6 ‘million
environmental reserve reduction related to the $2.4 million settlement of an action brought in 1995 by the U.S. Government against
Allegheny Ludlum in the United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania alleging multiple violations of the
Federal Clean Water Act for incidents at five facilities. These gains were partially offset by closed company charges of $8.8 million
" primarily related to litigation.
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The payment obllrgatrons [un!der the $150 mrlhon 695% debentures
“Substidiary”} are} fully and uncondrtronally guaranteed by’Allegheny Technologies Incorporated (the “Guarantor Parent”) In

!
¢
’

tlon for Subsrdlary Guarantors —

'
¥ 'll-,

i
|

b
g
|

|--“

:due 2025 lssued by Alleg,heny Ludlum Corporatton (the

accordance with posrttonsr[establrshed by the Securrtres and Eschange Commrssron the following ﬁnancra] mformatton sets forth
separately f'mancral mfomranon wrth respect to the Subsrdrary, t]re non-guarantor subsrdlarres and the Guarantor Parent. The pr1nc1pal
ehmmatton entnes eliminate!} mvestments in subsrdranes and certain mtercompany balances and transactlons Investments in
subsrdrarres whlch are’ ehdnnatedlm consolidation, are included in other assets on_the balance sheets Subsrdrary results mcIude the

- effects "of - the. J&L asset Eacc'ftnsrglon including indebtedness 1ncurred in COHJUI]CIIOII w1th the acqursmon from the June 2004

acqursltron date N

_ non-guarantor sub:SIdrarles -do Ihot 1Include the Allegheny Technologres deferred pensron asset pensron liabilities or the related deferred -
“taxes. The pension asset, lrabrllltles and related deferred taxes and pensron income, or expense are recognrzed by the Guarantor Pdrent. -
Management: and royaIry t:eesl charged to-the Subsrdlary and to.the non guarantor subsidiaries by the Guarantor Parent - have been.

t'.

"y L
v L
Lt

- excluded solely: |for purposies of. thrs presentatlon

Allegheny Technologres Incorporated .
Financial Information forj Su bsrdlary and t;uarantor Parent

..' v . . R

b

v

: b |
" Allegheny Technologrles 1“s the plan sponsor for the deﬁned benef' t pension plan ,which covers certain current and forrner

employecs of the Subsrdrary and the non-guarantor subsidiaries.' As a result the balance sheets presented for the Subsidiaryjand the

%

Ce

‘.‘ .
I

T

i .

[y

"y
L%

Total Llabrlmes and Stnckholders Equrly

343653 19605 § 27827 §' (4.8975) '$3.280.2

Balance Sheetsi i . ].t * 5, . % | oo ¥ . -
-December_.?], 200.6 ,” o S e L
— Poh :E : i ! 4 I : . e
y L ir ‘ 3 ’ ' | buarantor * e e G R T
[ , . | . guaramor o . |
(ln mrllrons) § L : ’ " .| Parent Subsrdrary i Subsrdlartes : Eliminations Consohdaled
"Assets P {h e o
Cashandcasheqmvalents|..................................................................-.. $ 0.5 $ 10’6.1 $ 3_25.7 — -$I 5Q2.3- ’
“Accounts receivable, net .1 .. I 0.1 260.2 350:6 — 610.9
' — .., 2876 511.1 —.. .| 7987
b 2667 — L — L - - 266
Loor 54 439 1494
. 273. . .7293 . 172313 T —  Lo87s
“Property, plant, 'and equ1prrrientl net' 09 .-,.3166 5501, — 8676
iCost in excess of net asset$lacquired ! — 1121 94.4 — 2065
Deferred income taxes.......l.I ..... OO UO OO 1248 = = — 124.8
‘Investments in subsidiaries 'and Other ASSets ............o..ooovvereeeeeeeen... 132835 802.5 906.9  (4,897.5) .1 954
Fotal Assetsh. o 0 0 0 e, $ 34365 5 1,960.5 \§ 2,782.7 § .(4,897:5) . § :3,282.2
Liabilities and Stockholders |1equty 5 ' 3 f ' . { o
- Accounts payablei : ] $ 588 1733 § 176.0 $ 7 3551
* 1,555.9 701 460.6 (1, 819 9) | 266.7
o — <1127 125 i 237
g 1,561.7 2546 64901 (1819 9) 6455
{3065 . 3949 . 285 (200.0) . | 5299
o — 2678 S 1608 L=~ l 4286
358 - i o — - 358
399 279 % g0 =i 149.8
11,9439 '945.2° 920.4 (2,019.9)° ~ 11,789.6
Total Stockholders’ Equity ..M F'1,492.6 1,015.3 1,862.3 {2,877.6) 11,492.6
i
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Allegheny Technologies Incorporated
Financial Information for Subsidiary and Guarantor Parent
Statements of Operations

For the year'ended December 31, 2006

Non-
, Guarantor : guarantor

(Int millions) Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated
SALES.....oiiiiiiiicee et a s et s b s s s bs bt s e rerea s b — § 2,5403 ° § 23963 § — 3 49366
COSt OF SAlES ... 56.9 2,181.3 1,505.6 Lo — 3,743.8
Selling and administrative XPenses ....ovcvvevevoveieininienas rereerebereanes 112.5 38.0 144.8 — . 2953
Income loss before interest, other income (expense), income

BAKES 1vvviteiiinrereiernrsieiiteteseiarsssiaatssseinreteieinrestibraneseratassibrnrsesabtarssrase (169.4) 3210 745.9 — 897.5
Interest income (eXpense), Net ........ccoooeoeeveieerrncesenreennes e (21.8) (10.4) - 89. . _ . . (233)
Other income (expense) including equity in income of : .

unconsolidated subsidiaries @i 1,060.4 17.6 (7.3)  (L,075.7) (5.0)
Income before inCome tAXes ...oooveivviiieice e, S 869.2 3282 747.5 (1,075.7 869.2
INCOME 1AX PIOVISION. ....ccueeiieiuiereieteeereeteieieeeieenieeneeeeeeeeereeereeereeseas 297.3 _125.0 251.1 (376.1) 2973
INEETIICOMIE ..ottt emeesesreme e ese e sesee $ 5719 § 2032 § 4964 § (6996) § 5719
Allegheny Technologies Incorporated ]
Financial Information for Subsidiary and Guarantor Parent
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2006

Non-
: Guarantor guarantor o
(In millions) . Parent Subsidiary  Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities .............. . § (702) $ 1078 § 2078 % 63.1 $ 3085
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities.................. (0.9) 30.8 (188.2) (74.4) " {232.7)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities................ 70.9 14.6 (33.0) 11.3 63.8
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents....)\............... -$ (02) § 1532 % (134) § — $ 1396
F73




[ r i i 1 1

1 b 1 ! a i ‘

b | i

o s g

' k

Allegheny Technologles lncorporated '

Financial lnformatlon fm; Subsndlary and Guarantor Parent | ; {

Balance Sheets . it ! !

A . ' !

December 31, 2005 K : ! |

: : |

¥ : Non- !

I . i { - Guarantor .. guarantor :
{In mitlions) L '} 5 Parent Substdiary  Subsidiaries  Eliminations .Consolidated

Assets = - .y H ',-l!.- ‘ oo i . b
Cash and cash equwalents U T e $, 07§ 229§ 33918 — 3. 3627
Accounts receivable, net ... _ l.l.....:.'l .................................................... .02 163.2 2787 — po442.1
Inventories, net........ccoevvueeniinne f, — 244.2 3629 — . 607.1
Deferred income taxes , 228 — — — 22.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .01 3.8 45.4 — i 493
Total Current Assets..! i ¢ 238 -434.1 1,026.1 — '1,484.0
Property, plant, Pand equ1pment net ................................................... ‘ — 2957 409.2 — 'ﬁ 704.9
Cost in excess of net assets acqu1red : : — 1121 87.6 — vo199.7
Deferred income taxes ..... 1 ilr ..... | .............. . 1553 — — — “t 1553
Deferred pension asset .. .“ L e 1 100,68 — — - 1 100.6
Investments in subSIdlanes and other assets ...................................... '1,917.5 726.6° 693.7 (3.250.7) . 811
Total ASSelS...on ool oo b eeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeseeeeeseeseseeeeacen $ 2,197.0 § 15685 S 22166 8 (3,250.7) $.2.73L.6
Liabilities and Stockholders” Equuy ; EEE _ Co . : P

- Accounts payable! ... 1. 1] e $| 258 1503 S 160.1 — sloang
Accrued liabilities............ b f 8156 ~  59.1 505.5 (1,145.6) | 2346
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt..................... e — 13,4 — C 134
Total Current Llabllmes ..... N SO " 818.1 209.4 679.0 (1,145.6) I 560.9
Long-term debt ................ L T ORI : 307.5 406.3 33.2 {200.0) l 547.0
Accrued postretlremem benef'ts...'. .................................................... 1 — 2640 197.5 — | 4615
Pension liabilities!............ A A OO S | 2429 = — — . ; 2429
Other long-term labilities.!. !l oo, . 288 270 63.6 — J 1194
Total Liabilities ”“ ..................................... bereirnesns '1,397.3 -~ 606.7 973.3 (1,345.6) . 11,9317
Total Stockholders’ Equity ...0...coccvvevvevnn. O T - ¥ 7999 _661.8 . 1,243.3 C{,905.) 0 799.9
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity.....coovooveveenne.. $2,197.2 § 1,568.5 § 22166 3% (3.250.7) $.2.731.6
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Allegheny Technologies Incorporated
Financial Information for Subsidiary and Guaranter Parent
Statements of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2005

Non-
Guarantor guarantor R
{In millions) Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated - .
SBIES..... oo 3 — $ 1,7559 § 1,7840 § — 3 .3,5399
COSt OF SALES ..ottt 55.4 1,5929  1,2414 — 2,889.7
Selling and administrative EXPENSES ......ccovsrrrerreeimmnninnnisiennnisieine 104.6 339 1373 —_ . 2758
ReStructuring Costs, NeL.... oo oeeeeircesnitisiiris s e sre e sssesaenresnees (1.9) 25.8° — -— 23.9.
Income (loss) before interest, other income (expense), income,,
taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........ (158.1) 103.3 405.3 — 350.5
| IOtErESt EXPENSE, MIEL......\oveceeercercreerearerisnss s esesessserers s iensaresssretassnnas (28.4) 9.7 (0.5) — (38.6)
Other income (expense) including equity in income (loss) of .
“unconsolidated subsidiaries ... 491.6 6.4 (1.0 (501.8) (4.8)
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in .
accoUnting Principle ... N ‘ 305.1 100.0 403.8 (501.8) 307.1°
Income tax provision {benefit)......c.cooirviirimii e (54.7) — — — (54.7)
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting : -
PIIRCTPIE cre et 359.8 1000 . 4038 (501.8) 361.8
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax........ — — O .0) = (2.0)
INEEINCOMIC 1otz en e $ 3598 § 1000 § 4018 $ (5018 $§ 3598
Allegheny Technologies Incorporated
Financial Information for Subsidiary and Guarantor Parent
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2005
" Non-
. . Guarantor . guarantor s
{In millions) ) ) ) Parent " Subsidiary ' Subsidiaries Eliminations = Consolidated
Cash flows provided by {used in) operating activities ................. $ 2602 % (132.5) % 3697 § (2748 § 2226-
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities................... (283.9) (23.4) {96.4) 294.5 (109.2)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities................. 24.2 2.7 (8.7) (19.7) (1.5)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents......................... 5 05 $ (153.2) § 2646 § — $ 1119
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Allegheny Technologles lncorpori'ated . | . L
Financial Information for Subs:dlarv and Guarantor Parent ] ’ , .
Statements of Operatlonsi ‘ i | R _ ‘ ro
! f . i - [ } , :.
. For the year ended December 31, 2004 - ' ‘ ! R . {[ .
: H ] . ! Lt .
' | ! i f Non- |
: ) Guarantor ' guarantor .
(In millions) J I Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Elimninations Consolidated
Sales . . ” I, § 1 — 5 15171 % 1,2159 § — § 2,733.0
cCostofsales...h o e 185.1 1,429.2 973.8 — 2,488.1
Selling and administrative. expenses . 101.5 25.9 105.9 —_— 12333
Curtailment (gain), net of i restructurmg costs .................................... i (40.4) — — ' (40.4)
Income (loss) before lnterest 'other income (expense) and income \ : . obe
I (186.6) - 1024 - 1362 — b 52,0
Interest expense, net 259) - O 0)' (0.6) — ; (35.5)
. Other income (expense)| mcludmg eqmty in income (loss) of -} : o
unconsolidated subsidiaries .!....... | ! ................................................... 2323 ' 6. 1 35 {238.6) 133
“Income (loss) before incomie tax ... L. ..o ; ' . ‘ Do ' P
provision (benefit).......... !.f.....". ...... I .................................................... .19.8 99.5 139.1 (238.6) “19.8
Income tax provision (benef 1) LI T SRR p— — — - I —
Netincome........L........... ; .....'L.....' .................................................... § 1198 § 995 § 1391 - (2386) § .°19.8
i ;i | t ! ) | -
Allegheny Technologles lncorporated Ij T \ T
Financial ]nformatmn forl Subsndlary and Guarantor Parent ' ' ’ E ,
Condensed Sta‘tements of Cash Flows ! ;
i ' ‘
| : .
'For the year end_ed De'cemher 31, 2004 N “ Lr
3 g ’ * ! Non-‘ %
' ‘; Guarantor " puaranter '
{In millions) i Parent Subsidiary.  Subsidiaries Eliminations __ Consolidated
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities ............... $§ (052) 8 55 % 1273 $ (93.5) 3 241
Cash flows provided by {used in) investing activities................ (214.1) {24.3) (184.6) 3684 (54 &)
Cash flows previded by (used in) fi financing activities................ 229.2 152.6 94.8 (274.9) 201.7
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equwalents ....................... $ 1(0.1) % 1338 § 375 3 — $ 171.2
o : ! \ .
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Note 13.-Per Share Information — -~ T & '

.
L i Lo . . . . . .
[ 4 . - . AN . . - . i t

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per common share:

{In millions except per share amounts)

Years ended December 31, ' 2006 2005 2004
Numerator:- ‘ : . e . . ]
Income before cumulative effect of change in-accounting principle ... Liereeeiemeens $ 5719 $ 3618 $ 19,8: r
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax..........ciiiiiiineee . 2.0). —
Numerator for basic and diluted income per common share — Net inCome ......ocvevereeeeccennnss reiirans "$ 5719 § 3598 § 198
Denominator: : c s . _ . ‘ - o
Denominator for basic. net income per common share — weighted average shares .............. et . 9971 96.23 86.63 .
Effect of dilutive securities: R e ..
Option eqUIVAIENLS .....cvirveircrciiiinieceenaes et ettt ) 1.17 1.76 1.58
Contingently issuable shares............; feeerereinsreseiearereanensand et et et eeneeteeeseetimeateeteitotestestonenseresneneersnensies 1.50 2.85 2.28
Denominator for diluted net income per, common share — adjusted weighted average shares and o o _
assumed conversrons..j .............................................................................................................. A 10238 10084 ° 90.49
‘Basic income per common share before cumulatlve effect of change in accountlng principle.......... $ 574 $ 376 '$ 023
Cumulative effect of change in accounting PHNCIPIE. ..o escsssvsce s ses s ssrssr sz nsnsins L — 0.02) —
| Basic net inCOMe Per COMMON SHATE...........cvcuireririeiieerieeaerriesesr e tsese s eias s tnr s ieshes et ers s iaabata s e $ 574 § 374 § 023
Diluted income per common share before cumulative effect of change in accountmg prmcrple $ 559 § 359 § 022
Cumulative effect.of change in.accOUNtiNg PrinCiPle. ... oo crce i sisiesiiin b — (0.02) —
.Diluted net income Per COMMON SHATE: ... .vvvve. el Dottt sarsts s oo $ 559 § 357 § 0.22

H P B AT ol ¥

Welghted average shares issuable upon the exercise of stock optlons Wthh were antldllutwe and thus not included in the
calculatlon were (0.5 million in 2005 and 1.6 million in 2004. i :

Note 14. Commitments and Contmgencres — . . S

Rental expense under operating leases was $20.3 m1111on in 2006, $21.0 mllhon in 2005, and $18 0 l'mlllon in 2004 Future minimum
rerital commitments under operating leases with non-cancelable terms of more than one year at December 31, 2006, were as follows:
$17.0 million in 2007, $15.2 million*in:2008; $13.0 million-in-2009, $6.2 million in 2010, $3.9 million in 2011 and. $6.3 million
thereafter.. Future minimum payments under capital leases for long-lived assets were $0.9 million in 2007,-$0.3 million'in 2008, and
$0.1 million in. 2009 Commltments for expendltures on property, plant and equlpment at December 31, 2006 were approxnnately $37
million, : o ' . .

When it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset of the Company has been 1mpalred a loss is recognized if the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estlmated

The Company maintains reserves where a legal obllgatlon exists to perform an asset retirement activity and the fair value of the
liability can be reasonably estimated. These asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) include liabilities where the timing and (or) method
of settlement may be conditional-on a future event, that may or may not be within the control of the entity. In the 2005 fourth quarter,
the*Company recognized: $3.3 million of liabilities for estimable conditional AROs as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. ‘At December 31, 2006, the Company had recognized AROs of $6.0 million related to landfill-closures and condmonal
AROs assocrated with’ manufacturmg actwmes usmg what may be characterlzed as potennally hazardous matenals
_ Esnmates of AROs are evaluated annually in'the fourth quarter or more frequently 1f materlal new information becomes known.

Accounting: for asset retirement obligations. requrres significant estimation and in certain cases, the Company has determined that an

ARO exists, but the amount of the obligation is not reasonably estimable. The Company may determme that additional AROs -are
requlred to be recognized as new information becomes available.

The Company also maintains reserves for contingent tax liabilities, for differences bétween the benefit of tax deductions as
claimed on various income tax returns and income tax provisions recorded on the financial statements.

These liabilities are estimated based on analyses of probable return-to-provision adjustments using currently available information.
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The Company 1s subject to various domestic and international environmental laws and regulanons that govern the d1scharge of

pollutants, and d1sposal of, w:lstesl and which may require that it investigate and remediate the effects of the release or disposal of
materials at sites assoc1ated WIth past and present operations. The Company could incur substantial cleanup costs, fines, and civil or
criminal sanctrons third party property damage or personal injury claims as a. result of violations or liabilities under these laws or

noncompliance with envnronmental permits requtred at its facilities. The Company -is currently involved in the mvestrgatron and
remedlatlon of a number of 1tslcurr|ent and former sites, as well as third party sites. !

l H ! ,(

Env1ronmental llabllrtres are recorded when the Company’s llablllty is probable and the costs are reasonably estimable. In many
cases, however, the Company is not able to determine whether it.is liablé or, if liability is probable, to reasonably estimate the loss or
range of loss. Estimates ofithe Colnpany s liability remain subject to addmonal uncertainties; including the nature and extent of site
contamination, avallable remedranbn alternatives, the extent of corrective actions that may be required, and the number, partlelpanon
and financial condttlon of !other potenttally responsible parties (“PRPs™). The Company expects that it will adjust its accruals to reflect
new information as approprrate Funire adjustments could have a materlal adverse effect’on the Company s results of operatlons 1n a
glven period, but the Company ean;not rellably predret the amounts of such future adjustments. ‘ !
C

"Based on currently avallable 1nformatlon the Company does not belleve that there is a reasonable possibility that a- loss e)gceedlng
the amount already accrued for any of the sites’ with which the Company is currently associated (either 1nd1v1dually or in the
aggregate) will be an amountlthat would ‘be material to a decision to buy or sell the Company’s securities: Future developments
administrative actions or ltabtllltleslrelatmg to environmental matters, however could have a matertal adverse effect on the Company s

financial condmon or results of operations. : L , - %

| A .

At December 31 2006l the Company s reserves for environmental remedtatlon obligations totaled approximately $25. m1llton of
which $14 mllltOI‘l WETE 1nc1uded in other current liabilities. The reserve includes estimated probable future costs of $9 million for
federal Superfund.and comparable state-managed sites; $8 million for formerly owned or operated sites for which the Company has
remediation or ' mdemnrﬁl:and'n obltgatlons $5 million for owned orcontrolled sites at which Company operations have been

discontinued, and $3 million-for srtes utilized by the Company in-its ongoing operations. The Company continues to evaluate whether

it may be able to recover alportton of future costs for environmental liabilities from third parties. e

The timing of expendltures depends on a number of factors that vary by site. The Company expects that it will expendl present

accruals over many years a;nd that remedlatlon of all sites with whlch it has been 1dent1fied wiil be eompleted within thirty years.
- } .
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Var1ous claims have bl:en or may be asserted against the Company related to 1ts govemment eontraet work, principally related to
the former operations of Teledyne Inc. Such proceedings could result in fines, penalties, compensatory and treble. damage's or the
cancellationror suslpensmn of payments under one or more U.S. government contracts. Although the outcome of these matters cannot
be predicted wnth certamty, the Company does not: believe.any:pending matter of which management is aware is likely to have a
material adverse effect on' the lCompany s financial condition or liquidity, although the resolution in any reporting period of one or
more of these matters could have a'material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operatlons for that penod |

: ! | . P

In June 2003 the San iDrego Unrﬁed Port Dlstnct {(“Port District”) commenced an action in U.S. District Court for the Southern
District of Callfomra agamst TDY Industries, Inc. {TDY) asserting federal state and common law claims related toalleged
environmental contammanon 'on property located-in San Diego and formerly leased by TDY. The complaint seeks unspecified
damages and a declaratory, Judgment as to TD'Y’s liability for contamination on the property. TDY has asserted a counterclaim as well
as claims agamst ltetghbormgl property owners and former and current operators related to the environmental condition of the San
Diego facility. The San Drego iInternational Airport (“Airport™), the current operator of the San Diego Property, asserted a cross claim
against TDY allegmg federal |§tate and-common law claims relating to the alleged environmental contamination and seekmg losses
relating to the Airport’s alleged mablhty to redevelop the -property. In) 'December 2006, General Dynamics Corporation, a former
neighboring property operator commenced a separate but related action against TDY. General Dynamics alleges federal claims
relating to alleged envtronmental contamination emanating from the 'San Diego property that has allegedly impacted General
Dynamic’s property The part es have reaehed a tentativé settlement of these matters which is expected to ‘be finalized in the first
quarter 2007. | | b . .- o i : . ‘
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Separately, the Port District requested that the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (“DTSC") evaluate whether the
San Diego property is regulated as a hazardous waste transportation, storage, or disposal facility under the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (“RCRA™) and similar state laws. The Company has submitted a work plan to the DTSC for closure of four solid waste
management units at the facility, in connection with other work that is being done at the Site. The DTSC commented-on the work plan
and TDY is addressing the comments.

! i . TDY has conducted an environmental assessment of the San Diego facility pursuant to an October 2004 Order from the San Ijiego

Regional Water Quality Control Board (“Regional Board”). TDY will perform additional remedial investigation as- well as

' remedlanon activities. At December 31, 2006, the Company had adequate reserves for these matters.,

While the outcome of these environmental matters cannot be predicted with certainty, an adverse resolution of the matters re]at:ng
to the San Diego facility could have a material adverse affect on the Company ] results of operatlons and financial condition.

" TDY and another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, among others, have been identified. by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) as PRPs at the Li Tungsten Superfund Site in Glen Cove, New York. The Company believes that most of
the contamination at the site resulted from work done while the U.S. Government either owned or controlled operations at the site, or
from processes done for various governmental agencies, and that the U.S. Government is liable for a’substantial portion of the
remediation costs at the site. In November 2000, TDY filed a cost recovéry and contribution action against the U.S. Government. In
March 2003, the Court ordered the parties to the action to fund a portion of the remediation costs at the site. In July 2004, TDY, the
U.S. Government and the EPA entered into an Interim Agreement, under which the U.S. Government funded $20.9 million and TDY
funded $1 million of the remediation costs at the site. [n November 2005, TDY sued other PRPs at the site seeking contribution to the
response costs that have been and will continue to be incurred at the sité. TDY, the other PRPs and the U. S. Government reached a
resolution of this matter and a consent judgment has been circulated for execution. After the consent Judgment has been fully executed
it will be lodged with the court and published for public comment. Under the consent judgment, TDY will complete the remediation of
the remaining portions of the site and will receive contribution from other PRPs. Based on information presently available, the
Company believes its reserves on this matter are adequate. An adverse resolut:on of this matter could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Since 1990, TDY has been operating under a Corrective Action Order from the EPA for a facility that TDY owns and formerly
operated in Hartville, Ohio. TDY has prepared a plan to carry out additional remediation activities, which has been approved by the
EPA. The plan was modified slightly in 2006 and implementation will commence in 2007. The Company believes its reserves for the
continued operation of the interim system and for costs it expects to incur for the additional remediation activities are adequate,

In April 2005, an unfavorable judgment of $5.3 million, including compensatory damages and prejudgment interest, was 1ssued
against TDY in a case filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama relating o a disputed, tantalum
graded powder raw material supply arrangement. The supplier alleged that ATI Metalworking Products had failed to purchase certain
tantalum graded powder under a supply contract, and TDY defended on the basis that the arrangement was a consighment with no
purchase obligation. The Company’s appeal of the adverse ‘decision was denied in the third quarter 2006 and in October 2006, the
Company paid the $5.6 million judgment, including interest.

A number of other lawsuits, claims and proceedings have been or may be asserted against the Company relating to the conduct of
its currently and formerly owned businesses, including those pertaining to product liability, patent infringement, commercial,
employment, employee benefits, taxes, environmental, health and safety and occupational disease, and stockholder matters. While the
outcome of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, and some of these lawsuits, claims or proceedmgs may be determined
adversely to the Company, management does not belicve that the disposition of any such pending matters is l1kely to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or liquidity, although the resolut:on in any reporting penod of one or more of
these matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operatlons for that period.
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Note 15. Selected Quarterly Fina'ncial Data (Unaudited) —

3

u

: o ) Quarter Ended . .
(In mitlions except share and per share amounts) . March 3l L June 30 September 30 December 31
2006 - te ! - . ' R I
SAUES oo 0 T S $  1,0405 § 1201088 12884 S 113969
Gross profit............cccee.e... ST SO NSRS e B 2419 285.9 3249 -1 340.1
Net income.....\.ooiiioenen: Lo, s 102.5 1404 . ‘1619 | 167.1
. Basic net income per cominon!share : $ 1.04 § 141 § - 1.62 5 | 166

Diluted net income per common share.......0...cccoevnnennnn, TR T - 1.00 § - 1.37 § " 158 % i 1,63
Average shares outstanding .1, e erereaesameeeeeemteaneeenrere e s eanre et terreae i 99393518 100,427,825 100,634,980 100,936,062
2005 - | il ” b, o _1 . ' :
881ES v el e s $ 879.6 $ 904.2 $ 8617 $ | 8944
Gross profit .......fueeeeennn RIS : 1413 171.7 162.9 1743
. Income before cumulanve effect of change in accountmg prmc1ple ..... I 61.0 917 88.3 | 120.8
Net income..........)....c.... S S OO o | 61.0° 91.7 , B8.3 1188
Basic income per common share before cumulatlve effect of change in ! ' : : . - ' Lol

accounting principle.....l. L WL it ceennes 3 064 . - 096°F 091" | 1.4
Basic net incomie per common [share.......a. Lt enissscsnns ... $ - 064 % 096 § 051 % ' 122
Diluted income per commaon share Ibefore cumulatrve effect of change ! - !

in accounting principle.. 1 b i) 5 - 0.61 3 091 % 0.87 § 1.19
" Diluted net income per cornmon share........... teeeee et ettt e 3 061 § 091 § - 0.87 % L7
Averape shares outstandmg SR O R rerrerenens e eeireinnnennie o 96,052, 147 ‘ 96 502 225 ' 97,167 790 97 881,373

+Management is. respons:b]e for establlshmg and maintaining adequate

F80.
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The 20605 fourth quarter includes a-$20.9"million net special gain' associated w:lh the reversal of the Company’s remammg
vaiuation allowance for U: S, Federal net deferred tax assets of $44.9 million, partially offset by asset impairments and charges related
to legal matters of $22.0, mrllton] and a $2.0 million charge, reported as a cumulative effect accoumm& change, net of |tax for
conditional asset ret1rement obllgatlons |

|

)

Item 9. Changes in and Drsagreements with Accountants on Accou’ntrng and Financial Disclosure

" Not applicat;le.-l

l
i
I
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures ;
|

3

4
4
)
!

[
1

i

Dr’sclosure Controls and Procedurelr

+

b

.

.
l

o

Our Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer and Chref Financial Officer have evaluated the Company ] drsclosure controls and procedures as of

December 31, 2006 and t}Tey concluded that these controls and procedure;s are effective.

thagemem 5 Repart an'lnlemal Control Over Financial Reportmg l
1

i

]

:

i
[
1

l1ntemal control over financial reporting for the Company

Internal control over ﬁnanc1a1 reportmg is defined in Rule 13a-15(f } and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Actof
1934 as a process, desrgned b'y, or| under the supervision of, the' company s principal executive and principal financial officers and
effected by the. company,s board[ of directors, management and other, personnel, to provrde reasonable assurance regardmg the
reliability of financial repomlng and the preparation of financial - statements for extemal purposes' in accordance with generally
accepted accountmg prmcrples and includes those policies and procedures that:’ '

Pertain to the maintenance

assets of the company;

!
Provide reasonable assurance

I r

]

L o

I

l i 1
of récords that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

l
{

' l
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemems in

accordance wtth generallyr acclepteg accounting principles, and that recerpts and expenditures of the company are being made’ only in
accordance with authorlzatlom of management and directors of the compa[my, and

l'

f
|
1
I
|
t
|
|
|
{




Provide reascnable assurance regardlng prevention. or timely detection of unauthorlzed acquisition, use or disposition of the
| company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. -

Because of its inherent limitations, intemnal control over fi nancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of
any. evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compllance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. .

H

" Internal control over ﬁnancral reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achrevmg ﬁnanc1al(reportmg objectives because of
its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human. diligence and compllance and 18
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns Tesulting from human failures. [ntemal control . over financial reporting can also be
' circumvented by collusion or 1mproper management override. Because of such llmttatlons there is.a risk that material mlsstatements
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are

known features of the financial repottmg process. Therefore, it is possible to de51gn into the process safeguards to reduce, though not-

eltmmate this risk. . L
" The Company 5 management assessed the effectweness of the Company 5 mternal control over ﬁnancrai reportmg as of December

31, 2006 In making' this assessment, the Company,’s management used the criteria set forth by the: Commlttee of Sponsormg

Organizations (“COSO”) of the Treadway Commission’s Internal Control- Integrated Framework. o

Based on our assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company s internal control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

1
1

The Company’s mdependent regtstered public accountmg firm that audrted ‘the ﬁnancral statements mcluded in this Annual Report
issued an attestation report on our managemcnt ] assessment of the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

< 7.- "

Mdnagement’s Certifications

¢
.,

The certifications of the Company’s Chief Executlve Officer and Chief Financial Officer requ1red by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are
included as Exhibits 31 and 32 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition, in 2006 the Company’s Chief Executive Officer

provided to the New York Stock Exchange the annual CEO certification pursuant to Section 303A regarding the Company’s '

comphanee with the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance listing standards.

y

L. Patrick Hasléey
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Richard J. Harshman
Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

F81



| .

| :
i Report af Independem Regrstered Publrc Accountmg F trm

s ‘ ' i
The Board of Dtrectors anid Stockholders of Allegheny Technologtes lncorporated ST i
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l
- We have audlted management|s assessment mcluded in the’ accompanylng ‘Management’ s Report on lnternal Control Over Fmancral

Reporting, that Allegheny Technologles Incotporated maintained effecttve intérnal control over financial reporting as of December 31,

2006, based on cnter1a estabhshed iin Internal Control—lntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzanons
of the Treadway Commtssmn (the COSO cr1ter1a) Allegheny Technologles Incorporat:ed § management is responsible for maintaining
effectwe mternal control over ﬁnanc1al reportmg “and for its assessment of the effectweness of - internal control over ﬁnancral
- reporting.- Qur respons1b1l|ty is to express an opinion on management s assessment and an’ op1mon on the effectiveness of the
company s mternal control bvd'r ﬁnbncral reportmg based on our audit. l : )
*We conducted our audlt in accordance ‘with the standards ot the Pubhc Company Accountm;_, 0vers1ght Board (Umted States)
Those standards requlre that vt%e plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intérnal control

|
over financial reportmg was maintained in all material respects. Our aud1t mcluded obtaining an understandmg of internal control over |

|
- financial’ reportmg, evaluatmglman{agement 5 assessment testmg and evaluatmg the: design”and’ operatmg effectiveness of mtemal
control, and perfomnng such olther procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We beheve that our audit provrdes a
reasonable baswifolr our opllmon : . 1 ' : ‘

i
I

: |
A company s 1ntemal|control over. financial reporting is a process designed to prov1de reasonable assurance regardmg the .

- reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnanc1al statements for external purposes in’accordance with generally

- accepted, accounltlrfg pr1nc1ples:! A c::ompany s internal control over ﬁnancral reporting, mcludes those pohcres and procedures rthat (D
_pertain to the mamtenance of records that,: ‘in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactlons dnd dispositions of the

assets of the company, (2).prov1de |reasonablt assurance that transactlons1 are recorded as’ necessary to permlt preparation of ﬁnancral
statements in accorldance vlvgth 'gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that rece1pts Tancl expenditures of the company are bemg
‘made only in accolrdance vy1thII aut'horlzataonl, of management and. dtrectors of the company, and (3) prov1de reasonable assurance
~ regarding prevention or tlmely detectton of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon of the company B assets that could have a
mater1a1 effect on the ﬁnanc1al statTmems : : ) 1 : S R i

! l l i .o . . i . )
Because of its 1nhererlti hmltanons internal control over’ financial freportmg may not prevent or detect m1sstatements Also

t .
projections of any evaluatton of effectlveness t6' futiire per1ods are subject to the risk that controls may: ‘become inadequate because of

Changes in condmons or that the degree of comphance with the pohcres ol procedures may deterlorate dl .

f i ! l

i 1 {
In our op1n1onI management s assessment that Allegheny Technologles Incorporated maintained effective ‘internal control over

financial reportmg 'as of Décember - 31, 2006, is falrly stated, in all matenal respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our optmon

- Allegheny Techhologws Incorlporated maintained, in all materml respects effecuve«mternal control over financial reporting as of -

Deceémber 31 2006 based 'on the COSO criteria. l : : 1
N . i _ S :
We also have aEud1ted m accordance with the standards of thé Public! :Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) the

- consolidated balance sheets of’ Allegheny Technologies Incorporated as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of i mcome stockholders equity, and cash flows for each of | the three years m the period ended December 31, 2006 of

Allegheny Techno gles Inﬁorporated and our report dated February 21, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
H
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Plttsburgh Penns ylvama
February 21,2007 -
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Item 9B. Other Information

Not a[.J;;.licable

PART I , |

lte.m 1‘0. Directors and Executive O.Afﬁcers of the Registrant

In addition to the information set forth under the caption “Principal Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part [ of this report, the
information concerning our directors required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material appearing
under the heading “Qur Corporate Governance” and “Election of Directors” in Allegheny Technologies’ Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2007 Proxy Statement™), which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
pursuant to Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year. Information concerning the Audit Committee and
its financial expert required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material appearing under the heading
“Committees of the Board of Directors — Audit Commitiee” in the 2007 Proxy Statement. Information required by this item regarding
compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated and made a part hereof by reference to the material appearing
under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the 2007 Proxy Statement. Information concerning

the executive officers of Allegheny Technologies is contained in Part I of this Form 10-K under the caption “Principal Executive -

Officers of the Registrant.”

Allegheny Technologies has adopted Corporate Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics that apply to all employees including
its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions. Allegheny Technologies will provide a copy free of charge. To obtain a copy, contact the Corporate Secretary, Allegheny
Technologies Incorporated, 1000 Six PPG Place, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222-5479 (telephone: 412-394-2836). The Corporate
Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics as well as the charters for the Company’s Audit, Finance, Nominating and Governance,
Personnel and Compensation and Technology Committees, as well as periodic and current reports filed with the SEC, are available
through the Company’s web site at http://www.alleghenytechnologies.com and are available in print to any shareholder upon request.
The Company intends to post on its web site any waiver from or amendment to the guidelines that apply to the officers named that
relate to elements of the code of ethics identified by the Securities and Exchange Commission. :

Item 11. Executive Compensation

+

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation” and
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” as set forth in the 2007 Proxy Statement. ‘

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information relating to the ownership of equity securities by certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by reference to
“Stock Ownership Information™ as set forth in the 2007 Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information about our equity compensation plans at December 31, 2006 was as follows:

. ()
Number of Shares
Remaining
Available for
(a} Future [ssuance
Number of Shares (b Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted Average Compensation Plans (1)
) ~ Exercise of Exercise Price of (excluding securities
(In thousands, except per share amounts} Qutstanding Options Qutstanding Options reflected in column {a))
Equity Compensation Plans Appreved by Sharcholders.......... 1,324 $ 1165 2,443
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders... 0 3 0 0
TOAL..cvvisiciiieniiici et ettt s e e 1,324 $ 11.65 2,443

F&3




i
v

|
f
(1) Represents shares avalllfiblﬁ fori lsquance under the 2000 Incentlve Plan (which pr0v1des for the issuance of stock options and stock
appreciation rights, restncted shares, 'performance and other-stock-based awards). A 2007 Incentive Plan, which has been
approved by the Company s Board of Directors, is being submitted to the stockholders of the Company for approval at the
Company’s 2007 Annual Meetmg of Stockholders. Upon adoption'of the Plan with the approval of the stockholders,.nc new
awards would be grantled under the 2000 Incentive Plan. Of the total number of shares authorized under the lnccntwel Plan, a
maximum of 0.8 m1ll1Rn shares have been reserved for issuance for award periods under the Total Shareholder Return lncentwe
Compensatroanrogram See Nlote 7. Stockholders’ Equ1ty fora d1scuss1on of the Company’s stock-based compensation plans
I
! ‘ 1
Item 13. Certain Relationships aTd Related Transactions, and Dlrector Independence l S :
‘ o ' : 1o
Information requrred by thlS item is incorporated by reference to “Ccrtam Transactions”. and “Number and lndependence of Dlrectors

as set forth in thle 2007 Proxy Statement. ' N AR wi o . oo

B
1

*

Item 14, Prmclpal Accountmg Fr]-es and Services l ' A SR o
- o Y ‘t ) ' S . !
Information requ:led by thrs item: is mcorporated by referencc to Item C — “Ratification of Selection of lndependent Audltors
including “Audlt Commmee Pre- Approval Policy” and “lndependent Audnor Serwces and Fees,” as set forth in the 2007 Proxy
Statement R o : . [ : ‘ - ,[

1)

! 'E
PARTIV - l

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules | o

l
. --.l } S . N ;
(a) Fi mancral Starements,} Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits: ’

: o by ) - oL ) i
! | : : ! ;
(0 Fmancml Staremems | |
i |

}
i
g ' S |
ated financial statements and report are filed as part of this report under Item 8 — “Financial Statements and
l 4 . I 1 - . . I

I '

The followmg consolld
Supplementary Data . ;
‘ ' , i

Consohdated Statements of Income — Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 | ]
Consol:daled Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 l ‘

' ‘Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 :
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity — Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004+ ;
Report of Ernst & Young | LLPl lndependent Registered Public Accoummg Firm i
Notes to Consolldated Fmancral Statements ’ : . | : . ;
l

¢

:

l

(2) Financial Statement S éi:edule§ !

S :

l . .
All scheduies set fortll m the applicable accounting regulations of the Commission either are not required under the related

instructions or are not appl:cable and therefore, have been omitted.

o | . ‘
(3) Exhibits . f A : o
|
Exhibits required to be{ filed by Item 601 of Regulation 8-K are listed below. Documents not designated as being 1ncorporated
herein by reference are ﬁled hetewith. The paragraph numbers correspond to the exhlbrt numbers designated in Item' 601 of
Regulation S-K. | . l
[ P - !
| ! ; ' { | - |
' |
i

e - -
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Exhibit

No.
T3

32

4.1

4.2

-43

44

4.5

10.1

10.2 .

103"

10.4
10.5
10.6

107

10.8

S v e e - s ' P ,Descngnon L e

Certlﬁcate of Incorporat1on of ‘Allegheny Technolog1es Incorporated as amended (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit

3 I'to the RegIStrant $ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the-year énded Decémber 31, 1999 (F ile No. 1- 12001)).

*'Amended and Restated Bylaws of Allegheny Technologies Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the

Reglstrant 8 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998’ (Flle No. 1: 12001))

First Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Security Agreement dated August 4, 2005 (mcorporated by reference
to, Exhibit 10.1 to the Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 (File No. 1-
12001)) o

L

.Indentul'e dated as of December 18, 2001 between Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and The Bank of New York,

as trustee, relating to Allegheny Technologles ‘Incorporated 8.375% Notes due 2011 (1ncorporated by reference to

o Exhlb:t 4210 the Reglstrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2001 (File No. 1-12001)).

‘Form of 8.375% Notes due 2011 (included as part of Exh1b1t 4.2).

Indenture dated as of - December 15, 1995 between- Allegheny Ludlum Corporanon and The, Chase Manhattan Bank _

" (National Association), - as .trustee (felating 10 “Allegheny Ludlum Corporatlon § 6.95% Debentures due 2025)

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to Allegheny Ludlum Corporation’s Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

" December 31, 1995 (Flle No. 1-9498)), and First Supplemental Indenture by and among Allegheny Technologies

[ncorporated Allegheny Ludlum Corporation and The Chase Manhattan' Bank' (National Association), as Trustee,
dated as of August 15, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 15,1996 (Flle No. l 12001)).

v ted

. Rights Agreement dated March 12, 1998, 1nclud1ng Certificate of Des1gnat10n for Series A Junior Participating

‘Prefetred Stock as filed with the State of Delaware on March 13, 1998 (mcorporated by reference to Exhlblt 1 to the

Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datéd March 12, 1998 (File No 1- 12001))

Allegheny Technolog1es lncorporated 1996 Incentive Plan (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 1997 (Flle No. 1- 12001)) *

Allegheny Technologies Incorporated 1996 Non Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan, as amended December
17,1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Reglstrant s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-12001)).* - ° :

Allegheny Technologres Incorporated Fee Continuation Plan for Non- Employee Dlrcctors as amended (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K-for the year ended December 31, 2004 (File
No. 1-12001)).* .

Supplemental Pension Plan for Certain Key Employees of ‘Allegheny Technologies Incorporated and its subsidiaries
(formérly known as the Allegheny Ludlum Corpération Key Man Salary Continuation Plan) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 (File No RE
12001)).*

Allegheny Technologies Incorporated Benefit Restoration Plan, as amended (incorporatéd by reference to Exhibit 10.8
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1999 (File No. 1-12001)).*

Employment Agreement dated August 26, 2003 between Allegheny Technologles Incorporated and L. Patrick Hassey
(incorporated by referénce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 4, 2003
(File No. 1-12001)).*

Employment Agréement ‘dated July 115, 1996 between Allegheny Technologtes Incorporated and Jon D. Walton
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-8235)).*

Allegheny Technologies Incorporated 2000 Inceritive Plan, as amended (mcorporated by reference to' Exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 1-12001)).*
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. Cert1ﬁcat|on pursuanlt to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed hererwith)... [

Exhibit . t =
No. s ! i . Descnptlon
- T
10.9 Amendment,to the |Allegheny Technologres Incorporated Pensmn Plan effect:ve January 1,.2003 (mcorporated by
o reference to Exh ibit 10.20 to the Regrstrant $ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (Flle
No 1- 12001)) * | . ,
. ' l
10,10 Asset Purchaqe Agreement dated February 16, 2004, by and among J&L Spec1alty Steel, LLC Arcelor S.AL Jewel
Acquisition LLC and Allegheny Ludlum Corporatlon (incorporated by referénce to Exhibit 99 2 to the Reg1strant
. , Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on February 17,2004 (Flle No. 1- 12001)) . _
. . ! i : J
10.11 2005 Annual Incentlve Plan (incorporated by reference to ‘Exhibit lOl 1 to the Reglstrant $ Quarterly Report on Form
IO-Q for the; quarter ended March 31, 2005 (File No 1- 12001)) * l
‘ i :
10.12, Adnlrmstratwe Rule‘ for the total Shareholder Return lneentlve Compensatlon Program (as amended effectlve as of
January 1, 2005) and Form of Total Shareholder’ Returnllncentlve Plan Agreement. effective as of January 1, 2005
(mcorporated by, reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 (F1le No. 1-12001)).* {
10.13 . | ,Form of Restncted Stock Agreement dated February 24, 2005 (incorporated by reference to, Exhibit 103 to the
. _Reglstrant 5 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter.ended March 31, 2005 (File No. 1- 12001)) * ‘[
10.14 Key Employee Performance Plan, as amended February 24 2005 (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter.ended March 31, 2005 (File No. 1-12001)).*
: " {
10.15 2006 Annual Incentwe Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended Dicember 31, 2005 (File No. 1- ]2001)) *
[P r ! l
10.16 . Form of Total Shareholder Retum Incentwe Plan Agreement effective as of January 1, 2006 (1ncorporated by reference
1o’ Exhibit 10.23]10 the Registrant’s Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (Ftle No. 1-
12001)).* ij _ .
: ' r _
10.17 Form of Resmcted Stock Agr eement dated February 22 2006 (mcorporated by reference to Exhrblt 10. 214 to the
Reglstrant siAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2005 (Flle No. 1-12001)).* \
10.18 Key Employee Performance Plan, as s amended. February 22 2006 (mcorporated by. referénce to Exhibit 10. 25 to the
Reglstrant s'Anr|1|ual Repon on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 1-12001})).* |
' k]
.10.19 Form of Amended alnd Restated Change in Centrol Severance Agreement as amended and restated effective as of
February 225 2006 (mcorporatcd by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to-the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ‘ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 1-12001).* ' ' . |
10.20 'Summary of; Nlon Employee Director Compensation Program (incorporated by reference on Exhibit 99a to. the
Reglstrant § Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated December 15, 2006 (Flle No. 1- 12001)) .
. I 1 . F
12.1 Computanon of Ratlo of Earnings to Fixed Chargeq {filed herewnth)
I
21.1 Sub51d1anesrof the Regrstrant (filed herewith). : ; ‘
23.1 cOnsem cfErnst & Young LLP (ﬁled herewith). - ‘ R ' y
. l' ?
31.1 Certlﬁcanon of Chlef Executlve Officer required by Secuntles and Exchange Commrssron Rule 13a — 14(a) or 15d -
l4(a) (filed lherew1th) AL | 1
31.2 Certlﬁcanon of Chlef Fmanc1al Officer required by Securities and Exchange Commlssmn Rule 13a - l4(a) or 15d —
14(a) (filed herewrth) ** P o S .
32.1

¥
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*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhibit to this Reporr

**  The Exhibit attached to this Form 10-K shall not be deemed "filed” for the purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) or otherwise subject to liability under that section, nor shall it bé deemed incorporated by
reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except as expressly set forth by
specific reference in such filing.

Certain instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries have been omitted from

the Exhibits in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii} of Regulation S-K. A copy of any omitted document wiil be fumished to the o

Commission upon request.

F87




P H o L P L T : DR o
1R O N
L ! f ; - [ ] L
. T . . SR L e
% ! Ii . 1 K L . . 1. b L
A t " . " " SIGNATURES N AR & POt
N . ' ,‘|, . i J 4 l . . ., '
Pursuant to the, requu’ements of SBCthll 13 or 15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 the Reglstrant has duly caused thlé Repon E
- tobe 51gned on lts]behalf liy the- undersngned thereunto du[y authorlzed L U e _. I [ e
L . R i S - ‘ ‘ :
: " il : | ALLEGHENY TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED | ’
- P 1T .. i .o -
- Date: February 27.1 2007 41 - - By A /s/ L. PatrickHass:ev-. 1‘ ; +
SRS i ‘ ';E .. T ' {L Patrick Hassey |- \
o i i ‘ Chairman, President and i :
i ; f i Chlef Executive Oﬂ cer | s
I I ’ ‘ ‘ I |
: Pursuant to the reqmrelmentq of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been s1gned below by the followmglpersons F
- on behalf of the'chlstrant anc n the capacities and as of the 27th day of February, 2007 ' i
- . | ' ; . | b
' U b g1l Phirick Hassey I __/s/ Richard J.'Harshman | ;
4y L’ Pairick; Hassey ; 1 Richard J. Harshman ' !
! Charrman, Prestfienf and Chief i Erecultve Vice President. Finance l i
- ll Executwe Offi cer and Director ‘ And Chief Financial Officer [ l
o : ll K E ‘ D t (Principal Financial Officer) ' iE,
] b H : N * 1 , ) % ]
P 1 o : «__/s/ Dale G. Reid | ,
i . BRI 3 | ‘i. . Dale G.IReid X 't
T ' | if - ! Vice Presrdem Controller, [ 1
-t . '!'E N I Chief Accounnng Ojﬁcer and Treasurer . | - .
ot ; { : f (Prmcrpal Accoummg Officer) o o [
I | | S
R /s/iH. Kent Bowen ' N : /s/ W. Craig McCIelland 1[ T
i)+ H.Kent Bowen ' | -W. Craig McClelland | ‘
f i Drrector . 3 I Director ' ‘,
L - ! ' . ' |
' |y Robert P.|Bozzone 2 . /s/ James E. Rohr | 3
i i Robert P. Bozzone i . , : ' "James E:Rohr ' L
' * :‘i Drrecmr o o D s Director }F L
' ' . Lo . ]
| /s/. Diane C Creel f _! /s/ Louis J. Thomas }
, . . Diage CliCreel i« Louis J. Thomas : T
- I L‘)zrecltor . | © 7 Director | |
. ' i ! ‘ : )
L /s/iJames C. Diggs ! ‘ /s/ John D: Turner ‘ jr
} James CDiggs I ¢ John D. Turner o |
{ I l Drreci‘or ‘ : Director - S i
Lo | X : ! '
F . fsf Michael . Joyee . l ¥
D Michael I. Joyce 1 ; '.‘
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CORPORATE OFFICERS AND OPERATING COMPANY PRESIDENTS

Corporate Officers

L. Patrick Hassey

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Richard J. Harshman
Executive Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

Douglas A. Kittenbrink
Executive Vice President, Corporate Planning
and International Business Development

Jack W. Shilling
Executive Vice President, Corporate Development
and Chief Technical Officer!

Jon D. Walton

Executive Vice President, Human Resources, Chief Legal
and Compliance Officer, General Counsel,

and Corporate Secretary

Dale G. Reid
Vice President, Controller, Chief Accounting Officer
and Treasurer

'Dr. Shilling is retiring from the Company effective March 31, 2007,
concluding a distinguished 34-year career with the Company.

Operating Companies

High Performance Metals Segment
ATl Allvac

Thomas E. Williams, President
AT1 Wah Chang

Lynn D. Davis, President

Flat-Rolled Products Segment
ATi Allegheny Ludlum

Terry L. Dunlap, President
STAL

Yanger Xu, General Manager

Engineered Products Segment
David M. Hogan, Segment President
Michael L. Cleppe, Vice President, Operations
(Portland Forge, Casting Service, and Rome Metals)
ATl Metalworking Products
David M. Hogan, President
ATI Portland Forge
Patrick W. Bennett, President
ATl Casting Service
David R. Neil, President
Rome Metals
Harry Turic, President

ATI 425, Hardcore, OmegaBond, OmegaBond Design, X-Grade, 35NLoTi,
AT, and "Building the World's Best Specialty Metals Company™ are trade-
marks of AT! Properties, Inc.

7 18Plus, Precision Rolied Strip, Alivac, Starburst logo, TJA-1537, and
Zircadyne are registered trademarks of ATl Properties, Inc.

316 stainfess steel, such as the alloy shown in this photomicrograph {500x magnification), is used in food, pharmaceutical, marine and architecture applications.
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Corporate Headqﬁarters
1000 Six PPG Place .
Pittsburgh, PA 15222.5479

412.394.2800
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